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I also recceived Sabre's lectter dated Novemper 22
regarding either sealing the courtroom or limiting the
cross-examination of witnesses from American Express and BCD.

I had my law clerk send an e-mail to you over the
waekend just in case you nccded it for planning purposes. [ am
denying that application. The rcason is familiar to you
probably by now. As you know, in the Second Circuit, a
balancing test applies, at least with regard to scaling. And
on the one hand, the question is cessentially the need for
disclosurc versus tne privacy or whatever other interests. And
in this case, because this is a trial, as 1 have held with
respect to other witnesses, I think it's :mportant that what is

resented at the trial be public and accessible to the public.

The privacy interests, which is what I think are at
stake, seem to be weaker than the rneed for public¢ disclosure
for various reasons. One is that, like other information that
has becn presented in the case, the information i{s not current
information, as I understand it. It goes from, for example,
2036 to 2012, and as I understand it, Mr. Frackman, nething
xorc rccent than 2012.

Also, in addition, as I understand it, somc of this
information has been disclosed. Ard there is also the issue of
Sabre's standing to request sealing of other information,
although that's not a ground for my ruling because my ruling
would ba the somo even if the application had becn made by the
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(Trial resumed; jury not present)

THE COURT: Good morning, cveryone.

I had just a few things I wanted to address. And
since everybody is standing, it looks like you do as well.

MR. LIND: We werc just waiting for thc plecasc be
seated.

THE COURT: Please be seated. Nice to see you all.
Mr. Frackman.
MR, FRACKMAN: I am just standing here because that's
where I am starticg.

THE COURT: Let me rule on a few things.

One is you had given me deposition designations. One
for Richard Lowry., Sabre's motion to exciude
counterdesignationa and US Airways’' motion to exclude
designations are denied, except as follows with respcct to
Lowry: Page 42, line 13, to page 43, line 14; 48, line 20, to
49-01; 49-20 to 49-23; 1:4-09 to 115-02. 1n other words, those
should -- my note is confusing me. Let me just a take a look
and make sure.

For cxample, 42-13 to 43-01 should not be playcd.

Let m@ give you the rulings with respect to
Mr. Berman. Everything should be played, except for the
following: Page 12, line 18, to 13, line 24; 231, line 10, to
232, line 18; 268, line €, to 270, lino 18; and 297, line 1 to

S.
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two companies in question.

And I do note and credit US Airways' argument that
thesc are two witcesses or conpanies that are outside the
subpoena power of the partics. They would be appearing
voluntarily. Sabre would be callirg them voluntarily, [
vnderstand, and we have already scen depoaition testimony from
them. So it seems unfair, with regard to Sabre's request to
linit the cross-examination, for Sabre on the one hand to
voluntarily call the witnesses and at the same time say that US
Airways is limited.

So that's my ruling with respect to that.

MR. LIND: May I address that very briefly? I
understand your ruling, and 1 apprcciate the limitation with
the 2012 cutoff, which I think narrows sone of the igsues.

Witk respect to what goes forwazc, we may as< for sooe
very targetod redactions, such that have been, for instance,
accomnodaziors made fcr other third parties as well. What we
will tzy <0 do is go back and regroup and se¢ if we can nake
sone targeted things that I think would be easy to accommodacte.

THE COURI: Maybe you can talk to cach other and agree
on that bascd on the types of rulings I hove made in the past
and what you can anticipate.

MR. LIND: Yes.

MR. FRACKMAN: The only caveat I would add is that we
rave produced in the litigation data only up to, I think, 2012.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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So we have no granular information about incentives Zor the
travel agents after that time, consistent with what the Court
Just said. However, we will want to ask then in a nore general
sense whether they atill receive incentives, whether they are
still receiving them today, whether the amounts arc in the
range of what they have received in the carlier period.

Because that goes to their self-interest, and I don‘t want the
jury to bo urnder the impression that this incentive ended.

THE COURT: I an finc with your asking if they still
get incentives, but I don't want to get into what the current
incentives are. It scems to me that that is treading closger
and is not as relevant. The jury can make whatever inferences
and your casc isn't about today in any cvent.

MR, FRACKMAN: 3I£ I may, their credibility is. They
aroe testifying today so that it does make a difference if, for
instance, they are receiving no incentives today or whether
they are --

THE COURT: I said you can inquire whether they are
still receiving incentives, but not as to the amount.

All right. A few other zhings.

The deck that Sabre uged for the arqument last week, I
would like a digital copy of that. 1 krow you marked it as an
exhibit so it's in the record, but I don't have a copy, and if
it's on paper, I will lose it. Actually, it looks like my law
clerk is telling mc we have a digital copy.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300
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underlying materials or eccnomic theory or anything else on
that subject, I am happy to hear from you.

MR. GRIMSLEY: I just wondered if a response would be
better for you because you might have two ships passing in the
night. It may just be better for everybody if we can say here

is our rcoponsc to what they have supplicd.

THE COURT: Helpful is good. Sometimes a responsc is
helpful. But ther I am going o a surreply. Why don't we Jjust
start this. why don't you jus: both give me something by, say,

Wednesday close ¢f business or 6:00, and then I will take it
from there. If I nced anything else, I will let you know. Or
if you think something will be helpful, tell me, and then we
will talk about it.

MR. GRIMSLEY: 7hank you, your Honor.
THE COURT: There are a couple of other things I would
like to talk about.

One is, cven though it's a little carly, matcrials for
jury deliberations. You may have all of this planned and

thought out. If you have better ones,

Here are my thoughts.
that's finc.

I think we probably don‘t wan: to give then paper
copies. I do send all of the cxhibits in evidence back to the
jJury. So what I am thinking is if you could load a laptop with
all of the exhibita that are admitted, rot demonstrative, just

admitted exhibits, and also put on the laptop a list of them so

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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MR. GRIMSLEY: We filed a letter this morning.

THE COURT: I saw the letter. HWas it attached to
that?

MR. GRIMSLEY: He attached it as an exhibit.

THE COURT: Thank you.

On that gubject, I did have a chance to look at the
revised request that you had sent, and I would like -- let m¢

direct this request first to US Airways.

Your request regarding the two-sided market is
consistent with Professor Stiglitz's testimcny. But I didn':
see any either law or other sources cited in connection with
that. And what I would like from you is authority for that
charge, which could coxc Zrom any of three buckets, but tell me
which one it is: First, the AmEx casc or other Second Circuit
case law; second, materials cited by the AmEx case -- there is
38 long footnote with two-sided market material cited; and
third, any other literature that would be helpful. OK?

MR. FRACKMAN: :In what form?
THE COURT: A letter is fine.

Sabre has citations to the AmEx casc and o Professor
Stiglitz's testimony after its request for the two-sided market
instruction, but if there is anything else you would like to
add, including -- I don't want a response to their letter, but
you can file it at the same time as their letter. So anything

that you anticipate or that you would like to say about the

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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they can find it, and also give them a hard copy of the list.
Maybe a couple of hard copies of the list.

Also, I suspect they will be asking for witness
taestimony, and of course in a shorter trial we would aak the
court reporzer to find it and then we would arque about it and
it would take forcever in this case. So what I am thinking is
that we should load the testimony onto a laptop and it needs to
Lave deleted from it material from when the jury was not
present and also if there is any extended lawyer colloquy. If
it's just back and forth that they heard, that's not a big
deal, kut if there is any extended lawyexr collcquy. And, also,
ic should have dcleted the struck answers. And we should also
¢ive them a witness list so that they can £ind it with datcs
and page numbers. So all of that would be on the laptop. Then
if you could give me a copy of evorything you give them on &
CD, beocausce a CD is the only kind of external media our systaon
will take. OK?

Maybe two laptops. Mr., Street suggested it might bo
logistically easier.

MR. DIAMOND; Would you like us to arraange for some
technology that the jury can use in the jury room, for example,
a projector and screen, if they want to put exhibits up and
discuss them. as opposed to all gathering around a laptop.

THE COURT:

That makes sgnse.

MR. DIAMOND: We are happy to take the lead on that.
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THE COURT: Those are my suggestions for what you put

on the laptop. If you talkx to each other and decide something
clse, let me know.

The final thing I would like to talk about, this is
very premature, is posttrial mctions.

1 am assuming that there will be a renewal of a Rule
S0 motion. I am assuming, for purposes of this discussion,
that there is a jury verdict. And I am assuming there will be
posttrial motions.

So the reason I tell you all of this now, and this is
just to give ycu a little inside information, I hire oy law
clerks on two cycles. They are the March law clerks and the
August law clerks. Ms. Rebert i35 a March law cierk, and Ms.
Rebert is the fourth law clezk I have had on this case, and I
do not want another law clerk s:tarting who hasn't sat through
the trial to help me with the motions. So that means we need
to £inish up the moticns by March, which mcans I need them from
you well in advance of that.

So 1 am rot sure of the schedule yet. It derends. of
course, on when we end, but it will be compressed. So if you
want to start working on your posttrial motions now, I think,
regardless of what happens, there arc many things in it that
you can already irclude.

The other thing is that I will want, and I have heard

this has been done successfully boefore, I would like hyperlinks

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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and we will be having a process where we will want to put in a
full proposal of what the cvidence would shew on things like
that sign and auve issue as well as potentially a couple of
other issues.

THE COURT: Wwhen you have a serse of how long you
think it will take, lct mo know, and then we will figure out
when to do {t.

MR. LIND: The last thing for the record is they go:
thosc Kirby designations last Tuesday, not last night. I just
reed to make that clear.

THE COURT: Thank you.

So we have a couple of minutes. Do whatever you like.
FR. FRACKMAN: There are three exhibits that have been
identified by Sabre that they plan to use with Mr. Xlecin this
afternoon, I gather, when we get to him, that we have objected
to.

THE COURT: OK.

MR. FRACKMAN: Do you want me to hand them up?
THE COURT: Sure.
MR. FRACKMAN: DX 1317, DX 1439, and DX 1452.
MR. MacNALLY: Let me save the Court the trouble. We
are not going to show DX 1439. The other two we arce.
MR. FAACKMAN: We have hearsay and foundational
objections.

MR. MacNALLY: Both thesc were ¢-mails received by VNr.
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to the cases, exhibits and testimony in your memos of law,
which w:ill just make it a lot easier so that every time I neced
to look at an exhibit I don't have to go into my hard drive and
find it. OK?

So those are just planning ahead. Is therc anything
eclse we nced to talk about right now?

MR. DIAMOND: I do have one issue with respoct to
deposition designations. Wwe received the Kirky proposed
designations from Sabre last evening. They once again have
sign-anc-sue questions and answers. 1 assuxe they are doing it
simply to preserve their record, but 1 feecl like they ace
playing Whac-A-Mole on this issue. I am happy to agree to the
standing stipulazion that their objections are prescrved.

THE COURT: 1If {t will save wmc the time of every time
ruling on iz, that will be great. 1Is thkat acceptable?
MR. LIND: We will kecop preserving the record on that.
One thing we will have to talk about is our series of offers of
proof that we are going to make, and we are going to need to
sct aside time, however vour konor wishes to do that.

THE COURT: Tell me a liztle bit mcre on the offer.
You mean offer of proof on sign and sue?

That's

MR. LIND: There may be a couple of issues.

one that pops to mind. There will be issues where we will want
to make an offer of proof, and typically that's done outside

the prescence of the jury, either after court or on a day off,
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(212) 805-0300

3426
GBS8SABI

Klein in the ordirary course of business. One is a calendar
invite, rumber 1452, standard course of business for Sabre,
basic information where the meeting is. Then the second ia
a --

THE COURT: Let's just talk about 1452 first. 1Is Mr.
Klein on Lhia?

MR. MacNALLY: Yes, he is. This is taken frca his
files. HKe is one of the required attendces.

THE COURT: I see he is listed as a requirecd attendee.
The purpose of this is to show?

MR. MacNALLY: Just that the meeting took place, your
Honor. Mr. Klein is qgoing to talk about the meeting. This
just shows the jury that the mectirng took plece and gives some
context, dote of the meeting, location.

THE COURT: Normally calendar invites aren't offered
for the truth anyway. I wculd allow that.
And the other one being?

MR. MacNALLY: <The scecond e-mail is 1317, This is an
e-mail to Mr. Klein from one of the negotiators at Sabre, and
this is just providing hia information about the meeting
attendees from two meetings that Sabre had following the 2006
regotiations, including a meoting with US Airways. Again, this
is just going to be used to provide context around when the
meeting took place, not fcr the truth, and the time.

THE COURT: Wwell, this secms o me to be hcarsay
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GBSB8SAB} GBS8SAB! Webb - Cross
1 bacause you want to show that the mecting took place. That's 1 {Jury present)
2 what the document says. lere are the people we met with. And 2 THE COURT: Welcome back, everyont. It's nice to see
3 it's a Sabre document. You can, of course, clicit this 3 you all. 1 hope you arc all rested and did some interesting
4 information from him. 4 things unrelated to this case. But we will do some interesting
S MR. MacNALLY: I think we just want to use the 5 things related to this case today.
6 document for coniext for timing. He i3 going to testify that 6 Why don®t we get the witness. Mr. Strect.
? the moeting took place. He was there. He is going to testify 7 GREG WEBB, resumed.
8 about the details. This is just to orient the jury. 8 THE COURT: Yosu understand you‘re still under oath.
9 THE COURT: I am not going to adnit 1317, but you carn 9 THE WITNESS: I do?
10 use it to let him refresh his recollection, if there is any 10 THE COURT: You may proceed, Mr. Frackman.
11 question about the date and who was there, but it seems to me 11 CROSS-EXAMINATION (Cont‘'d)
12 hearsay. 12 BY MR. FRACKMAN:
13 We arce ready. Let's get the jury. 13 Q. Good morning, Mr. Webb.
14 (Continued on next page) 14 A. Good morring.
15 15 Q. Let's just orient ourselves because we have had a few days
16 16 off, and 1 could use the refreshing.
17 17 Last Tuesday we talked about derequlation in 2004,
18 18 right?
19 19 A. We did.
20 20 Q. You rccall that.
21 21 And we talked about the emergernce of genies in 2004
22 22 and 2005, right?
23 23 A. Yes.
24 24 Q. And the formation of Project Nike by Sabre to address that
25 25 issue?
SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C. SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300 (212) 805-0300
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GBS8SAB1 Webb - Cross GBS8SAB1 Webb - Cross
1 A. I think Nike was broader than that. 1 A. That's correct.
2 Q. It included the issuve of the gcnies, G2 Switchworks and 2 0. We also talked abou:t the third-party aggregator party that
3 ITA, right? 3 Sabre put in place around that same time, the deal with
4 A. It included a whole bunch of things, but one of the 4 third-party aggregators such as BookingBuilder, right?
5 discussions was about alternate forms of distribution. S A. That's correct.
6 Q. That included G2 and ITA? 6 Q. And Farelogix?
7 A. Yes. 7 A. Yes.
8 Q. Then we talked abcut the increcased use of direct connects, 8 Q. And we also covercd the consideration by Sabre of a
9 like the America West agency portal, right? 9 multi-source aggregator desktop, right?
10 A. We spoke about direct connect. 10 A. Yes. HWe talked about the fact that we looked into
11 Q. Including the America West agency portal, right? 11 aulti-aggregation sources and looked a: how we might ad:ust the
12 A. I don't recall specifically talking about that. 12 Sabre desktop.
13 Q- And that was also in the 2005 time period we talked about? 13 Q. You rccall that sSabre vicwed such a desktop as technically
14 A. I think that's correct, yes. 14 || achievable, right?
15 Q. And we talked about thc Sabre passive segment policy that 15 A. Yedh. Generally considered most technologles to be
16 was ixmplemented in 2005, in part o charge for passive segments 16 achievable in time.
17 on the Sabre system, made in order to record reservations 17 Q. And you decided not to do it, rot because of technological
18 outside of the GDS, including regervations made through a 18 || barriers, but as a business decision, right?
19 direct connect, right? 19 A. Yeah. Ve came to the conclusion that no agencies wanted
20 A. We changed the policy so that if ycu used systen but didn't 20 them. So that's correct.
21 |! book in the system, then you paid a charge for that. 21 IR Q. So thot brings us clese to 2010, which I am going to ask |
22 Q. That's a yes? You recall we talked about (t? 22 you about. Before I get to that, I wanted to cover a couple of .
23 A. Yes. 23 other points.
24 Q. Then we talked about you how that was followed by the 2006 24 You made a big deal -- you spoke about the fac: that
25 full conten: TMA agreements with all the major airlines, right? 25 Sabre has over 400 airline suppliers. Do you remember zhat?
SOUTHERN DLSTRICT REPORTERS, P.C. SOUTHERN OISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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GBS8SAB! Webb - Cross GBS8SAB1 Webb - Cross
1 A. We did. b space. I will take them back.
2 Q. But in 201!, the big four US legacy carriers -- those are 2 Q. So in there you should see 691H.
3 the airiines Aroerican, United Del:ta, US Airways -- accounted 3 It's on the screen. 1It's probably easier.
4 for more than 50 percent of Sabre's total worldwide bookings, ] As I said, this is the January 2012 Book of Numbers?
] right? ) A. don't have it.
6 A. I'm not surc. 6 Q. You have it cr you don‘t?
7 Q. You're familiar with the Book of Numbers? 7 A. I don’'t.
8 A. I anm. 8 Q. So you have in front of you the Jancary 2012 Book of
9 Q. Wo spoke about that I thirk. The Book cf Numbers, again, 9
10 for the jury's benefit, .s the monthly set cf financial reports 10 MR. FRACKMAN: Excuse me one second.
11 generated internally at Sabre? 11 Let's go to 6914.96 Trevor.
12 A. It was at one point, yes. 12 I guess it's 69:1 now.
13 Q. And you revicwed them in your capacity as president? 13 Lez*s rotate that, if you would.
14 A. That's correct. 14 Q. I'm sorry. Our nunbering got ascrewed up. Here is 2012.
15 Q. Even beforc then you rcviewed them, £ight? 15 So 6911, the January 2012 Book of Numbers. Now wWeC are
16 A. That's correct. 16 all there.
17 Q. So let's look at one of these. It's the January 2012 Book 172 We are on page dot 96. Lot me know when you'ro there,
18 of Numbers that contains year end 2011 data. 1it's 2X 69:H in 16 M. Webb.
19 evidence. 19 A. I have it.
20 MR. FRACKMAN: Trevor, pull up the front page of that 20 Q. So this is thae listing of carrier, airlinec carrier bookings
21 first. 21 in order of largest to snmallest, right?
22 Q. We have given you a enother binder there. 22 A. Yes, it appears that's true.
23 A. Volume 5? 23 Q. And you see the third column is 2011 bookings. Are you
24 MR. FRACKMAN: Mr. Stree:t, I think we can taxe the 24 with me there?
25 others out of Mr., Webb‘'s way for now, just to give him some 25 A. Yes,
SOUTHERN DI1STRICT REPORTERS, P.C. SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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1 Q. Your largest custoder in 2011 was American Airlines, right? 1 US point of sale, right?
2 A. It looks like bookings would have been Delta. then United. 2 A. It's just not labeled so I am not sure.
3 then American, then US. 3 Q. 326 million bookings. Did you have more than that?
4 Q. So the largest was Delta. And if you go to the second to 4 A. I assume that's wcrlowide, but I‘'m not sure.
) the right column, 2011 percentage of bookings, Delta had 16.4 ) Q. Just bear with me for a second. If these four airlines
6 percent of your total? 6 represcented 50 percent of your worldwide total of booxings, you
? A. That's what it says. 7 will agree that tLey represcnted far more than 50 percent of
8 Q. And United had 14 percent, right? 8 your US point of sale bookings, right?
9 A. That's correct. 9 A. They would have reproscnted more than 50 percent of our US
10 Q. Is that United plus Contirental by nox? 10 point of sslc bookings.
11 A. Yes. 11 Q. And you know that the same logic holds for the big four
12 Q. And American had 10 and a half porcent, right? 12 Global TMCs for their US of point of sale bookings, that is,
13 A. That's corrcct. 13 the vast majority of them are going to be bookings on thesc
14 Q. US Airways was 9.1 percent? 14 four airlines, right?
15 A. That's correct. 15 A. I'm nct sure, but I would assume iz would be close.
16 Q. If you add those four together, you get to 50 percent of 16 Q. And it would make sense because almost all of their
17 your total 2011 bookings, right? 17 business consists of business travel, right?
18 A. Yes, although I'm not suce because it's not iabeled, I 18 A. A large npnjority of their busiress is business travel.
19 am not sure whether this is US poirt of sale or whether this is 19 Q. And the only other US carriers on your list here are
20 total bookings. That certainly ls what it says cn the table. 20 Southwest and Air Tran and Frontier, which are primarily
21 Q. 50 percent ust for those four legacy airlines by 21 leisure, right?
22 themselves, righ:? 22 A. Alaska Airlines.
23 A. That's correcct. 23 Q. And Alaska, which are primarily leisure right?
24 J- If you go down there, you see all :the foreiqgn airlines 24 A. Alaska has a decent nix of business travelers.
25 follow. So it s:tands to reason this {s worldwide and not just 25 Q. The others are primarily leisure, right?
SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C. SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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GBS8SAB1 Webb - Cross

A. Southwest certainly :is.

Q. Air Tran certainly?

A. Alr Tran was a mix as well.

Q. So if these four represented most of your US point of sale,
they also represented most of your major customers, the four
big global T™MCs US point of sales, right?

A. I balieve that would be correct.

Q. Now, would it surprise you to know that over 80 pcrcent of
the big four TMC bookings are on these four to five, if you
count Continental as a separate airline, airlines?
A. For the US point of sale?

Q. For the US point of sale.

A. 80 pecrcent would surprise ec.

Q. Higher than 50 wouldn't surprise you, right?
A. I think it should be around a similar amount. I think this
probably reflects -- because it reflec:ts Sabre as a whole, i:
would probably reflect their booking mix as well.

Q. Because most of your biggest travel agent custoners'
bookings in the US are on only four airlines, with four direct
connects and an aggregation tool, they could replace the
majority of their US point of sale airline bookings, right?

A. Well, they drive up their costs significantly having to use
differcnt systems and other things. So it still wouldn't make
sense for them to operate in an environment where they were
using multiple systems.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300
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address American Airlines?

A. I don't reczall.

Q. I am going to hand up to you PX 291 for identification.
It‘s in the binder.

So take a lock at thigs. This is an e-mail, as you
will sce, from Nadja Rillisly to you, dated Scptember 17, 20072
A. That's correct.

Q. Why don't you tell us what her position was.
A. I have no idea.

Q. She worked at Sabre, right?

A. She did.

MS. GIULIANELLI: Objection, your Honor. 7his is
subjcct to a motion in limine, and this was a specific document
that you kept out on the other disputes issue.

THE COURT: CK. 1It's the arcea, not this particular
document.

He hasn't offered it yet, but I understarnd ycu have an
objection.

Q. This is an c-mail that she sent to you on September 17 with
an attached PowerPoint presentation, right?
A. That's correct.

MR, FRACKMAN: I am going to offer it in cvidence,
youyr Honor.

MS. GIULTANELLI: That's the objection.

THE COURT: Can I see {t?

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300
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GBS8SAB1 Nebb - Cross

Q. Let's just go over my question again.

Because your biggest travel agent customers, the big
four global TMCs, have most of the US point of sale bookings on
these fcur carriers, they could substi:ute for the GDS with
direct conneccts to the big four and an aggregation tool, at
lcast electrically, right?

A. Technically, they covld -- well, I don't know whether they
technically could do it. I don't know whether they have the
technical capability to do it, but you could have five
different systems sitting en your desk:top and use five
different systems to book four carriers and then one system to
book everybody else.

Q. You could have one systcem aggregating those four, such as
Farelogix, right?

A. You could usc a third party to aggregate. If you wanted to
creato another aggregator, you can certainly create a new
aggregator.

Q. And tha:z would take care of well over SD percent of their
US point of sale airline bookings, right?

A. If they did all four, that would likely be around SO
percent.

Q. Now, you recall Project 99, right?

A. 1'm not sure exactly which one that is so you will have to
renind ne.

Q. Project 99 was the project that Sabre put :in place to

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300
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MS. GIULIANELLI: The objection s this {is
particularly a document on the strategy and targets of other
issues.

MR. FRACKMAN: I am focusing on page dot 42, your
Honor.

THE COURT: I w:ill admit it Zor thc purposc of
displaying page 42, but not the rest. So if you're not using
the rest, you just have to recdact it.

MR. FRACKMAN: I think this is consistent with the
Court's order that it relates to airlines generally and not any
one specific one.

Q. Let's look at PX 291.

THE COURT: 1In termo of admitting it, what 1 would
adnit i» the cover and page 42, just so the jury knows what it
is.

{(Plaintiff's Exhibit 291, cover page and pago 42,
received in evidernce)

BY MR. FRACRMAN:

Q. In fact, in this strategy deck, the prospect of your TMC
customers cstablishing dircct connects with this sm3ll aumber,
less than a handful of US carriers, thercby bypassing the GDS3s
including Sabre was an issue, right?

A. I'm sorry. Am I looking at a page here?

Q. T am no: lcoking at the page yet. T will use the page
after 1 ask the question.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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GBS8SAB! Webb - Cross

My question was, back at this time, the concern about
your biggest travel agency customers forming a direct connect
with just a small handful of four legacy carriecs that
constituted over S0 percent of their business in the US, was an
issue that you discussed?

A. It looks like this document is talking aboutl 3ix or seven
different possiblc outconmes, difforent potentials, cifferent
scenarios. So this is a scenario planning docutent where we
looked at the overall industry, landscape, and tried to do kird
of wecrst-case scerario in oevery case, ard then figure out how
we would react to that.

Q. One of the issues that you were worried about, sufficiently
to address irn this deck, was the zop TMCs forming direct
connects with this small number of US carriers that represented
nost of their business, right?

A. There is a section called direct cornect for megas.

Q. Let's look at that. Page 291.42.

The scenario that was sufficient fcr you and your team
to address was the top six North American carriers and the top
TMCs rcalize their reliance on onc another for the vast
majority of business and determine to work directly, right?

A. That's what it says.
Q. That is directly through a direct connect, right?
A. I assume that's what it’'s talking about, yes.,

Q. And that would cost you 70 to 6§60 percent of your GDS

SOUTHERN OISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 905-0300
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right?
A. Again, we would have to plan arnd figure out what steps we
would take, whether we would change our business model,
structurally would we change the technology. Zzhat’s what
scenario plarning is.
Q. You would losc the control that was at the heazt of your
business model, right?
A. We didn't como to any conclusiosn around those things. What
we were looking at is what actions we might take given shifts
in the industry.
Q. Let me zurn to another topic. Sabre has asproximately 80
percent of the business travel network, BTN, largest
corporations measured by business spent?
A. I'm not sure §{f that'’s accurate.
Q. Let me show you to refresh your recollection the SEC filirg
by Sabre in 2012 that has boon marked as PX 3086. It should bo
in your binder. 1 am going to direct your attention to
3086.148.
A. 1 certainly don’t want to read the entire document.
Q. You rccognizc this as tho S-1 filing by Sabre, dated
January 21, 20142
A. 1 do.

MR. FRACKMAN: 1 offer it in evidence, your Honor.

MS. GIULITANELLI: ©No objection.

THE COURT: 1It's admitted.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300

Sabr-Transcnipt-000008218

Sabr-Transcrtpt-000006220

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

A N S w N

w o

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

3440

GBS8SAB. tebb -~ Cross

revenug, right?

A. Yeah. Again, this is the worst-~-case scenario.

Q. Because rot only did itz represent grecater than S0 percent
of the bookirngs, it represented an even greater share of your
revenue because of the high price business travel, right, high
valuc business travel, zight?

A. No. I think this is -- that's actually not accurate. I
think this assumes that, because of the shift or section into
direct, that other airlines potentially would stop
participating, that agencies would move away from us, smaller
agencies would move away. So, again, I don't know what all
went into this, but that wouldn't be accurate.

Q. And the concern was that the global TMCs and tho major
carriers build direct technical links, right?

A. Thot's what it says.

Q. Just like American was threatening at that time with their
direct connect, right?

A. That's what it says. This was us trying to figure out what
would have happen in the industry if different trends moved
forward.

Q. And {f your four biggest travel agency customers that
constitute over 50 percert of your busiress in the US got
together withk four airlires that constitute over $0 porcent of
their business and your business on the other side of your

business, you would no longer have control ¢ver the desktop,

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212} 805-0300
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(Plaintiff's Exhibit 3086 received in evidence)

MR. FRACRMAN: Let's first show the front page,
Trevor, to orient ourselves.
Q. If you look at the top of the page, you see that this is
the Form S1 that was filed in connection with a securities
offering by Sabre, right?
A. That's correct.
Q. 1It's dated Jaruary 2%, 20142
A. That's correct.
Q. So let's turn to 3086.48. And if you go to the second
builet in the middle of the page, you sec this filing says.
Over 80 percent of the BTN 100, which are the corporations with
the largest travel expenditures as measurcd by their 2012
US-booked air volume. Do you gee that?
A. I do.
Q. Sabrc had over 80 percent of the BTN 100, right?
A. I'm not sure if this is specifically GDS bookings, because
there are some corporations that we have a relationship with
that usce our corporate online booking tool, but don’t use the
vnderlying Sabre GDS. So I am not surc whether this was
bookings or whether this is related to relationships with the
top 100.
Q. You testified that TMCs tend to use a single GDS in the
United States for any given corporate customer, right?
A. Say that again.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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GBS8SAB1 Webb - Crosas

Q. You tes:tified that travel management cowpanies or travel
agents usc a single GDS within a given geographic area, like
the United States, for any individuval corporate customer?

A. Or a single customer, generally.

Q. So that in order to get to 80 percent of the BTN 100, an
airline has go through Sabre and the Sabre travel agencies that
service those B0 porcent, right?

A. They don’'t have to, but it is an efficient wvay for them to
reach those customers.

Q. And you agree that the TMCs tend to single-home, right?

A. I agree that TMC generally like to nanage single
corporation on a single GDS in a geo¢graphy.

Q. So that ocans that for any onc of those 80 out of 100 top
corpanies measured by business spent, their travel management
cocpany, their travel agent, is going %o use a single GDS in
the United States, right?

A. It generally xakes it more efficient for them to do that.
Q. In fact, global, muvlti-national corporations ace
increasingly consolidating their global travel programs to a
single GDS bookxing tool, right?

A. Again, it varies depending on where the corporation
operates.

Q. Why don't you take a look at PX 472 in your binder, not in
evidence yet.

Oh, no, it is in evidence. PX 472 in evidence.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300
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multiple GDSs at some point and then consolidated to a single
GDS.
Q. And that Sabre was well positioned to bonefit in the future
by increased consolidation, right?
A. Yesa. We put specific tools in place to help corporations
manage their travel and so we felt we werze well positioned in
the corporate space.
Q. Because increased consolidation meart mcre business in the
randful of large TMCs, right?
A. It was a double-cdged sword actually, which is the
consolidation helped us drive volume, but it also was more
cxpensive because incentives increased because we got leveraged
in thooc discussions.
Q. And since you have over 50 percent of the TMC volume in the
United States, that mcant more consolidation in the Sabre
platform, right?
A. The hope was that we would drive more volune.
Q. How about my question. Because you have more than 50
porcent of the TMC volume in the United States, greater
congolidation in the TMCs meant grecater consolidation in Sabre,
right?
A. 1'm not sure I would follow it exactly like that, but there
was certainly a hope that we would increase volume.
Q. Let me turn to another topic.

Do yo:s recall you gave some testimony on direct about

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, ¥P.C.
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GBS8SAB: Webb - Cross

MR, FRACKMAN: @We can put that up on the screen.,
Q. So this is an c-mail, dated May 3, 2010, from Scott
wWallingford to you, among others. Do you sce that?

A. I do.

Q. who is Scott wWallingford?

N. He used to work at Sabre. He ran cocporate strategy at one

point.

Q. So he forwarded this e-mail and attached the PowerPo.nt
resontation to you, right?

A. He did.

Q. Take a look at ?X 472.14. This is what he wrote to you ard
to Som Gilliland, the crhairman of the board, and Tom Klein, thre

president.

He wrote. “Global, multi-national cozsporations
incroasingly are consolidating global :travel programs to a
single GDS," right?

A. Tha:'s what it says.

Q. And a single booking tool, right?

A. Yes, that's correct.

Q. And a single agency?

A. Yes.

Q. So there is consolidation that he is observing?
A. That's what he wrote.

Q. And he said that Sabre benefits froa this, right?

A. Yeah. Those in particular were ones that had beon on

SOUTHERN D1STRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212} 805-0300
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your phone app Tripcase?
A. Yes.

MR. FRACKMAN: Wwhy don't we put up Sabre Demonstrative
123 for a moment, Trevor.
Q. So this is a shot of a phone with your Tripcase app, right?
A. That's correct.
Q. So let me ask you a few questions about this.

First of all, this is not a booking tool, right?
A. It is not.
Q. Unlike Concur, you can't book through this Tripcase app,
right?
A. I'm actually not sure if that is still true, but it was at
onc point.
Q. It'9 not an aggregation tool, in the scnse that it doesn't
include any non-Sabre content, right?
A. It can.
Q. If there is a passive segment included in Sabre?
A. Not even if =here is not & passive segment. Travelers
e-nail their itineraries; if they bock outside, they just

e-nail their itincrary to Tripcase, and then Tripcasc adds it

into their =zrip fece. So it has both GDS content and non-GDS
conten:,

Q. Now, you testificd that it provides realtime data feeds for
information like gate changes and cancellations, right?

A. It does.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPCRTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300
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GBS8SAB1 Webb - Cross

Q. You get that information from the airiines, rignt?

A. Some of it comes from the Sabre systenm, some of it comes
from the airlines, some of it comes from hoteliers.

Q. But when we are talking about airline dcparture
infornation, gate information, cancellations, that doesn't come
from hotcliers, that comes from the airlines, right?

A. Certalnly, if it's around airlines, it comes from the
airlines.

Q. To the extent it comes from the Sabre system as opposed to
directly from the airlines, you only have it because you got (‘t
from the airlines, right?

A. We have a relationship with the airlines where we share
data. That's thc way that it works.

Q. And this updated information on gazes and canceilations and
arrival times and the like is also information that's contained
on the airline's own phone apps, right?

A. I would assume they have apps that uvpdate their travelers.
Q. Certainly Anerican does, right?

A. I assume so, yes.

Q. You don't use it?

A. I use Tripcase.

Q. So you don't tell the airlines that you're including their
data on Tripcase. right?

A. The airlines are very specific.

e have rclationships with

a nurber of airlines. We absolutely have data restrictions and

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300
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A. That's correct.
Q. One of your key objectives -- let me start again.

It wasn't just US Airways' contract that was coming up
for renewal. All of the 2006 TMA agreements with the legacy
carriers -- at lcast most of them were coning up for renewal,
right?

A. I'm not sure it was most, bu: there were a number.

Q. Vost of them were five-year contracts, right?

A. That's correct.

Q. LCelta had a slightly lcnger one?

A. That's correct.

Q. And one of your key objectives with respect to all of these
rencgotiations was to cxtond the full content provisions that
you had obtained in the 2006 TMA?

A. Yes, it was certainly very important. That's what ail of
the agencies look for, full content. So it was cectainly an
objective.

Q. That's a yes?

A. Yes.

Q. And 1t was also to maintain the traditional booking fce
businesa model, right?

A. It was to maintain the structurc that we had in place, yes.
Q. 1In fact, that's what you reportod to the board of directors
in early 2010. Do you recall that?

A. I don't recall. It wouldn't surprise me though.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300

Sabr-Transcript-000006226

Sabr-Transcript-000008228

o U D

~3

10
11
12
13

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

10

11

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

3448

GBS8SAB1 Webb - Cross

rcgulations associated with every airline that we have a
contract with.
Q. So is iz your testimony that you have told the airlines
that you were usirg their data cn Tripcase?
A. 1 assume that we have had conversations with them about
that, but we very specifically have GDS data rcgulations in
place with every airline.
Q. Have you had any conversations with any airline about that?
A. I have haven't because Tripcase was not in my area.
Q. I anm going to now turn to the last topic, 2011.

You testified that you were involved in Sabre's 2010
negotiations with US Airways, right?
A. [ was.
Q. You were running the GCS at that point?
A. 1 was.
Q. You were precsident?
A. I was.
Q. Cavid Gross reported to you?
A. He did.
Q. And Chris wilding and Jason Toothman rcported to David?
A. Correct.
Q. And., therecfore, indirectly to you, right?
A. Yes. They rcported to David ard David reported to me.
Q. You had just taken over as president of the Travel Network
business at the beginning of 2010, right?

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300
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Q. Take a look at 2X 197, It°s not yet :=n evidence.

This is a presentation that you nade to the Sabre
Holdings board of directors in February 2010, right?

A. That's correct.

MR. FRACKMAN: I offer PX 137 in evidence.
MS. GIULIANELLI: No objection.
THE COURT: 1It's admitted.

(Plaintiff’'s Exhibit 137 received in evidence)

Q. This set forth your airlinc negotiation strateqy, right?
A. That's correct.

Q. This was your first presentation to the board as president
of the Travel Network, riqht?

A. I'm not surc if (it was the first, but yes, it would have
been early on.

MS. GIULIANELLI: Excuse me. I think there may be no
objection subject to certain redactions in here with respect to
other airlines.

THE COURT: CK. Are the redactions aiready in the
document ?

MS. GIULIANELLI: No, they arc not. And 1 don't xnow
that M:c. Frackman i3 going there, but I just wanted to reserve
our rights <o go back, if it's in evidence, and look at any
redactions.

THE COURT: CK.

Q. You pointed out to the board that parity with direct

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300
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1 connects or with the airlines' own Hieb sites continued to be a 1 effectively recapping for the board the full content provisiors
2 ritical roquirement, right? 2 of the former contracts and saying that it continues to be

3 A. Where am I looking? 3 important in the next generation of contracts.

4 Q. Put that aside for a moment. We will deal with the q Q. But parity, fproduct parity -- sceat maps, frequent flyer

5 document, but let's see if you recall first. 5 awards, etc. -- in your view included ancillaries such as

6 Do you rccall that one of thc issucs that you 6 Choicc Seats?

7 presented to the board was that parity with the direct channel, ? A. No, we would have put Choice Seats into content parity, not
8 " that is with the airline's own Web sites and with the other 8 product parity. That's like saying we wanted to make sure that
9 GDSs continued to be a critical requirement? 9 they participated in the scat so we can share the seat maps,

10 A. I don't recall specifically, but we certainly wanted full 10 people that booked through Sabre would still get frequent flyor
11 content and that included pacity with the direct channels. 11 awards, etc. So that's different than content parity.

12 Q. Let's look at 137.4. 12 Q. SO :n any event, the ancillary services, such as seats,

13 This is a pagce from your prcocntation to the board, 13 Choice Secats or premium -- whatever the airlince might have

14 right? 14 called {t, economy plus, you would view that as being captured
15 A. It is. 15 by the content parity requirepent?

16 Q. In which you werc setting out your strategy for the 16 A. That's correct.

17 negotiations, right? 17 Q. And you told the board that this was a requirement in the
18 A. This appears to be background, yes. 18 negotiations, rigkt?

19 Q. And you put down that you told them that parity with the 19 A. Yes. If we were going to provide the ongoing structure

20 direct channel continued to be a critical requiremcnt, right? 20 around discounting for (ull contcent, that we would include that
21 A. Yes. This i3 talking about the full content agreecaents. 21 as part of what we would be negotiating for, certainly full

22 Q. Not only did you need content parity on inventory and 22 content.

23 fares, but you also needed product parity, that is, parity on 23 Q. It doesn't say anything about negoziatiocn or being the

24 ancillaries, right? 24 subject of negotiation. It says it's a requirement. Those aro
25 A. This is broader than that, but this was -- this is 25 your words. Thaz is your word, Mr. Webb.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C. SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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1 A. Yeah. The whole thing is airlinc negotiation strategy. 1 BY MR. FRACKMAN:

2 This entirc document is about a negotiation. This is our 2 Q. Did you tell the board in your maiden presentation as

3 strategy for negotiation. 3 president of Travel Network that full content continued to be a
4 Q. Your strategy was to make full content a requirement? 3 I1 reguirenent, in your view?

5 A. For discounts. So we had to negotiate for full content. ) A. Yes, what ] said was that parity with the dircect channecl

6 Q. Which was a requirement in your vicw? 6 and GDS continues to be a critical requ:rement. That's what

? A. It was impportant. 7 the bullet says. It was very irportant to us in our

8 Q. Not just important, it was a requirement. That's your 8 negotiations with the airlines that we achieve a full content

9 word. 9 outcome.

10 A. It was very important. I wrotc that, but .t was very 10 Q. So you also set out your key objectives for the renewal

11 important. 11 regotiations with the Big 5, US Airways, and you told the board
12 Q. It wasn't a requirement? 12 that ore of the key objectives was to extend the full content
13 A. what wc arc talking about is, again, the background of what 13 agreenents, right?

14 we have been able to do to provide full content, trade-offs for 14 A. 1 don‘t recall, but I'm sure that I said something along

15 pricing, and so I am pointing out to the board it continues to 15 those lines.

16 be important. 16 0. Llet's turn to PX 197.15.

17 {Continued on next page) 17 So you see herc on this page, you set out the -- the
18 18 title of the slide is Key Airlines - North Anmerica, right?

19 19 A. It is,
20 20 Q. And you listed there -- it's hard to read -- the largest US
21 21 u legacy carriers, including Delta. American, US Alrways, United,
22 22 Continental, right?
23 23 A. Yes, this was the North America.
24 24 Q. And you told the bcard that the key objective {n the
25 25 regotiations, the number one key objective, the first bullet,

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C. SOUTHERR DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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1 was to extend the full content agreements with traditional

2 booking fee model, right?

3 A. That's correct.

4 Q. Now although you testified you had some involvement in the
) negotiations with US Airways in 2010, you had very limited

6 involvement, right?

7 A. The teams handled most of {:.

8 Q. Most of it was handled by David Gross, "The Enforcer," to
9 use his own term?
10 A. Mr. Gross was responsible for portions of the negotiation,
11 as was Mr. Wilding and Mr. Toothman.

12 Q. Mr. Gross is the one who ca.ls himself "The Enforcer, *
13 right?
14 A. I don't think he calls himself "The Enforcer." As we saw
15 in his joxc presertation, that was whaz was up there. He also
16 called himgself "The Real Robert Palmer,"™ as I recali, and David
17 couldn’t sing iZ his life depended on it.
16 Q. So you had one meeting, a lunch mecting with Andrew Nocella
19 and John Gustafscn early in the process, right?
20 A. That's correct.
21 Q. And you testified you received an email from Mz. Nocella in
22 October 2010. 0o you recall that?

23 A. I do.
24 Q. Other than these two direct interactions, you didn't have
25

3455
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course of those negotiations?
A. Mr. Nocella and I spoke on the phone one other tima.
| @. Did Mr. Gross keep you regularly informed of the progress

of the negotiations?

A. He did.
Q. Now I'd like to work a little bit backwards herc and start
with your testimory that when you wrote to Mr. Gross in January
that you were going to take US Airways f°'ing darkx, to use your
language. You were frustrated, right?
A. T was frustrated.
Q. And just to orient ourselves, let's look at PX 125 in
evidence. This is the January 26, 2011 email from you to Dav:id
Gross and Chris wilding in which you said you werce going to
take US Airways f£'ing dark, right?
A. Hold on. 1I'm on the wrong one.

That's correct.
Q. And you said you were going to also make them do a press
release, saying that Sabre had great ancillary capacity, right?
Or capability. Rigat?
A. Yeah, again, this is when, out of nowhere, they've toid us
they're not going to be able to sign a ncew contract, the day
before it's going to expire, and I was frastrated, and so
instead, what we did was send them a 30-day extension and we
eventually signed the new agrecement.
Q. And Mr. Gross agreed that -- he pronised you that he'd get

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300
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1 a good press release fron then, right?

2 A. He says ho'll get it done.

3 Q. Now although you testified that you used this language

9 about your good customer, US Airways, because you were, Guote,
S extraordinarily frustrated, in your words, that type of

6 language is commorplace at Sabre, right? At lcast when you're
7 talking about airlines.

8 A. I don't believe that's true.

9 Q. Well, let's look at just two examples.

10 PX 441 in evidonce. This is the email in July 2009
11 from David Gross to ycu, in which hoe reported to you that he
12 kicked Andrew Nocella square in the balls, right?

13 A. I don't have it in my mind, so, but --

14 Q. Lect's look up here. We'll blow it uvp for you.

15 PX 441. Do you see at the top, David Gross to Greg
16 dobb, "Looks like tney launched the no publicity®"? That's

17 referring to Choice Scats, right?

16 A. I believe that's Choice Seats, yes.

19 2. "So agents may not aeven krow this i{s available on the

20 wcbsite, but as you can sec,® David Gross speaking, "1 have
21 kicked him square in the balls for this."™ Right?
22 A. That's what it says.

23 Q. That's how he was talking about Andrew Nocella, the head of
24 distribution at US Afrways, right?
25

A. He wasn't actually talxing about Mr. Nocella. Ho was using

SOUTHERN D1STRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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it to ke descriptzive.

Q. And let's look at another example. PX 479 in evidence.
This is another of °The Enforcer's,” David Gross's, omails, o
Carter Davis and Chris Wilding. And for the jury's benefit,
Carter Davis was the hcad of Travelocity, right?

A. No.

Q. He was a senior person at Travelocity, wasn’'t he?

A. 1 think he did distribution cortracts. 1'a not sure.
Q. He was at Travelocity?

A. Ho was at Travelocity.

Q. He was involved in the negotiations with US Airways on
behalf of Travelocity, right?

A. 1 don't rccall, but -~

Q. In oany cvent, David Gross wrote to Carter Davla and Chria

Wiiding, ais lieutenant on the US Airways negotiations, ®“Chris,
plecase call John and tell him we are going to effing stick i:
to US Airways if they are even thinking about following
American Airlines.™ Right?

A. He was clearly being very descriptive.

MS. GlULIANELLI: And your Honor, again, wec just
request that thore be actual questions about documents,
especially that Mr. Webb is not on. I thinkx we'll get to see
Mr. Gross too.

THE COURT: And 1 think wo've seen these documents and
woe've heard a line of questiors about language that was used.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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So probative value is slight., So let's move on.

BY MR. FRACKMAN:

Q. The point is that your use of the tezm is not unique among
the Sabrec team when talking about airlines, right?

A. It appecars US Airways made nore than me just frustrated.
Q. Okay. So let's put aside tac language that you guys use at
Sabre when talking about airlines and let's look at the
asserted explanation that {3 for your usc of that term, your
asserted frustration.

You testified that, among other things, you were
shocked when you had received an email from Andrew Nocella just
a few days before that emafl of yours, right?

A. ! didn't reccive i{t. The one that Mr. Gross recceived.
Q. Ycah. So lot's just pull up your testimony for a second.
This is trial testimony, page 3227, line 16. And following.?

MS. GIULIANELLI: Objection. Imprcper impeachment.

THE COURT: 1I'll allow it. You can ask your question.
Q. So you testified that, shortly before your f£'ing dark
email, you were shocked when you learned of an emsil from

Mr. Nocella to Mr. Gross, right?

A. That's correct.

Q. And you said, *l was shocked,® that's your term, "because
wa had been negotiating for at this point ten months, and we
had never had a conversation about a nonfull-content deal.® Do

you sec that?

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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discussion from the beginning.

Q. You knew it was going to be an issuce because you told the
board, in that presentation we just looked at, that full
content was a requiremrent, right?

A. We were negotiating a full content agreemert, the entire
time.

Q. And almost every discussion, almost cvery negotiation,
email, as we're going to see, with US Afrways involved full
content.

A. 1'm sure it was around the definition of full content.

Q. It was around full content becausc you guys viewed Choice
Seats as a violation of your full content agreement, right?
A. We believed Choice Scats was covered in the full content
agreexaent, yes.

Q. And therefore, when US Airways said that they wanted to
distribute Choice Seats on their own website, if Sabre was
unable to do it, you guys believed that was a violaticn of the
full content term, right?

A. We believed that the original full content agreement
included all scats and all inventory and all availobility and
so we would have considered Choice Seata to be part of that.
Q. From May 2010, you guys were negotiating the very term full
content that you said you were shocked M:s. Nocella had raised
in carly January, isn‘'t that right?

A. Again, in 2006 we created a full content agrecemont that we

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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A. I do.

Q. And you said, "We had never had a conversation about
operating on the PCA,°* right?

A. Correct.

Q. "And we had never had a conversation about higher ratcs
associated with a nonfull-content deal.” Right?
A. Yos.

Q. That was your testimony under oath.

So let's look at the first of those. Your expression
of shock that Mr. Nocella had raised a nonfull-content deal,
the reality is that full content was one of the key issues in
dispute between you and US Airways from the beginning of the
rnegotiations, right?

A. The very first conversation I had with Mr. Nocella was
around, beginning with the 2006 agreemert, the full content
provisions, and which was why I was so -~ felt so comfortable
about the initial start of the negotiations.

Q. Well --

A. [ mean, certainly fuvll cortent was in discussion because it
was in discussion as a tradcof{f to price, so I'm sure we were
discussing content, and we were certainly discussing Choice
Seats.

Q. Full content was a critical issue, if not the critical
issue, in the nogotiations with US Airways from the beginning.

A. Certainly we wanted full content, yes. It was part of the

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
{212) 605-0300
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thought would have covered everything ircluding Choice Seats.
US Airways came 20 us in the middle of 2010 and said they
beligved that Choice Seats foll outside that agrecment, and so
certainly what we were doing in the 2010 tire frame was
clarifying what full content mgant and vhat was in and what was
out of that, and so thezre was -- ycs, it was a discussion
because we were trying to clarify the definition of full
contont.

Q. Let me show you PX 113 in evidence.

So if ycu lock at 113 with me, you see this is an
exchange betwecen Jason Toothman and John Gustafson way lkack,
May 20, 2010, early in the negotiations. Do you sce that?

A. 1 do.

Q. And if you look at PX 113, at the bottox of PX 113.1, do
you sce that email from -- do you sce an omail from Toothman to
Gustafson, right?

A. I do.

Q. And that carries over to the second page, PX 113.2, and {f
you go to the second to last paragraph of Mr. Toothman's email,
you 3gcc that way back in May, he was alrcady ncgotiating full
content and parity with Mr. Gustafson.

A. Again, we were trying to clarify where Choice Seats fell.
This entire docurent is a document discussing technical
specifications for how we'd implement Choice Seats, again

trying to get US Airways to move off their one-off solution,

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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1 which we were goirng to svend nillions of dollars to develop 1 get aligned on this initiative,* Choice Seats, "and US Airways
2 that we were never going to be able to use for anybody else <o 2 pursues this current course, it appears that Sabre nay not have
3 move to the industry standard, and this is almost entirely a 3 full contont and parity.® Right?
4 discussion around the technology aspects of that agrcement. 4 A. Yes, he's stating the point that we beliove it's included
S But yes, we were trying to ensure that Choice Seats was 5 in the 2006 agreement.
6 included and documented in the contract beccausce obviously we 6 Q. “®“And that ouicome could hinder our ability to get an
7 kad a dispute about hcw it was categorized in the 2006 ki extension, ® righ:z?
8 agreement. 8 A. We had to get clarity around full -- around Choice Seats in
9 Q. Let me =ry my question again. Fror early on in the 9 order for us to get to a new agreement on full content, yes.
10 r.egotiaticns, as carly as May, US Airways and Sabre were 10 Q. The point is that full cortent was not something that arose
11 regotiating full content and parity because Sabre took the 11 out of the blue in January 2011 because your team had been
12 position that, at a minimum, Choice Seats violated those terms, 12 regotiating it, at a minimum, with respect to Choice Seats,
13 right? 13 since at lcast May, cight montha carliecr, right?
14 A. From the beginning, we wore clarifying whether or not 14 A. W%We had never talked about a8 nonfull content agreement. We
15 Choice Scats would be included in full content. Absolutely. 15 had been clarifying whether or not Choice Seats was included {(n
16 That was part of the discussion. 1€ the previous definition in 2006 or whether we nceded to clarify
17 Q. So that's a yes. that in 2011.
18 A. That was the only componert of full content that we were 18 Q. You knew that full content was not s¢mething that had
19 discussing at that point. 19 arisen ouvt of the blue ir January to cause you such great
20 Q- So that's a ycs to my question. You were discussing full 20 fzrustration as to usce the "f'ing dark" language, becausc David
21 content and parity with US Airways from corly in tho 21 Gross rcported to you back in July that he had spoken with
22 riegotiations, certainly as early as May 2010, as demonstrated 22 Andrew Nocclla and that full content had arisen in that
23 by Mr. Toothman's email, PX 113, right? 23 discussion. Do you recall that?
24 A. We were discussing Choico Geats, yes. 24 A. I don't, but I assume, again, it was around Choice Secats.
25 Q. And in fact, Mr. Toothman said tha:, "If we are unabie to 25 Q. Take a look at 2X 38R in cvidence. This is an exchange of
SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C. SOUTHERN DISTR1CT REPORTERS, P.C.
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1 emails on July 7 and 8, 2010, and at the bottom of PX 381R.1, 1 A. NWhere's that?
2 you gee there's an cemail from David Gross to you? 2 Q. He wrote, Nocella, he said he wanted to distinguish between
3 A. There is. 3 corporate and online. Do you see that, in No. 5?
4 Q. Ard when we go to PX 381R.2, you see the report from David 4 A. I see that.
] Gross to you and Tom Klein about his corversation with Andrew 5 Q. That referred to the fact that US Airvays was pushing back
6 Nocella, right? 6 on distributing to Travclocity, right?
7 A. 1 do. 7 A. I'm not sure about that. It may have becn -- we talked
8 Q. You've seen this before, you remember it, right? 8 about valuc-based pricing with them before, so differing the
9 A. I have. 9 price tased on online or off line. So I'n not sure what this
10 Q. And he reported to you, in July, in case you didn’'t know 10 is referring to.
11 about the Toothmarn-Gustafson correspondence in May, that Andrew 11 Q. Well, in any event, aiter receiving that report from David
12 Nocella said to him, way back in July, "We needed to talk about 12 Gross, you wrote back -- ycu go up, Trevor, you said, “So what
13 full content.” Do you see that? 13 about the pending launch?® That mcans their poending launch of
14 A. Yes. What he's talking about, again, 13 the diuscrepancy of 14 SIoiew SegLE, cagns]d
15 Choice Scats being included in the deZinition in 2006. You can 15 A. Correct.
16 read right there, ho says -~ he said he wants us to scll it so 16 Q. And he responded to you, and you said, at the top of
17 he wants a solutlon that promises flexibility, explain the 381R.2, that Gross and Nocella could continue to have a
18 problem with their business design. I:°s talking about Choice 18 conversation but Toothman should be tellirg his guy, 1 quess
19 Seats. 19 that mean: John Gustafson, we will be going to court in a
20 Q. And that Mr. Gross told him that full content mecant all 20 hurry. Right?
21 contcnt agents necd to serve a3 custcemersd, right? 21 A. If they violated their agreemert.
22 A. That would have been the definition from 2C06. 22 Q. So your view was, what you were saying here, is that
23 Q. And the other issue that he told you about at this time was 23 Toothman should threaten John Gustafson with legal action if US
24 that Andrew Nocella told him that ke didn't want to do a deal 24 Alrways went forward with the launch of Choice Seats, which you
25 that included Travelocity, right? 25 viewed as a violation of the full content agreement, right?
SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C. SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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A. We -- we did believe that it was in violation of the full
content agreement, and of course we never went to court and
they did launch ard we did nothing, and so that's how it
resolved itself, which is a resolution with no resolution, and
then we fixed it in the 2011 agrcement, because full content
was important.

Q. The point is, Mr. Webb, that back ie July you yourself were
engaged in emails with your team about full content as it
applied to the US Airways negotiation. That's what the emails
say, right?

A. It's all about Choice Seats. You can continue to position
it that way, but it was a discussion of Choice Seats. We never
discusscd whether or not full content was in question. 1t was
aerely a question as to how we defined Choice Scats in the new
agreezent.

Q. ¥Mr. Gross used the term full content, right?

A. Because in the two thousand ~--

Q. Answer my question. He used the term full content in the

email report te you, right, Mr. Webb?

MS. GIULIANELLI: Objcction. The witness should be
able to answer.
THE COURT: Sustained.

Q. He -- Mr. Gross used the
THE COURT: Let him finish his answer.

A. He used the term full content because, again, this was a

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
{212) 805-0300
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content, that langquage was repeatedly the subject of theo
negotiation throughout 2010 between Sabre and US Airways,
right?

A. You're going to make me say it again. Because of the 2006
agreement, we had a discrepancy with US Airways around Choice
Seats. Again, this cmail is talkirng about Choice Scats, the
article below it's talking about Choice Seats, every email you
showed Mm@ is talking about Choice Seats. That's all we werc
talking about. That was the only discuss:ion.

Q. This cmail talks about full content. Those are David
Gross's words, right?

A. Yes, because he believed i: included Choice Seats.

Q. And the rext month, in December, David Gross again talked

about full contont in the cmail we just looked at when he 2aid,

"we're going to effing stick it to US Airways,® PX 479. And

just to

MS. GIULIANELLI: Your Horor, this is just getting
repotitive. Cbjection. This is the third time.

THE COURT: I understand. 1°11 allow it.

Ask your one question and then move on.
Q. And just to put this in context, I'm actually not asking
about the language this tise; I'm asking about the content.
This is an email from Gross referercing Delta and US Airways,
do you see that?
A. It's what it says.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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dispute between us and US Airways as to the definition of full
content in the 2006 agreement, which we fixed in the 2011
agreemant, six months after they launched Choice Seats ard we
did nothing.

Q. Full content continued to be the subjecct of negotiations
with US Airways through the fall of 2010, right?

A. Choice Scats was an ongoing discussion.

Q. Not just Choice Seats, full cortent.

A. It was only of -- we never discussed anything other than
Choice Seats in association with full content.

Q. Take a look at PX 285 in eviderce. This is another of
David Gross's emails dated November 23, 2010, in response to an
article about US Airways distributing Choice Scats, and he
wrote at the top, "8S. 7They will give us full content, and
they will give us scats i{n a way that we can sell or they won't
be participating in Sabre at all.” Do you see that?
A. I see. That's what it says.

Q. So again, full content in May in the Toothman email, in
July in your exchange with Mr. Gross, in October — in
November, when David Gross was giving direction to his
lieutenant Chris Kroeger, all of these --

A. Chris Kroeger didn't -- Chris Kroeger was a peer of his arnd
ran product marketing.

Q. All of these used the term full content because full

content, I understand you say limited =5 Choice Seats, but full

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300
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Q. Dated December 8, 2010, right?

A. Yes.

Q- And when he talked about offing sticking it to US Airways,
it was in response to Carter Davis's email below, right?

A. It appears to be.
Q. And the issuc and what Carter Davis was referring to is
the Anerican dispute that was out there at the time, right?

A. I'm not sure, but I don't know what he's referencing.
Q. Wwell, take a look at thc last paragraph, where Mr. Cavis
wrote, "Feels like a lot of people are sitting on the side
watching American Airlines/Orbitz and don't want to move until
that plays out. Do you see that?

A. Yecah, I do.

Q. And that isaue was a full content issue because American
had pulled content, right, from Orbitz?

A. No. American stopped pa-ticipating in Orbitz in its
entirety. It wasn't -- they just stopred working zogether.
Q. So Orbitz did not have American full content, didn't have
any cortent frcm Amorican, right?

A. They dide't have an agreement in place.

Q. You guys had an issue with American over potential direcct
connects, right?

A. I don't recall.

Q. You also viewed that as a violation of full content. don't

you?

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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A. I don't recall.

MS. GIULIANELLI: Objection to other disputes that we
rave.

THE COURT: Suatained.
Q. SO we've seen a number of examples, repcated references o
full content in the ncgotiations between US Airways and Sabre
through all of 2010. So your testimony that you were shocked
that full content camec up again in January, the foliowing
month, seems a little implausible, isn't that a fact?
A. No. I'm shocked you continue to assert that we weren't
talking about Choice Scats. we were talking about Choice
Seats. That's the only thing we talked aococut the entire year
was one product, and that product, whick wc alrcady thought was
included in the choice -~ in the full contcent definition, SO
the only thing we were doing was clarifying language around
Choice Seats, for the entire yecar.
Q. Now you also testified that you were shocked because US
Alirways had raised the possibility of reinstating the PCA
agreement. DO you recall that testimony?
A. Reinstazing. That's the same cmail @I think you're talking
about.
Q. Yeah. Well, yes, it's the same emdil and i{t's the same
testimony you gave. 7That was another reason why you were SO
shocked as to use -- I'm going to take the "f'i{ng darx™

language. Right?

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
{212) 805-0300
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Q. The subject is US, right?
A. 1t is.
Q. And then David Gross £lips it to you on October 28, 2010,
right?
A. Looks like, yup.
MR. FRACKMAN: I offcer PX 120 in cvidence.
MS. GIULIANELLI: WNo obiection.
THE COURY: It°'s admitted.
(Plaintiff’'s Exhibit 120 received in evidence)
Q. So here we are in October, not January, three months later,
but October, and Chris Wilding reports on the discussion he had
with John Gustafson at US Airways, right?
A. Corrcct.
Q. And he rcported that in that conversation Mr. Gustatson
ralsed questions about the possibility of reinstating the PCA
beyond January 20N without a new TMA. Do you see that
sentence?
A. I do.
Q. The third bullet?
A. Ycah, ! scec it.
Q. So in fact, months befcre your reaction in Jonuary 2011,
your team had in fact had discussions with US Airways about
reinstating the PCA. Right?

A. It looks like, from the sentence below that, that what's

happening is, the discussion about extending on the PCA was if
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A. Again, thosec were two separate cvents, but the -- I'm not
sure exactly what it said in the email or what I said about
PCA, but the assusption was that they -- after talking for,
again, ten months about a full content deal, the only
discussion about content being Choice Scats, all of a sudden
them saying, hecy, we'd 1ike to know about not doing a fu.ll
content deal at all, start from scratch.

Q. Your testimony was, "I was shocked because we'd been
regotiating for at this point ten months, we never had a
conversation about operating on the PCA, participating carrier
agreexent . "

A. Correct.

Q. Co you rccall we just looked at that testinony?

A. Correct.

Q. Okay. Well, the fact is that your team had discussed
operating on the PCA with US Airways prior to January 20il.

A. I don't know if theze was a discussion, but there was never
a proposal sent by US Airways that waa anything but full
content. |
Q. Lect me show you PX 120 for identification. 1 don't think
it should be a problem.

A. Thank yot.

Q. So take a look at PX 120 with me, Mr. Webb. DO you sce the

bottom email is from Chris Wilding to Davl!d Gross, right?

A. It is.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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for some reason we weren't done with the deal, we hadn't gotten
to a new deal, and it looks like we're talking about a time |
period, meaning if we weren't done with the negotiation, could

9th afcer the

we —— would we just move to the PCA on the 2
contract expires, and Chris just tzells him, "I told him if
there's a decal to bo done, we should be able to make it happen
before January 28th.'
Q. Well, how about my question? Thrce months before your
expression of shock in January, your team had had a discussion
with Mz. Gustafson at US Airways about =-- I';ma using
Mr. Wilding's words -- the “possibility of reinstating the
PCA.* Do you see that?
A. Yecah. That's just if we didn't get the deal done on time,
could it revert o the PCA.
Q. wWell, the fact is you had a discussion about reinstating
the PCA long before your expressior of surprise in January,
right?
A. Not really.

MS. GIULTANELLI: Objection.
THE COURT: Overruled.
A. Not really.
Q. Now another reason you testified you were so shocked by
Mc. Nocella's January email so as to use that expletive is, I'm
quoting you, "We raever had a conversation about higher rates

associated with a nonfull-content deal.” Do you remenber that

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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1 testimony? 1 double what they were paying, right?

2 A. I'm sure I said that. 2 A. Not sure oxactly, but they‘'re more exponsive.

3 Q. Isn't it a fact that US Airways asked Sabro about rack 3 Q. Wweli, do you have any understarding of what the rack rates
4 rates at least as early as December, right? 4 wore in 20112

s A. I'm not sure. That could have happened. 5 A. 11 don't rocall, but they would have been probably in that
6 Q. And just so that we all krow, rack rates arc the 6 range.

7 nondiscounted, full-price rates that Sabre would charge if an 7 Q. So back in December, long beforo your expresston of shock,
8 airline, if US Airways, refused to provide what, full content? 8 John Gustafson and Chris Wilding had discussion about rack

9 dell, let e ask the queostion differently, becausec you wouldn't 9 rates. Do you recall that?

10 do a deal without full content under any circumstances. But 10 A. No.

11 the rack rate is the nondiscountod rates in your system, right? 11 Q. Let me show you PX 3063, which should be in your binder.
12 MS. GIULIANELLI: Objection to the lawyer preamble, as 12 For iderntificaticn.

13 || opposcd to the question. 13 A. I don't have it.

14 THE COURT: Well, yes, sustained. Just ask the 14 I Q. Okay.

15 question. 15 I A. Oh, waiz, wait. I do. Sorry. It was hidden.

16 Q. Rack rates rofers to the nondiscounted rates in the Sabre 16 Q. So this is an enail exchange between Chris Wilding, on your
17 system, right? 17 team, and Jokn Gustafson, right?

18 A. Yes, rack rates refers to when we’'re unable to negotiate 18 A. It ‘s,

19 for full content and so the discounts don't apply and so 19 Q. tcrated December 7 and 8, 2010, right?

20 there's a higher cost for that. 20 A. It :.s.

21 Q. So they're the nonnegotiated rates or -- and they're higher 21 Q. Ent:tled Contingency, right?

22 than the rates in the TMA agreements, right? 22 A. Yes.
23 A. Gonerally the tradeoff is pricoe for full content, so yes, 23 MR. FRACKMAN: I offer PX 3063 in ovidence.
24 generally those rates are higker. 24 MS. GIULIANELLI: No objection.

25 Q. In the case of the US majors, the rack rates are at leas: 25 THE COURT: 1It's admitted.
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1 (Plaintiff's Exhibit 3063 recoived in evidence} 1 January, as you testified, because your team had discussed

2 Q. So back in carly Decomber, Chris Wilding ard John Gustafson 2 them, had even sent to US Airways the rack rate schedule a full

3 rad discussed rack rato pricirg, right? K] month before, right?

4 A. Yeah, it appears to be. q A. Every proposal we got from US Airways was a full contont

5 Q. And Chris Wilding had sent to Mr. Gustafson the Sabre rack S proposal, so I was shocked that, out of the blue, again, 13

6 rate pricing, which is on PX 3063.2 and 3, right? You 3scc at 6 days before the contract was going to expirc, we got a notc

7 the top there it says rack rate pricing? 7 saying, hey, we'd like to start from scratch. Yes, I'm still

8 A. I see that. 8 shocked.

9 Q. So at a minimum, a full month beforec your cxpression of 9 Q. Your testimony -- well, you don't look like the type of man
10 surprise, shock, that the rack rate issue had arisen, the 10 that gets shocked very casily, Mr. Webb. You were prosident of
11 partios had in fact discussed rack rates, right? 11 tho Travel Network.

12 A. Yeah. 1 wasn’t included on this email, but it's very 12 A. Thank you.
13 clecarly titled Contingency; in case we didn’'t get the deal done 13 Q. Your testimony, ®"We ncver had a conversation about higher
14 || by the 28™™ of January, what would happen, how would we still 14 || rotes associated with the nonfull-content deal,” s falsc
15 have a relationship without having a new contract. 15 bocause your tecam had exchanged rack rate information a month
16 Q. So contrary to your testimony, Sabre had in fact had 16 earlier, right?
17 conversations about rack rates prior to January 2010, when you 17 A. For contingency planning vurposes.
18 said the topic shocked you, right? 18 “ THE COURT: Mr. Frackman, let's nove on. You've asked
19 A. We had never had a -- any negotiation around operating in a 19 this question 17 different ways. He's answered it. The jury
20 nonfull content agreement, none. 20 gets your point. And let's move on.
21 Q. So, but what about ay question? 21 Q. Now in fact, Sabrec had threatered US Airways with rack rate .
22 A. Yes, therc i3 a contingency plan. Both emails you showed 22 pricing if US Airways did not agrco to a doal with Travelocity
23 me were contingency, in case tho deal didn't got done on the 23 months earlier, right?
24 2gth of January. 24 A. T°'m not sure what the discussion was arcund Travelocity. |
25 Q. So you couldn't have becn shocked that rack rates arose irn 25 Q. Take a look at Defendant's =xhibit 392, which is the
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version of this correspondence that Ks. Giulianelli used so I'm
using it for the same purpose, and -~
A. 392?
Q. Yeah. And take a look at DX 392.2 and 3.

This is an email from Chris Wilding to John Gustafsor
dated Deceaber 20, 2010, right?
A. Yes.
Q. And he set forth four different pricing scenarios for US
Airways, right? Take a ook at 392.3.
A. Yos, just give me a second. It's a long email.

THE COURT: Is this {n evidence?

MR. FRACKMAN: VYes, it is, your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. FAACKMAN: Could you -- I asgsumed it was in
evidence because Ms. Giulianelli used it. 1If pot

MR. MacNALLY: It's in evidence.
BY MR. FRACKMAN:
Q. Are you with me at 392.37?
A. 1 an.
Q. So Mr. wilding scnt to Mr. Gustafson four options on
pricing if a signed agreement had not beon reached, right?
A. Ycah, this is, again, the kind of zhe scenario planning of,
depending on where the negotiations are, what contingency would
happen if we weren't done by the Zeth of January.

Q. And in scenario 2, he refers to rack rate effective

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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3481

Gbslsab2 wWebb - Cross

A. Rack rate for a period, it looks like.
Q. And scenario 4 is the scerario if there's no agrcement with
the Travel Network and no agreement with Travelocity, right?
A. Yeah. We haven't agreed on a rew relationship so we
wouldn’t work together anymore.
Q. Under that circumstance you would take them f'ing dark.
That's what it says here. Sabre will not extend beyond
termination date, right?
A. If we didn't --

MS. GIULIANELLI: Objection. I don't belicve the
document says that.

THE COURT: Well, he's asking a Guestion.

You may andwer.

No speaking objoctiorna, please. Go ahead.
A. Ycah, this is just —- neither -- neither -- wc don't agrec
with US Airways on a new contract and Travelocity doesn't agree
with them on a new contract and so we no longer have an
agreement.
Q. Az of January za‘h, US Airways would be dark in Sabre,
right?
A. Wc would no longer have a contract. :'d no longer have the
right to distribute their content.
Q. Well, they could give you the righ:, but you wouldn‘t,
right?

A. Well, they'd have to sign a new contract to give rme the

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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January 28, right, second paragraph under the scenario 2?
A. Yes, let me just --

Yeah, this was -- effectively says that if we weren't
done with the agreements, we'd go rack rate pricing. As soon
as we s:gned the agreements, then we would rcbate the money,
the differcence back for the timc period that they were
operating on the PCA. This was just to give us a contractual
structure to continue to operatc.

Q. And scenario 3 alsd reforred to rack rates, right?

A. Yes, that's correct.

Q. And wha: you said -- what he said here was that if you had
an agreement on distribution with US Airways on distribution
for the Travel KRetworx, that is, tho GCS, you had a signed term
sheet, but if US Airways did not agree to distribute through
ravelocity, you would take them o the rack rate, right?

A. Not sure exactly what —— how this was supposed to work.

Not terribly clear to me. But it appears that if

Travelocity, not agreed -- yoah, just this one says that it
looks l:ke we wouvldn®t -- we wouldn't be rebating the corpcnent

back if they didn't sign a dcal with Traveclocity, so during the
time period that we were operating on the PCA, then wo'd
eventually move 0 the new contract terass on the Sabre period,

but that we wouldn't rebate back.

Q. S9 there would be rack rate unless there was an agreecent

on Travelocity as well, right?

SOUTHERN O1STRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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right, so I --

Q. Exactly. Now your threat to take US Airways dark unless it

agreed to your terms -- full content, parity, Travelocity --

was not something that arose for the first timeé in your now
belabored email of January when yotu were shocked, right?

A. Yeah.

Q. This was a cornstant theme throughout the negotiations.

A. First of all, I didn't say any of those things in January
based on any of that. I said -- I sent that frustration email

becausc we got, the day before the contract was terminating, a
reed to exterd for 30 days bocauso, for the first time in 11

months, I heard that they had to get board approval for the

decal and they weren't gqoing to be able to do that for a full 28

days fcom the tise wo 3igned the controact, and so I was, again,
rustrated, and, again, we sent them a 30-day extcension about

an hour later. At the current pricing.

Q. You made it clear months carlier that unless US Airways

reached an agreerent with Travolocity, there would be no deal

with the GOS, right?

A. 1 don't recall.

Q. Take a look at PX 148 for identification. This i3 an

October 25, 2010 cmail from you to Tom Klcin and Sam Gilliland

and Hugh Jones. Are you with me?

A. T an.

MR. FRACKMAN: I offer PX 148 in evidence.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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MS. GIULIANELLI: No objection.
THE COURT: 1It's admitted.

{Plaintiff's Exhibit 148 received in evidence)
Q. So the bottor enail here is an email from Carter Cavis, who
was tho managing director, airline relations at Travelocity at
the time, right?
A. VYes.
Q. And he was updating Hugh Jones and others about the
negotiations between Travelocity and US Airways, right?
A. Yos. Iz appeacs US Airways terminated the contract.
Q. And that Hugh Jones flipped that to you, right?
A. He did.
Q. And you reported to the chairman of Sabre, Sam Gilliland,
and the president, Tom Klein, tha: you had told US Airways,
quote, that they had to reach agreement with Travelocity or no
Travel Network deal. Right?
A. That's what it says,

THE COURT: Are you ncaring the end?

MR. FRACKMAN: 1I°'d say maybe ten minutes.

THE COURT: 1It's our brcak time, so why don't we take
our break, and we'll be back in 15 minutes. Thank you.

THE DZPUTY CLERK: All rise.

(Jury not present)

THE COURT: Okay. We're adjourned for 15 minutes.

(Recess)

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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(Jury present)

THE COURT: All right. You may be seated.

Mr. Frackman, you've made your fifteen minutes into
five, right? Or your ten minutes into five.

MR. FRACKMAN: Let's see how good I an. Let's go for
it.

THE COURT: All right.
BY HR. FRACKMAN:
Q. So Mr. Wekb, we were just looking at PX 148, your cmail
where you said that unless US Airways agzeed to do a decal with
Travelocity, there would be no deal with the Travel Network,
right?
A. That's -- it pays that wc told them gsomething -- it says we
told them that.
Q. That's your email.
A. It {is.
Q. So that wasn't the first time or the only time that you
threatened US Airways with either agrecing or being out, right?
A. 1 didn't threaten US Airways,
Q. Woll, you told thea that if they didn't agrec on a deal
with Travelocity, they would be out, right?
A. That's explaining, that's not threatening.
Q. You recall you testified on direct about the proposal that
you reccived from US Airways in October 2010?
A. Yeos, we did.
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{In open court; jury not present)

MS. ROBSON: Your Honor, while ve're waiting, we have
met and conferred on two video plays, and we have the
objecticns ard counterdaesignations here.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEPUTY CLERK: Jury enterirg.

(Cortinued on next page)

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
{212) 805-0300

Sabr-Transcript-000006283

3486

Gbslsab2 Webb - Crosas

Q. And the next day after receiving that proposal, you
terminated, you gave notice of termination, right?

A. Yes. Normal course of business.

Q. And David Gross told you, in response to that proposal from
US Airways, that he was going to tell US Airways that they had
to make it better or they would be out, in January, right?

A. I don't recall.

Q. Take a look at 2X 118 in evidence. 1I'm sorry, 118.

MR. FRACKMAN: Your Honor, there's a rodacted version
of this that was adnmitted. I'm going to offer the full
document. Tell you the truth, I can't reoerber why we redacted
it. 1It's a long time ago. But, counsel?

Le: me just lay the foundation in any ovent.

Q. So Mr. Wcbb, you scc this is an cmail £rom David Gross to
you on October 15, 2011, right?
A. I sec it.

(Continued on next page)
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BY MR. FRACKMAN:
Q. And he was passing on to you the notice of termination that
Chris Wilding had sent to Mr. Gustafson earlicr that day,
right?
A. Yes, it appears that's what it was,.

MR. FRACKMAN: I offer PX 118, your Honor.

THE COURT: Any objection?

MS. GIULIANELLI: No cbiection.

THE COURT: 1It's admitted.

(Plaintiff's Exhibit 118 received in evidence)
Q. So Mr. Gross told you, after receiving the US Airways
proposal, that he was going to tell Mr. Gustafson that the
offer 138 not anything we can work with, and he will have to try
again or be tecrmirated in January, right?
A. He is just merely pointing out what would happen if we
didn't get to a new agreement. And he says, I don't consider
this to be a serious offer. I'm going to tell John that it's
not anything we can work with, and they need to try again or it
will be terminated because we already sent termination.
Q. You sent a notice of termination and unless US Airways
agreed to your terms, that termination would become effective.
right?
A. Unless we Jjoirntly agrecd on a rew deal.
Q. And one of the things they had to ag-ee to was full

content, right?

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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would tell them that they would be out, he ropeated it in
Noverber: They will give us full contert and they will give us
seats in a way we can sell or they won't be participating in
Sabre at all. Right?

MS. GIULIANELLI: Objection. Sare document. Same
questions.

TEE COURT: Why are we doing this again?

MR. FRACKMAN: We are doing it for a different
purpose. We are doing it for the point that the threat to take
US Airways dark was

THE COURT: So asx your question.
Q. Your threat o terminate US Airways, unless US Airways
agrced to your termd, was a long-standing threat, right?
A. I never threatened US Airways, nor did the team. This {is,
again, an internal document talking about the fact that Lf we
didn‘'t get Choice Seats -- this ts again a Choice Seats
conversation, and if we didn't get to a new agreeaent, they
wouldn't be a participant in Sabre.
Q. And David Gross raised this with you again in January. He
raised the question of, Don't we have to at least :tecll US
Airways that unless they agree, they will be out of Sabre?

Do you recall that?
A. I don't.
Q. Take a look at PX 124 for identification.

MS. GIULIANELLI: Objection, your Honor. This is the

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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A. 1It's what we had been discussing was a full content deal.
Q. That was a regquirement, as you told the board of directors,
right?
A. It was part of what we had been negotiating the entire
time.
Q. Well, iz was a requirement?

THE COURT: We have been over and over and over again.
He has already said what he said. Let's move on.
Q. In Novemder, as we saw earlier, David Gross said that
unless US Airways gives full content, they will be out, they
won't ke participating in Sabre at all. Do you recall that
e-nail we looked at earlier?
A. 1 dcn't, but if we didn't have a ncew agreement, then they
couldn®t participate.
Q. That's PX 285 in cvidence. Llet's just look briefly at
that.

This an c-mail o David Gross to Chris Kroeger,
Novesber 23, 20107?

MS. GIULTANELLI: Objection. Thia is the same
docusent.

MR. FRACKMAN: It's not this one.

MS. GIULIANELLI: This is at least the third tipe.

THE COURT: Let's scce what it is.
Q. That's what David Gross said -- not only did David Gross

tell you that in Octobez, that US Airways would be out, that he

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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exact document that raises the "other disputes® issue on the
MIL.

THE COURT: What is the exhibit number?

MR. FRACKMAN: PX 124.

THE COURT: I3 it in cvidence?

MR, FRACKMAN: It is not in evidence.

This has to do with US Airways.

THE COURT: OK. Could I see itz

HR. FRACKMAN: I'm sorry.

THE COURT: Thank you.

THE WITNESS: You bet.

MS. GIULIANELLI: The objection is that questioning on
this document would require & full inquiry --

THE COURT: 1 understand.

Overruled. 1It's admitted.

(Plaintiff's Exhibit 124 received in evidence)
BY MR. FRACKMAN:
Q. FMr. Webb, ot the bottom here there ia an e-mail from David
Gross to you on January 12, 201t, righs?
A. It is.
Q. The subject is US Airwaya, right?
A. It is.
Q. He raised wizh you the following questicn: Don't we need
to tell them, and mean i{t, that {f we don't have at least a3

term sheet agreement on &8 new deal, or rack rate if no
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Travelocity deal, they will be out of Sabre?

Do you recall that?
A. I see that's what it says.
Q. Up above therce was laughter, internal laughter between
David Gross and you and Wildirg, because david Gross said -- if
you look at thc zop paragraph -- "It wor't takc long if they go
dark from Sabre," right?

"Iz won't take long if they go dark from Sabre."
Right?
A. That's not in reference to US Airways.
Q. So let mec go to another document.

In addition to threatening --

THE COURT: Another document.

MR. FRACKMAN: VYes.
Q. In additzion to thrcatening to take US Airways darx or
terminating them, you quys also throatened to go to the travel
agents abou: the dispute, right?
A. Again, we never threatened US Airways.
Q. Take a look at PX 120 in evidence, We looked at this
before. This is an c-mail froa David Gross to you, dated
Octoder 28, 2010, forwarding ar e-mail from Chris Wilding to
David Gross, updating David Gross on Chris Wilding's discussion
with John Gustafson that afternoon. Do you recall that?
A. I don't recall it.
Q. We just looked at it a little while ago.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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David Gross to you and Mr. Wilding on January 12, 2011,

Sorry. For identification. Just take a loox at it
first.

This {s an e-mail from David Gross to you, right?
A. Yes.

MR. FRACKMAN: I offer PX 669 in evidence.

MS. GIULIANELLI: No objection.

THE COURT: It's admitted.

(Plaintiff's Exhibit 669 rccoived in evidence)
Q. What Mr. Gross told you on January 12, "It msy be time to
tell US Airways we need a coordinatod plan to communicate with
travel agents that US Airways may be out.™ And this is his
languagec: “Put the heat on." Right?
A. Again, it looks like wo wanted to coordinatc a plan with US
Alrways. 1It's 17 days before the contract torminates and there
is a potential that thoy will no longer participate.
Q. You wanted to put the heat on US Airways in the
negotiations., That's what Mr. Gross wrote to you, right?
A. I didn't write it. And as you can see, we werc looking for
a coordinatcd plan, not us doing gomcthing on sur own. We
wvanted to talk with US Airways, jointly go tell customers there
is a chance we arc not going to get to a new contract.
Q. You want tho jury to believe that a coordinated plan would
put heat on?

A. I an asking you to read tlre document. It says we need a
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!f yos look at the fourth bullet.
A. Yes, I see iz.
Q. Wilding reports to G-oss that you had not yet "advised® our
custoxers that there i{s a rcal possibility that US Airways
won't be in Sabre¢ after January 28. Can you see that?
A. I scc it.
Q. And that he told ¥r. Gustafson that, although you hacn't
done it yet, you were going to have to do it soon, right?
A. Yeah. This is, again, our customers nceded to know that
there was a potential that we wouldn't be able to come to a new
agreexerit. So that if they wero making bookings on US Airways,
that on January 28 those bookings woald no longer be available
g0 it was going 0 be difficult. So as in all of these, I am
sure US Airways was going to prcpare to tell the customers the
sane thing.
Q. You viewed going to the travol agencics as a form of
leverage in the negotiations, isn‘'t that right?
A. No. We had to communicate with travel agencies that there
was a potential US Airways would no longer participate in the
systea.
Q. You viewed it ag a way to put heat on US Airways?
A. I viewed it as a necessary communication to our travel
agencies® custcoers that they might not be a participant in the
systen.

Q. Take a look at PX 669 in cvidence. This is an e-mail fronm

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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coordinated plan to comswunicatae.

Q. Mr. Webb, we have looked at a lot of documents rolating to
the 2010 negotiations with US Airways from your board
presentation in February through January, almost a full year,
right?

A. That's correct,

Q. There i3 not a refcrence in any of them suggesting that
losing US Airways, terminating US Airways, taking them £'ing
dark, putting them out of the system, would be a problem for
Sabre, isn‘'t that a fact?

A. Ask that again.

Q. There is not a raoferenco in any of zhe documents that we
looked at today sugqesting that Sabre terminating US Airwaya
would be a problem for Sabrec, right?

A. Well, as I mentioned before, from the very first
conversation with Mr. Nocella until January 14, wo had made
significant progress toward arn agreement, and I assume that wo
would have ar agreemont with US Airways that was a full content
agreement.

Q. How about my question. There i3 not a single rcference in
any of these documents suggesting that losing US Alrways, onc
of ycur big four custcaoers in the US., would be a problem for
Sabre?

A. I have no idea.

Q. we didn't see onc today, right?

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORIERS, P.C.
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1 A. We only saw your documents today. 1 THE COURT: So you have asked that twice.

2 Q. It wasn't in your board presentation at the beginning of 2 Q. suggasting that it would be "like death" to Sabre to

3 the year, right? 3 lose US Airways?

q A. That was a stratogy document, no. 4 MS. GIULIANELLI: Objection. Asked and answerec.

5 Q. You didn't tell the board that you guys werc at risk as a S THE COURT: Svstained.

6 business if you lost any ono of your big US carricer clients, 6 Q. You testificd on direct that it would be devastating to

7 right? 7 lose one cf your major air carrier clients. Remember that?

8 A. Not in that document, but I have prcsented that a number of 8 A. 1 do. It would be.

9 tines to the board and others. 9 Q. There is not a reference in any of these documents.

10 Q. It's not in your board presentation, right? 10 including your bearc prescntation, referring to the loss of US
11 A. Because that was a strict negotiation strategy for the 11 Airways as being devastating to Sabre, right?

12 year. 12 A. Not in these documents.

13 Q. If it were an important issue, you would have informed the 13 Q. Your testimony about it being ®"devastating®” or "like death”
14 board, right, alorng with the rest of your strategy for the 14 to Sabre in loaing one of your airline clients is swdo up for
15 regotiaticns? 15 this litigaszion, just like your tostimeny about two-sided

1€ A. We weren't at a point whore I thought it was a problem yet. 16 markets, right?
17 Q. There is not a word suggesting tha: US Airways .eaving 17 A. Absolutely not. It would be devas:tating to lose a US air
18 Sabre would be, To use your tostimony, like death to Sabre? 18 carrier. As you pointed out earlier this morning, they make up
19 A. I don't know. 19 S0 percent of our total bookings.
20 Q. We didan‘t see it, right? 20 Q. Not important cnough to bring to the board’s attention in
21 A. We oniy saw your documents toddy. 21 February, right?
22 Q. These are your documents, nct aine, Mr. Webb. It's your 22 THE COURT: OK. Let's move on.

23 board presontaticn. It's not there. 23 MR. FAACKMAN: I pass tho witness.
24 THE COURT: Wwhat is the question? 24 THE COURT: Thank you.
25 Q. There is not a word in any of thesc docuxents 25 {Cortinued on next page)
SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C. SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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1 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 1 from us to another GDS or another distribution partnor. So it
2 BY MS. GIULIANELLI: 2 would be devastating.
3 Q. Almost there. 3 Q. ¥r. Frackman was just asking you about this board
q A. Good morning. | presentation that you gave going into the negotiations and
5 Q. Wo just ended on the irportance of content to Sabre, and 5 whether or not you said anything in this board prescntation
6 Mr. Frackman agked you about Plaintiff's Exhibit 69i1. And 6 about the importance of content.
7 that's the Book of Numbers -- I'm sorry, 6911, I believe it was 7 So I am going to show you a page that Mr. Frackman did
8 I, and that's the Bocx of Numrbers. 8 rot ask you about. This is page 13 of Plaintiff's EZxhibit 197.
9 1 had written 6911, and it looks like 6911. 9 Do you see that bullet there that says, “Parity
10 Do you remember being asked about the Book of Numbers? 10 continues to be critical to maintaining relcvance.” Wwhat does
11 A. 1 do. 11 that mean?
12 Q. He asked you about the four airlines, the four top airlines 12 A. Yecah. In order for us to have the content that is
13 in tcerms of the percentage of bookingsa? 13 important to agencies to service their custonmers, the thing
14 A. Yes, I rccall. 14 that they have come to expect from having an cfficiont,
15 Q. I8 US Adirways included in one of these top fcur major US 15 effective way to sell to their corporate customers is around
16 legacy carriers that make up over 50 percent of Sabre's oveérall 16 parity, and it's around the fact that we have full content that
17 bookings? 17 gives them competence to tell the end traveler that they have
18 A. They aro. 18 done their best job servicing them as a travel agency.
19 Q. How does it affect Sabre if any one of them pulied content 19 Q. Is this somothing you told the board in the document that
20 out of Sabre? 20 Mz. Fracknman was just asking you about?
21 A. We would no longer have the sa=e level of value to our 21 A. It is3.
22 travel agency customers. It would be impossible for them to 22 Q. Moving on to the negotiations and some of the documents wc¢
23 continue to service corporate customers in a way that is 23 kave just seen during the negotiations with US Airways for the
24 efficient and effective. They would have to find another way 24 2011 deal, you were asked about Plaintiff's Exhibit 497 first.
25 to do that, and most likoly that means they would move business 25 And in this exhibit, you were asked about tho e-mail from
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Mr. Gross at the top there?
A. Yes.
Q. Wwhere Mr. Gross says that US Airways will have "no plate
pulling” in the deal. What docs :that mean?
A. 1t ncans that we had asked US Airways for a provision in
the contract where they wouldn't pull plates of our travel
agencics, and that included Travelocity, neaning that snce we
signed a ncw deal, thoy wouldn't terminate the rclationship
that they had, from an airline point of view, with our
custorers.
Q. I am told that I said 497 and it's actually Exhibit 479.

In fact, did Sabro end up getting tho term with
respect to no plate pulling in the negotiations?
A. ¥We did not,
Q. <Cid Sabrc take US Airways dark as a result of that?
A. No, of course not.
0. You were also asked about Exhibit 285, and this is the
exhibit with respect to -- sce there you were asked about
Mr. Gross's e-mail at the top?
A. § wag.
Q. And you were asked about the sentence that 3ays, "They will
give us content ard they will give us seats in a way that we
can sell or they won't be participating in Sabre at all.”®

Do you seec that?

A. I do see that.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212} 805-~0300
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wo sent thom a 30-day extension to give them time to get board
approval.
Q. Was US Airways taken dark?
A. No.
Q. Then Mr. Gross says, “"We will get a good press releaso.”
Was there a press rclcasc tha: came out?
MR, FRACKMAN: I think we are getting into the leading
again.
Q. Wwhat, if anything, was issued by US Airways after this
e-mail?
A. I don't recall.
Q. Then you were asked about full content and whether or not
it was in dispute or whether or not you were neqotiating for
full contont in the 2010 to ‘!l negotiations.
I want to show you the e-mail that Mz. Frackman
showed, Plaintiff's Exhibit 113.
Do you remember being asked absut this?
A. I do.
Q. I am going to show you the sentconce that Mr. Gusta¢son
writes that you were nat asked about.
What does Mc. Gustafson say to Mr. Gross there in the
sccond varagraph of his May 20 e-mail?
A. This is exactly what I mentioned before, which is we had
boen talking about full content agreement from the beginning.

So this is just Mr. Gustafson clarifying: °“Let me be clear as

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300
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Q. What are the seats that is being referenced?
A. This was again about -- almost all of these e-mails that we
saw aro again about Choice Scats, and the discussion around
rewriting the 2006 agreenent to include Choice Seats, along
with the other full content provisions, as well as the bigger
discropancy, which we had throughout the entire process, which
was around how we were going to build ocut the technology and
the technical specifications for Choice Seats, because, again,
US Airways wanted to implement it in a different way than other
airlines that we were implemernting anciliaries, and so we were
concerned about the costs.
Q. How did Sabre end up implementing the Choice Seats?
A. Wwec spent about $3 =million to implement it the way US
Airways wanted it.
Q. You were asked about this e-mail, this other e-rmail
aultiple times that you wrote.

Mr. Gros3s says first of all, after you sont this
e-r1ail on Jaruary 26, what happened?
A. I called Mr. Wilding and told him that we needed to go
ahcad and ~- again, we were already done with the agrcements
for the most part. This was merely about when we were going to
sign the agreement, and it was the day before it was to expire,
and they told us that they needed another 30 days for their
board to approve it. And as I mentioned, I was frustrated, but
I called Mr. Wilding and had him send a 30-day extension. So

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300
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possible. US is willing to provide Sabze access to full

content at parity with other distribution partners. The choice
as to whether or rnot to access such full content is entirely
yours.”

Again, this was a discuvasion around how we would
access their Choice Scats product. So it mcant how would we
build out the technology to access the Choice Seats product,
because, again, they were doing it completely differcnt from
the way everybody else was doing it.

Q. What was your understanding of the statement that says, "US
is willing to provide Sabre access to full content at parity
with other distribution partners*?

MR. FRACKMAN: Objcction, your Honor.

THE COURT: I will allow it.

A. To mec this was just again another data point that we were
negotiating a full content desl. There wasn't going to be a
question of whether or not US Airways was going to pull
content. In fact, from tho beginning, we had been discussing
absut how to fix the 2006 agreement to include Choice Seats so
there was no discrepancy between the way that we and US Adirways
looked at content. So it's just another access point of where
I thought the negotiations were going quite well for a full
content agreement.

Q. T am showing you Cefendants' Exhibit 2540, which is in
evidence. Ard this is an internal US Airways document that was

SOUTHERR DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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shown earlior. The subjoct of this documont is 2011
distribution goals.
A. Yes, 1 see that.
Q. Wece you here when this document was introduced into
evidence?
A. [ was.
Q. Moving down to the goals there, it says, "Negotiate and
sign GDS full content agrcements.”

Is that consistent with the way US Airways was acting
in the negotiations with Sabre?
A. Yes. Like I said, we had very good ncgotiations around a
full content agreement. There were a number of other terms
that we talked about. There wero things we wanted, therse were
things they wanted in the agzeerent. In sorme cases they got
sone, in some cases we did. But, generally, we never were
rcally discussing anything but a full content agreement.
Q. Then you were asked by Mr. Frackman about Plaintiff's
Exhibit 120 here, and this is, just to make it clear where we
are in terms of the time frame, an Octcber 28, 2010 e-mail that
you worc asked about. Do you scec that?
A. I do.
Q. Looking at the second paragraph therc, what does
Mr. wilding say with rospect to what the impasse was with US
Airways?

A. 1It's what it had been for the most part of a negotiation.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTIERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300
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business unit to us at that time. So putting pressure on
Travelocity also put prossure on our Travel Network deal. So
in kind of tho October time frame, they tcrminated the
Travelocity agreement. So they sent notice of termination to
Travolocity in the October time frame.

Q. Wwhat would the impact have been to Travelocity £ US
Airways no longer participated in {t?

A. Similar to what wculd happen to a GDS. If you're an onlire
travel agent that has a large US carrier that does significant
volure on the OTAs, it would be very damaging to the online
travel agency in the marcket.

Q. Wwhat would the impact have been to Sabre if US Alrways no
longer participatod in itas unit Travelocity?

A. It would have been significant -- both in terms of
significant to Travelocity, obviously, it would be very
difficult for Travelocity to coapete against the othor strong
OTAs, Expedia and Orbitz and others. But we would have also
lost those bookings, as Travelocity used Sabre as its GDS. So
we would have lost che underlying bockirgs in the Travel
Network busircss as well.

Q. You were asked about Plaintiff's Exhibit 118 and the c-mail
that Mz. Gross wrote to you on October 14 with respect to the
term sheet that Sabre had received from US Airways.

A. Yes.

Q. Co you remomber that?

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300
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We disagreed on price, because you always disagree on price
vntil it gets clcse to thoe end. So we were disagreeing on
pricce ard on the term. Wo wanted a longer term during a period
of the negotiation, US Airways wanted a shorter tern, and then
those kind of bourced araund a bit.
Q. what was your perspestive with regpect to the price that
Sabro offered to US Alirways?
A. 1 thought we had given them a grea: deal, actually, at that
point, but I rcalized that at some point we might have to give
a iittle more on price in order to close the deal, which is
what I think we ultimately did.
Q. You mentioned that there was a discussion about term. What
does term mean?
A. Tezm i3 the link of the contract. So we had a diacussion
around how long the new contract would go.
0. Moving o Travelocity, you were asked sone questions about
Travelocity during the 2010 negotiations?
A. I was.
Q. Who owned Travelocity?
A. Sabre.
Q. You were asked about Plairtiff’'s Exhibit 148 with respect
to Travelocity.

what did US Airways do with respect to the Travelocity
contract?

A. They realized early on that Travelocity was an important

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300
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A. 1 do.

Q. I can show you the term sheet if you want to see it, but ny
question is, wha: did the term sheet that Sabre received from
US Airways say about contont?

A. It was a full conteant agreement. Again, thc negotiations
had gotten scrious around price and term and some of the
technical pieces for Choice Seats. So this is a little bit of
them -- in their full content proposal, tney kind of staked oct
on price relatively low, which is why Cavid is saying it looks
like it's a non-workable starting position. But, again, it
wasn't on full ccrtent. There was never a discussion of full
content in that term sheet. It was a full content deal.

Q. Wwhat did you understand Mr. Grosds to be rcferencing when he
said the proposal was not scrious?

A. I think that's what ho oxpressed to Andrew or to John.
Look, you can't throw something over the wall that doesn't move
the ball forward at all toward getting to the resolution. So 1
think he was just trying to point out to US Airways that we
reeded sormething that was a little closer to where we thought
we wculd end up around price and terms and gsome of thosc
thingsy.

Q. You were asked about the terminaticn notice that Sabre secnt
to US Airways, and I am showing you what is in evidence as
Defendants' Exhibit 138. Were you here when this document was

intrcduced?

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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1 A. I was. 1 asked.

2 Q. This is an internal US Airways e-mail from Kr. Gustafson to 2 Do you recall this question from last Tuesday where

3 Mr. Nocella sent on June 3, 201.? 3 Mz. Frackran was asking you about scce of the Departmoent of

4 A, Correct. 4 ransportation's findings?

) Q. s you sec that it's talking about strategy with respect to 5 A. 1 do.

(3 termination followed by negotiatiorn? € Q. what were you trying to cxplair when you said the DCT also

7 A. I do. This is exactly it, and I think even Mr. Gustafson 7 said that over a period of time this finding with respect to

8 montioned it before. Therc was the need for either of us to 8 market pover would go away and that's exactly what happoned and

9 terminate the agreement or it would just roll forward. So 9 I why prices wont down for the airlires over the next deccace?

10 therc was a need for onc of us to send a teramination notice. 10 A. VNo ratter how you think about it, despite what they put in
11 So this is, I assume, similar with what they were doing with 12 the deregulation component, they decided that the industry no

12 Travelport ard what they were going to do with us. 12 longer reeded to be regulated. Again, the real rcason for
13 Q. When you saw this c-mail from Mr. Guastafson that said, "We 13 regulation carly on was becausc we were airline owned, 8o they
14 " did not notify the board we were irtending to terminate Sabre 14 were concerned about the influence that airlines would have
15 (they beat us to it}," what was your reaction? 15 || over distribution. So ultimately they decided, once we vere
16 A. I wasn't surprised. That's exactly what I would have 16 all not ovned, that there was no reason for us to be regulated
17 expocted, which is both of us werc going to send termination 17 anymore. And so what happened was, and as you have secn on
18 notices beforc the agrecmont automatically renewed. 16 several slides, over the last decade prices for airlines
19 Q. Now we arc going to move back five days to some of the 19 distributing through the GDSs have gone down.

20 questions you were askcd last week so bear with me, 20 Q. I would like to show you Plaintif€'s Exhibit 7, which you
21 Going back to some of the questions, ond just as o 21 were asked about in conrection with these questicns. This is
22 reninder that Mr. Frackman asked last week, rcgarding the 22 from the Department of Transportation's final rule from 2004,
23 Department of Transportation's conclusions when it deregulated 23 the same exhibit that Mr. Frackman showed you.
24 GDSs. And since we have had Thanksgiving and it has been five 24 Looking at page 7 -- actually, it's page 978, column
25 days, I would like to reorient you about the question you were 25 | 1, you scc there it says, "Ending the broad regulation of CRS
SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C. SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300 (212) 805-0300
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1 practices will enable each system and each airline to bargain 1 questions about this demonstrative and whether it showed ==

2 I over the terms on which CRS services should be provided.” 2 THE COURT: You mean Plaintiff's Exhibit 1090.

3 A. I do. That's exactly what has happened and the reason that 3 MS. GIULIANELLI: I have a trouble reading nunbers.

4 prices have gone down. 4 Q. And whether Plaintiff's Exhibit 1090, whether it showed

5 MR. FRACKMAN: 1 actually don't think there was a ) Sabre's market share had gotten bigger sincc deregulation?

¢ || question pending. 6 || A. He did ask me that. It has.

1 Q. I was going to ask the question, but the gquestion was -- 7 Q. What data is included in this demonstrative?

THE COURT: That's all right. He has answered it 8 . This is airlire bookings only.

9 already. 9 Q. Coes this includc data from other channcls other than GDSs?
10 Q. Turning to the last sentence there in the call out, it 10 A. I don’'t believe so. Keep in mind that the GDSs sell less
11 says, "The resulting terms under which the airlines and travel 11 than 50 percent of the total tickets. We certainly wouldn't
12 agencies obtain services will likely reflect the interests of 12 have that kxind of market share if it included airline direct or
13 both sides better than if we maintained broad regqulations 13 any of thoose. So this is GDS only.

149 restricting the parties’ bechavior.® 14 I Q. Has Sabre's share of overall bookings, if you include all
15 My question is, what is your understanding of who the 15 | channels, gore up or down since deregulstion?
16 DOT was referring to when it said "both sides"? 16 A. 1It's gono down since deregulation. The total bookings morc
17 MR. FRACKMAN: Objection. 17 go direct to the airline.
18 || THE COURT: I will allow it. 18 Q. Turning back to Plaintiff's Exhibiz 7, looking at page 10
19 A. 1 think airlines and travel agencies, it’'s again the 19 of that, turning back to the DOT staterents that Mr. Frackman
20 || discussion of, the whole nctwork otructurc only works if all 20 asked you about, there it says, "fFurthermore, airlines are
21 parties involved arc working cffectively jointly to deliver a 21 selling an increasingly large share of their ticxets thzough
22 good experience for the ond customer. 22 Intcrnet Web sites and a diminishing share through travel
23 Q. Turning to the question of Sabre's market share since 23 agencies usirg a systex.*
24 dereqgulation, you were asked about Plaintiff's Exhibit 190 last 24 How does that statement align with your experience
25 Il week. Do you remember that Mr. Frackman asked you some 25 over the last 15 years?

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORIERS, P.C. SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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A. Yeah. Certainly since thce advent of the Internet and since
deregulation, what we have seen is, we refer to it as channcl
shift, which is we have seen a larger number of bookings moved
to airline direct, so people that utilize the airlines on a Web
sitc and out of the travel agency market.

Q. Turning to the topic of negotiation for the new contractas
with airlines after deregulation that you were asked about last
week, kind of in the 2005-2006 time frame, do you recall that
Mr. Frackman was asking you about Sabre's strategy and he
asked, the strategy was not just to request fulil content, bu:
it was to require it, right?

A. I remember that.

Q. That was the question. To 2¢9in with, why did you say, ir
response to Mr. Frackman's queation, that Sabrze planned to
ncgotiate for full content?

A. All of ovr supply agreements are negotiations, for the most
part, which means that we go in with different wants and
desires, and the airlines have different wants end desires, arnd
you end up coming to the middle. So we absolutely planned to
negotiate for full content since it is the most important thing
to the travel agerncy community. So it's <mportant to the
ncgotiation, and because of its importance, it's the reason
that we provide discounts as well as other terms that the
airlines want in their contracts.

Q. You wore asked about this presentation, Plaintif{'s Exhibit
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407. And what was the date of this document?
A. V¥May 2007.
Q. Do you recall that Mr. Frackman asked you about the first
bullet there on this page?
A. Yes.
Q. I would like to agk you about the second bullet on this
page.
A. Yeal.
Q. What does the second bullet on this page mean?
A. Again, thcre was a time back in the 90s and eaxly 2000s
that all of the carriers operated on the participating carrier
agroement so it was tho same contract for everybody betwecn us.
wWhat happcned was we got to a place where one size didn't fit
all. Things that were i{nportant to one airline wezren't
important to anothker airline, things that were important to us.
Plus, the competitive environment had heated up dramatically,
and so we wore in a place where we needed to negotiate all of
our contracts, and obviously, as we moved into a free market,
we needed to negotiate d:fferently with different airlines
based on what they desired.
Q. I would like to show you another page from this
presentation, Plaintiff's Exhibit 407, that Mr. Fracksan didn't
ask you about.

See there in tho title -- starting with the titie, [
guess, what does the title mean?
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A. So, again, when the GDSs were regulatced, there was a term
an airline owned., if you were an owner carrier. So if you were
an airline that owned a GDS, then you were subject to what was
called the mandatory participation rule, which meant that at
whatever level you participated in your own system, 80 meaning
whatever content, whatever connectivity level, that you had to
participate in all thc other systems at the same level. So at
the same technical level, at the same content level. So it's
talking about the fact that this was part of the original
regulations around owne:r carciers.

Q. Then turning to the conclusion there at the bottom that
says, “Today, the deregulated GDSs are frec to compete and
airlines arce no longer required zo parzicipate as they did in
the past, " how does that statement conform to your uxperience
since deregulation?

A. It's oxactly what happencd, which is that the alrlines have
vtilized the leverage of content which they have over us to
change the ernvircnment, where they now pay less for actually
more service than they received in the past.

Q. Now, do you remember when Mr. Frackman startcd your
cross-exanination ard he asked you apbout whether you had ever
uscd the term "two-sided market®?

A. I do.

Q. why did you use that phrasc ":wo-sided market® ‘n
describing tho marketplace?
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A. One, because that's what it is. But the structure is just
that agencies are -- and Mr. Frackman actuaally pointed out --
both agencies are our customors and airlines are our customers,
and so we dcal as an intermediary in between the two. So it is
absolutely nccessary for us to provide things that are of valve
to the supply side, 30 things that arc valuable to airlines at
a price thaz is reasonable, and wec have to provide things that
re valuable to zhe agencies on the other side, because losing
cither side literally just doesn't allow the model to work at
all, So our value is in trying to make surc that we provide
product, services, technology, good custoner support on the
agency side, and that we provide airlincs an efficient and
cffective way to diastribuze their product.
Q. Do you romomber that Mr. Frockman reprcgented that he had
gone through wha:t he said were 60,003 documents produced in
this casc from your files to sce if you had described Sabre as
sitting in a two-sided market?
A. 67,000, but yes, I recall.
Q. Wwhat docs the graphic on page 14 of Plaintiff's Exhibit 407
show therc with Sabre in the middle and travel agents on onc
side and Jairlines on the other?
A. I think we have scen easily 10 or 12 different slides that
show this model is made up of a buy side and a scll aside, and
we sit between the buy side ard the scll side and interconncct
those two parties.
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Q. You were asked about Plaintiff’'s Exhibit 325 oa the same
topic of whether or not Sabre requires full content, and this
is an airline scenario plannirng project. Do you remezber being
asked about this exhibit?
A. I do. I'm not sure !I remember which onc it was.
Q. I am taking you to page 32 of the deck that you were asked
about. Do you remember that he asked you about the bullet
point that says, °®Full content is required for Sabre
subscribers and their customers."

Who are the subscribers?
A. Yeah. Sabre subscribers are travel agencies, so TMCs and
online travel agencies. And thia was just us talking about,
again, the specifics that were -~ again, keep in mind that in
this time frame we were noving fron the DCA3 agreements to the
TMA agreements which were brand-new for us. So we were trying
to put in place new terms, and that's why it says. in order o
be on a TMA, which is a full content agreement, then full
content would be a requirement. If not, you would be on a
different agreement.
Q. I am showing you the question that you were asked about
this bullet, and do you see where you were asked about whether
you were going to require it from the airlines on behalf of
your travel agency subscribers? And then you gave an answer
that said, We are definitely regoziating for full content?

A. Yes, I recall.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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content agrecment. Then you wero asked about whether or not it
says negotiate.

Do you remember being asked that?

A. I do. Again, because that line didn't asay negotiate, the
entire document was around the negotiation we were having with
United. So literally the entize documerit is about negotiation.
Q. Let me show you page 4 of Plaintiff’'s Exhibit 554 that Mr.
Frackman did not show you.

What does this title say and how does that relate to
your answer that you gave Mr. Frackman about the bullet point
that you were shown on page 10?

A. This is, again, just -- as I mentiorned, ali of these
rcgotiations arc difficult. They go on a long time and we have
a nurber of different terms we arc negctiating. So this was
the position I am sure Mr. Klein is trying to explain where the
airlines are in their ncgotiating positions and where we arc in
our negotiating positions.

Q. Now, I am going to go back to one of the demonstratives
that you used during your diroct testirmony that Mr. Frackman
asked you about at the very beginning of his croas-cxamination.

Do you remember that Mr, Frackman started out by
asking about this dem¢onstrative?

A. I do.
THE COURT: Just for the record, it‘s Sabre 119.

MS. GIULIANELLI: Thank you. Defendants' 119.
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Q. Then you wore asked another question that says: It doesn’t
say we are going to negotiate for full content for Sabre
subscribers, it says full content required. And then you gave
an answer.

wWhat did you mean by your answer that you were
interpreting the documen: differeontly than Mr. Frackman?
A. Yeah. Again, we were negotiating a new agreement with
different terms ard conditions. So if an airline was going %o
be on the ™A, they would be in a full content agreemont, and
just that it was rot required of the airline, but it was a
requirenent of the Sabre subscribers and their customers. Full
content is a requirement for being effec:tive in distributing an
airlinc‘'s content, and it's absolutely critical and important
to the agencies. That's what that meant.
Q. Turning to the topic of the negotiations with United, do
you recall that Mr. Frackman also asked you about Sabre would
require a full content agreement from United in 20062
A. I remember us having a discussion, yes.
Q. You were shown this document, Plaintif{'s Exhibit 5547
A. 1 was.
Q. V¥Mr. Frackman showed you the last bullets on this page, and
you were asked about -- on this page 7, and you were asked
about these bullets.

Here is the question you were asked. The question

says that Sabre's response was to require a long-term full

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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Q. I aa going to show you what you were asked about.

Do you recall that Mr. Frackman said: This

denonstrative is aisleading, isn‘':z that true?

A. I remember him saying that.

Q. Do you recall that Mr. Frackman asked you about whether the
titlc was mislcading?

A. I do.

Q. Do you recall that Mr. Frackman also said the $4 billion
figure was misleading?

A. I remembor him saying that.

Q. Now, this is the demonstrative that you showed. I xould
like to show you US Airways® own dcmonstrative.

wWhere did you get the title for your demonstrative?
A. Frcnm the demonstrative that had beer used carlier by US
Alirways.

Q. How does this 38 percant figure shown in US Airways’
doenonstrative, Plaintiff's Exhibit 1096, corpare to the figure
shown in your demonstrative, Defendants' Exhibit 1192

A. It's the same number, 4 billion.

Q. Moving or to the topic of G2 ard ITA.

First of all, do you remember last weak that you were
asked about some documents includirng Praject Nike and Projec:
Liberty presentations?

A. Yes, T recall.

Q. In connection with these rnew technologies or new products,
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1 G2 and ITA?

2 A. Yes.

3 Q. I would like to go to Plaintiff's Exhibit 80 that you were
4 asked about. This was a Project Nike work in progress update?
5 A. Yes.

6 Q. What was the datec of this document?

7 A. October 4, 2004.

8 Q. On this document you were asked, turning to the second

9 page, about the first set of bullets there?

10 A. Yes.

11 Q. You were asked about this sentence that says, "Internal

12 analysis indicates G2 has a credible technical platform®?

13 A. Yes, [ recall.

14 Q. what docs the top bullet say?

15 A. Again, this was part of us looking at whether or

16 not -- this was early in their marketing of G2 and ITA, and we
17 were trying to figure out whether or not they had a technical
16 capability that would allow them to do what they were saying,
19 and we were also trying to figure out whether or not they could
20 operate at the price points that they had floated {n the
21 amarket. So we were trying to do some assessment of whether or
22 not either the technical aspects or the business model actually
23 rad any ability to be successful.

24 Q. Let's start with the technical capabilities.
25

what did the facts turn out to show once you learned
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more about G2, with respect to the technical aspec:ts of G2?

A. G2, again, thcy had done a good job of marketing their users
interface, which was kind of slick; the user interface was
good. But what we realized is they never built out the guts
vnderneath it to do everything you would need to do to scrvice
a travel agency. So it wasn't rcally a viable travel agency
product. A travel agency couldn’s really use it and be
successful.

Q. Wwith respect to ITA, what did the facts turn out to show
once you learned about ITA?

A. They never rcally built out the capability aeither. So they
talked aboutr building it. As a matter of fact, they wese a
little morc straightforward in some of their marketing because
they kept saying they wece going to build, but they never
recally builc pas: the shopgping and pricing cosponentry, and
they never built the user interface, and they never built any
of the components. So, again, it just wasn't a product that
travel agencies would have been able to use and be succesasful
in distributing tickets.

Q. You recferred to the fcasibility of the economic medel. 1If
you cou.d look a: the second sub-bulle: there called out on zhe
screen, what does that bullet mean that is being discussed?

A. 1t oppeared cthat both ITA and G2 were gcing to enter the
market a: a price point that would be lower than their costs.
We thought that was for different reasons. We thought it was

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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1 because ITA didn't really understand what they were getting

2 themselves into, which turned out to be the case. Then on the
3 G2 side of things, we assumed that they were coming in lower

4 beacause they were going to have significant support Zrom the

5 airlines.

6 Q. I believe you were asked about something called the LCLP

? nodel. Do you remember that?

8 A. I was.

9 Q. what is that =model?

10 A. That's low ccst, low price.

11 Q. What does that mean?

12 A. It peant we looked at, and this carme into what cventually
13 Liberty became, but we looked at --

14 Q. What was Project Liberty?

15 A. Project Liberty was a technical project to figure

16 out one of the things about G2 and ITA and others that we
17 looked at was we camec to realize very early on tha:t there were
16 only going to be a small subset of transactions that they were
19 going to be able to do. So it was going to be simple point to
20 point. It was going to bc a very small component of the

21 universe that we operate in, but they were likely

22 were, not likely, the sinplest transactions.

23 So what we looked at in low ccst, low price was, is
24 therc a set of services that agencies would accept and that
25 airlines would want to participate at a different level than
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rormal? So not gat all the services wo normally provide, but
we wculd have a low cost, low price alternative model for
gimple transactions. We ended up rot going down the low cost,
low price path. Wec instead irtroduced variable pricing. So we
offered to airlines the ability for them to adjust their
pcicing. So if they sold lower cost tickets, they would pay a
lower booxing fee. If they sold higher cost tickets, they
would sell higher booking fees.

So that's how we addressed tho low cost, low price
conmponent. And then we did build out the technical components
of that, and that was Project Liberty, which was to help us

lower the price o sore transactions that we could do more

Q. Let me try to unpack a little bit of that.

A. Sozry.

Q. Wwhen you said that there were a 3mall subsaet of
transactions that they were going to do, who was the "they"
that you were reforencing?

A. G2 and ITA, we thought they would be able to cherry pick a
small por:ion of simplc transactiorns and leave us with all the
heavy lif:ing. So cffectively our cost for booking would go up
because we would get rid of the simple. easy ones. That was G2
and ITA that we thought were going to do the simple
transactiona.

Q. Wwhat do you mean by the simple transactions?

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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A. Just things that took less technical capability. It would
be easier to build. 1t would be easier to maintain. Just very

simple, noncomplex transactions.

Q. What was Sabre's ultimate conclusion with respect to this
LCLP model?

A. That the businessa model around it probably didn't make
sense because it was easier to address just variable pricing
rather than try o build out a whole other offering. We didn't
think that agencies would accept it, and we also didn't think
that airlines wanted it. So instead, we created a variable
pricing prograr, and then we also built out the technical
capability of it, which §{s actually still used today.

Q. Why did youv not think airlines wanted it?

A. It would be operating in two different cnvironments.

Again, the efficiency they get is kind of operating in a single
platform, a single way for us to connect. So ultimately, evern
with variable pricing, we never had any real uptake on variable
pricing, despite the fact we thought it gave them an

opportunity to sell lower griced tickets at a low booking fee.

(Continued on next page)
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the content that you provide; Yyour customer service:; and then
ultimately incentives. And so the LTIDs chosc to participate on
almost none of those, because they didn't have content
agrcements across the board, they didn't build out the
technical capability that they'd need to be successful, they
had a varying level of customer scrvice, and then ultimately
they decided to not compete on incentives, so the model just
didn't move forward.

Q. You mentioned incentives. Wwhat does the last subbullet
here mean?

A. Yeah, as I mentioned, they decided to not compete, not pay
incentives, like the reat of the market does, and they assumed
that the airlines were going to force adontion of the platform,
with agency custoaxers.

Q. Now we just talked about these other tcchnologies like G2,
ITA, the services they did not provide. 1I'd like to turn to
the question of airline websites and whether or not they
provide the services of the GDS.

A. You.

Q. Do you remcember that on your direc: you showed this
demonstrative?

A. I do.

Q. Aad do you remember Mr. Frackman showed you a

demonstrative, this demonstrative, and ho asked fif you could do

store on the US Airways website bosides shop and book for US
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BY MS. GIULIANZELLI:

Q. You were asked abcut this Plaintiff's Exhibit 128 with
respoct to Project Liberty, which you've just explained what
that was about, and 1'd like to aak you about one page in
Plaintiff's Exhibit 128, page 9 of the PowerPoint here that,
first of all ~~ well, what is an LTD product?

A. I think that was -- again, we're acronym heavy, but I think
it was Limited Technology Cistributors.

Q. And what does the first bullet mean with respect to the
value capabilities available in Sabre that the LID product
lacked?

A. Yeah, the problem was they never built out the capabilities
that agencies necded to operate their business and so -- which
is ultimately why we they ended up beirng called in the
industry Limited Technology Distributors, because they just
didn't have the breadth and depth of capability that you need
to be successful in the agency environrent, and so that's what
that's referring to.

Q. Looking at the second set of bullets there, it says the
original LTD model failed to gain travel agency participation.

What was Sabre's assessment as to the reasons that this limited

functionalizy model failed?

A. Ycah, it was -- as you mentioned, they didn't build sut the
capability. We -~ in the GDS model, you do corpete on four
diffcrent things: the product and the technology capability;

SOUTHERN D1STRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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Airways flights and tha: your answer was, not nuch nore?
A. I recall.

Q. Wwhat were you trying to show the jury with this
denonstrative exhibit, 2X 125?

A. Yeah. ! mean, the the key on th:s ia just that there's
a -- therce arc a whole number of things that are -- and
capabilities that are specific to the travei agency coswmunity,
things that they require in order to efficiently and
effectively deliver on their promise to their customers, and so
most of the things -- not all, but most of the things on the
right side are things that both bencfit the airline, beccause it
eliminates a customer service burden, or that are required for
travel agencica to be able to deliver service to their
customwrs, whether it i3 corporate or leisure travelers.

Q. How does the USAirways.com website, or when it existed,
compare to tha Sabro GDS as a tool for travel agents to search
for and book con:zent?

A. Yeah. 1It's a consumer tool, so the US Airways website is
built and based cn consumcrs that qgo direct to the airline and
largely based on leisure travelers.

Q. Turning to another airline technology. today you were asked
about direc:t connectior?

A. Yes.

Q. And you mentioned, in answering some of the questions --
and I don't have the transcript yet, sc I'm going by my memory

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORIERS, P.C.
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with respect to Plaintiff‘'s Exhibit 291 -- that if five or six
airlines had direct ccnnectiors, ttere would be five cr six
screens or different pipes for travel agencies. Do ycu
remember giving that answer?
A. I do.
Q. What would the world look like if cach different airline
had a scparate direct connection from the perspective of your
agency custoners?
A. Yeah, again, for travel agents, time is money. They spend
tine on the phcnes with their customers, and so anything that
eliminates the ~- any form of cfficiency -- it's the reasons
that travel agents have been slow to do some things, it’s
becaugse they -- the ccsta cn the call center are important to
them, so anything that would cause them to bifurcatc the way
that they so split apart, the way that they sell, would be
damaging to them.
Q. I'm not sure I can ask you about this docubent pecause 1I'm
rot sure we@ have a good encugh version to read.

I'm showing you the page that you were asked about
aarlier today in Plaintiff's Exhibit 291, and looking at 42,
page 42, and what I would like to ask you about i3 the second
bullet in the last box.

MS. GIULIANELLI: Could you pull that up for me.
Q. What does that bullet mean?

I'm sorry. It waa hard to read in the versicn that we

SOUTHERN D1STRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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it's technical discussions. We -- we -- there are a couple of

industry groups that are around technical specifications and
salaes structures that we all participate in, some of those
include airlines, and so almost all of those discussions are
around how we thirk about the future of the technology that we
all conncct into and that now work.

Q. Do the airlines participate in industry groups?

A. They do. And we participate with them in some. They also
have some that they participate in tha: we're not included in,
so the airlires do the same thing. 7There's a necessity in this
industry, bocause of how intortwined it is, for the airlines to
get together and figure out how they warnt tc talc about new
scts of standards, new things, and ao it‘'s -- it's based on
more what we do, which i3 get together to discuss how we're
going to advance the capabilities.

Q. I'm showing you Plaintiff's Exhibit 3039, and this was a
string of emails that you waere shown last week and you were
aaked about whether the GDSs were going to coordinate a public
response to a statement issued by the International Air
Transport Agsociation, !ATA. Do you remcmber being asked about
this document?

A. I do. It was more specific than that. The president of
IATA stood up at a conference that had every airline in the
world at and said a number of very disparaging thinga about all
of the GDSs, about the model, mentioned that the airlines
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had.
A. Yeah, this was -- thesc are Zust -~ again, this was a
kind of a scenario planning thing, so there were -- this
document has apout -- looks like eight or so different trends

or things that we're talking about, and this is just saying,
this i what you'd have to belicvo to believe the -- that this
strategy would play out, that they would need to take actions
on it, and just says that you'd have to believe that T™Cs would
be willing to do that, move to, you know, a bunch of different
business links and supplement additional content different
ways. So --

Q. And what was your ultimate conclusion with respect to
whether or not this belieZ would occur?

A. Yeah, I -- I think over a period of time what we realized
is that travel agencies value the efficiency of having a
consolidated aggregation source and that it didn't make sense
for them to switch business from the cucrent method to direct
links.

Q. Turning to a different topic, remember you were asked last
week about some communication that you've had with
represenzatives of other GCSs?

A. I do reccall.

Q. Wwhat kinds of things do you coxmunicate about with other
GDSs?

A. It's all industry stcff, so industry standards, lacgeoly

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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should get together and push back on the GDS structure. And so
it was -- it was quite disappointing.
Q. Who are the membors of IATA?
A. The airlines.
Q. And you were askcd about this email here from Mr. Wilson,
referring to the attack on our industry and companies by IATA
in Berlin and the at best distasteful PDF circulating. ©Do you
remerber being asked about that?
A. I do.
Q. Okay. And I would lize to show you a docunent.

MS. GIULIANELLI: And I'd like to hand up Defendant's
Exhibit 1490, i2 I may. The witness does not have it.
A. Thank you.
Q. What i3 this? This i3 not in evidence yet. But what i3
this documeont?
A. It was the PDF referred to in the previous cmail.

MS. GIULIANELLI: I nove to adnit {t.

THE COURT: Any objection?

Any oojection?

MR. FRACKMAN: I'm thinking, your Honor, because it
tasn't been shared with us. We'll let it in.

THE COURT: Okay. Admitted.

(Defendant's Exhibit 1490 reccived in evidence)
BY MS. GIULIANELLI:

Q. Okay. And this was the PDF that the airlines at this IATA
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meeting in Berlin showed?

A. It is.

Q. Okay. And what was your reaction when you saw this
document?

A. Well, it's fairly disappointing when you have literally a
conference of airlines that's looking at the GDS3 in a negative
way and utilizing that conference to talk about how they could
como together to -- as you can see, wanted to put us in a bad
light, and so we felt the need to respond to the comments that
wore made by tho president of IATA and so we did want each of
tho GDSs to send a letter because we, as ! mentioned before,
participate in a number of IATA things as well, we provide
funding for somec things frca time to time, so it was -- it was
disappointing to hear the president of an organization that
ultimately you should be coming together, not pushing apart.
Q. And you werc asked about this resporse with respect to
Plaintiff's Exhibit 3039 and your desire -- I think you were
asked about this emajil ~- to issuc a public response to IATA.
Do you recember chat?

A. 1 do.

Q. Now werc you concerned one way or another about the
legality of talking to other GDSs abou: issuing a public
reoponse to IATA's disparaging comments?

A. Certainly not, and on — if you lock at the email., not only
our general counsel but the general counsels, so the lead

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300
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Sabre's competitor GDSs?

A. I do.

Q. I'd like to start with Orbitz. What was your reaction to
AA's pulling content from Orbitz?

A. Well, kcep in mind at that point in time we owned
Travelocity as well, and so we were concerned about an airline
beginning to discriminately ~-- indiscriminately pull the plates
of a travel agency as part of what appeared to be a naegotiation
strategy associated with their negotiation with Travelport, ard
80 -- and we thought it was a contract dispute that was going
to be short and so it was -- it appeared to us to be a contract
dispute.

Q. You just said that you thought it was going to bec a
contract dispute that was goirg to be short. What was the
significance of that, in your mind?

A. ¥oll, they -- again, we at that point likely folt that --
and that the same thing would eventually boe bzought to us,
meaning that American would begin to negotiate with Sabre baaed
on pulling plates with Travelocity and wo'd be down the samo
path.

Q. What is that, pulling plates, just as a reminder?

A. It's, again, back to the little plate thing that I talked
about before. It's an industry toerm which means that American
Alirlines would decide to no longer do business with -- with an
agency.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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lawyer for all the other GDSs are included in every email, and
certainly responding to -- to a public statament made by the
president of IATA seered to be somothing that we all neeced %o
do and was certainly not out of bounds on a legal standpoint
and was totally norsal.

Q. Now Mr., Frackman also asked you about why Sabre did not
take advantage of Amadeus and Travelport when they waere having
public disputes with particular airlines, including Arerican.
Do you remember those questions?

A. I de.

Q. And Mr. Frackman had asked you about three things. 1'm
going to ask you about each, but just to reorient us, renember
he asked you about when American Airlines pulled content from
the onlinc travel agency Orbitz?

A. I do.

Q. And then hc asked you about when Aserican Airlines
surcharged Travelport bookings?

A. 1 recall that.

Q. And then he asked you about when Air Italia -- I ray have
slaughtered that.

A. Alitalia.

Q. -- Alitalia was going to pull contert from Travelpor:?

A. Yes.

Q. And do you rexmember being asked about these disputes and
why Sabre did not take advantage of the disputes to hurt

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 9505-0300
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Q. How did AA's pulling content from Orbitz affect your
thinking about Sabre's business?

A. Yeah, we thought it was a significant threat to =-- to our
business potcntially, especially being the owner of
Travelocity.

Q. And how did :zhat impact your thinkirg as to whether oz not
you wanted to take advantage of Orbitz during this dispute?

A. Yeah, we ~- acgain, it was -- wo looked at it from an
industry perspecctive and thought it was a bad path to go down
if airlines started pulling plates from different pcople. so
taking any imnediate action didn't mvoke sense to us at that
time.

Q. WMoving on to AA's surcharging of Travelport. what did you
believe woculd hagpen to Sabre if AA was successful :in
surcharging Travelport agencies?

A. Yezh, wo assumned that eventually we'd be headed down a path
where we'd be in a place where our customers were no longer
competitive with the airlines' direct websites if they were
successful in implementing surcharges azross all the GDSs.

Q. Did thaz affcct your thinking one way or another as to
whether or not you wanted to take advantage of the AA dispute
with respect to Travelport?

A. Yeah. Anything that would cause m¢ to no longer have

parity with the airlines' direct websites, so as we've talked

il about, full contert was important, and that would have deen --

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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would have been terrible.
Q. What would have happened if Sabre had gone out and tried to
get business based on AA's surcharqging Travelport and then
American started surcharging Sabre?
A. Yeah, it would have been uvnsuccessful completely.
Q. Turning to Air Italia, what was that dispute with

ravelport about, at least as you understood it?
A. Yeah, my understanding was that they were just in &
contract renewal so they were in the middle of negotiating a
new deal and so they -- they were trying to to get to a naw
GODS agreement.

Q. And you were shown Plaintiff's Exhibit 178. This is an
cmail -~ i3 this an internal Sabre oemail?

A. It is.
Q. And I'm just going to ask ycu abou:z where, looking at the
first sentence, where you got this understanding from. TWas it
the airline?

A. Yes. The airline called to tell us that they wecre in

the -- they were going to mrake an announcenent regarding
another GDS and so, again, as wec agsumcd that it was with the
hope that that would cause us to turn up pressurc with travel
agencies and bring Travelport to the table with Alitalia.
Q. And again, what would have happoned if Sakre had tried to
take advantage of this dispute and then the dispute between

Travelport ard Air Italia suddenly ended, what would the impact

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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so and what happens with that is that we end up -- all three

of us end up dropping price to the airlines to ersure that we
have full content.

MS. GIULIANELLI: I have one wore topic. I°'a happy to
continue or end, depending

THE COURT: How long is it?

MS. GIULIANELLI: I'm thirking three minutes.

THE COURT: Let's do {t.

MS. GIULIANELLI: Okay.
BY MS. GIULIANELLI:
Q. V¥r. Frackman also

MS. GIULIANELLI: 1I°m sure Mr. Webb wants to end,
1)
2. ¥Mr. Frackman also asked you about multisource products last
wveek.
A. He did.
Q. And I actually think today too. D¢ you remember that he
asked you about wkether it was a business or a technical issuc
that Sabre decided not to develcp a separate multisource
desktop aggregation tool of GDSs?
A. I recall that, yes.
Q. Now I want to ask you about a document that he shecwed with
respect to :he technical issues that would be involved, and
that is Plaintiff's Exhibit 772. And do you remember that he

asked about this Exhibit 772 in cornection with the multiGDS

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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of that have been to Sabre?
A. Yeah, we would have wasted a bunch of money, gotten no new
business, and that's exactly what happencd, which is they
signed a new agreement about a week later,
Q. Do you recall, turning to the question of content
advantages, Mr. Frackman asked you about whether Sabre had any
content advar.tages over other GDSs?
A. I recall.
Q. Which GDSs distributed US Airways' Choice Seats product?
A. We do today and we wore the first, %o --
Q. Cid Sabre being the cnly GDS <o offer Choice Seats give
Sabre a content advantage over its competitors?

MR. FRACKMAN: I think that'’s probably beyond the
scope of the cross.

THE COURT: Sustained.
Q. How, if at all, did Sabre's corntent advantage with respect
to Choice Seats relate to your competitive offering with
respect to the other GDSs?
A. Yes, we had a content advantage with Choice Seats for a
while and then ultimately still have a content advantage over
Amadeus associated with Choice Seats.
Q. Wwhat is your response to US Airways' claim that Sabre
conspired with other GDS3s not to compete with each other for
airline content?

A. 1It's ridiculous becausc we all cospete to get full content

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300
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desktop -- 1 don't know LI it’s
A. I recall, yes.
Q. =-- questions? Okay. And I'd like to turn you to page 3 of

th:s docunent here, where it's giving some background on the
aultiGDS soluvtion.

A. Yes.

Q. And this document says they have made significant
fnvestments and multiGDS solutions but their efforts have
largely been unsuccessful. My first question is, who is the
"they" referring to?

A. Yeah, this is talxing about the major travel agencies, so
Amex, Carlson, BCD, they all had efforts to creatc multisource
desktop that would potentially cither sit on top of the GDSs or
other things that could provide additional content. They spent
a lot of roney on them but ultimately abandoned those efforts.
Q. Wwhat was your assessnent as to whether or not there were
cornplexitics involved in c¢reating these multisource products?
A. Yeah, there was -- and it was the reason that ultimately it
drove a significant amount of cost for the agencies that they
didn't really scc much benefit from it, which is why they ended
up really gbandoning their internal cfforts.

Q. And then Mr. Fracikman asked you about this page 6 of
Plaintiff's Exhibit 772, and it's a chart of different
products?

A. It is.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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Q. Looking at the listing of differenz products out there,
what does this chart show?

A. It was just trying to show the number of third-party
aggregators that exist in the marketplace and kind of what they
do, where they‘'re deployed, meaning which travel agencies use
which of those third parties, and so it lists out kind of

the -- the structure of each one of them and then where

they're -- where they're deployed.

Q. And how did the fcaturos ard -- we don't need to go through
cach one, but how did the featvres and functionality or
capabilities of each of these third-party products compare to
Sabre?

A. Well, they're not -- none of them comparc to Sabre in ternms
of total functionality, but they each -- they each had a
different kind of role in the -- in the travel distribution
landscape.

Q. Looking at the bullet here, at the top, before the chart
that says, "There are no robust multisource solutions in the
market, but various third parties sell components and a broader
vision.® What does that mean?

A. Yeah, Jjust exactly -- it's -- it means that each of those
players down there had some functionality that was -- since
they were deployed some places, had some functionality that the
agents found to be interesting, but in no -- no case were they

a robust, fully automated, fully accessible system that really

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPCRTERS, P.C.
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AFTERNOON SESSION
2:10 p.n.
(In open court; jury present)
THE COURT: You may be seated.
Mr. Frackman.

CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. FRACIQAN:
Q. Mr. Webb, on redirect, you gave some testinony again about
your asscrtion that US Airways never asked for a full conten:
agreexent. Do ycu recall that?
A. I do.
Q. Now when you talk about full content, you sometimes talk
about the full content suite of provisions, right?
A. I may have said that.
Q. And you include in thosc the no direct connect, right?
A. That's part of the overall parity proviaion.
Q. N9 bypass, right?
A. Again, it's a nondiscrimiration agreement so it's on both
sides, yes,
Q. No incentives; that i3, the afrlinc csen't inducc a travel
agent to use another channel by paying them anything?
A. Yeah, they can‘'t participate in the system and then go
around the system by inducing someone to do something clse.

Q. So when you said that US Airways had ncever made a no full

content proposal, you know that they made a proposal that

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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delivored the capabilities that travel agencies need.

Q.

own separate multisource product from the GDS desktop it
already had, are there any developers that Sabre authorizes o

aggrcgate cortent?

Al

Q.

A.

Travelfusion, so there are a rumber.

i{s there any recross?

3540
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Now even though Sabre did end up investing in creating iczs

There arc.

which are they?

Concur, we authorized Agertware, we authorized
MS. GIULIANELLI: I have rnothing else.

THE COURT: We're going to break for lunch, but

Okay.

MR. FRRACKMAN: Very shorz, your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. So we'll core back, we'll do the
very short recross, and then tho jurors' questions. 2:10.
THE DEPUTY CLERK: All rise.
(Jury not present)
THE COURT: Okay. Ve're adjourned.
(Luncheon recess)
SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300
Sabr-Transeript-000006319

contained a direct connect provision, r:ght; that is, a

provision that permitted them to do direct connccts?

A.

that we negotiated during that time period.

Q.

incentives to induce travel agents to use the dircct conncct,

right?

A. They may have.

Q. Well, let me show you PX 117 in evidence.

A. Thank you,

Q. PX 117 is the proposal that US Airways -- a tezn sheet that

US Airways submitted to Sabre on October 14, 2010, right?

A.
Q.
A.

Q.

sont a termination notice, right?

Al

Q.

page, there's an cmail from Mr. Gustafson to Mr. wilding, with
a proposal.

the tesm sheet., right?

3542
Webb - Recross

I don't recall, but that may have been one of the terms

And they also made a proposal that would permit thom to pay

It appears to bc that, yes.
You've scen this before, right?
Yes.

And we¢ went over earlier today that the very next day Sabra

Yeah, normal course.

And if you look at page PX 117 -~ well, PX 117, the front

PX 117.2 is the beginning, or the first page of

That's correct.

And if you turn to PX 117.3 --

Yes.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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Q. =-- you sce theze's item 6, Other Terms.
A. Yes.

Q. And in the Other Terms provision, the £ifth bullet down,
there's a reference to paragraph 4(c). Do you see that?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. And in this paragraph, what US Airways was proposing to
Sabre, as part of the term sheet for negotiations of the 2011
renewal, was a provision that would peramit it tc utilize direct
connects, right?

A. That's what it says.

Q. And would permit it to induce travel agents to use a direct
connect as long as the finducement was not mcre than $4 a
ticket, right?

A. Yeah, that's what it says. That's in the Other Terms
cooponent, and item J) was the content pact cf the prorosal.

Q. Okay. So when you said that there was no full content
proposal from US Airways, you were using a narrow definition,
you weren’'t using full content in rcference to the full suite
of full content provisions that you just testified to a noment
ago, right?

A. Yeah, I was referring to the content that US Airways would
provide ln the system.

Q. There's no dispute that US Airways proposed that it be able
to do direct connects and pay inducements to travel agents,

right?

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300
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{In the robing rocm)

THE COURT: Okay. So, first question: °“Hho or what
does Sabre charge when a consumer uscs their consumer
self-service website?”

MS. GIULIANELLI: 1I°m not sure I understand what that
mcans,

THE COURT: 1I'm not either, but I think I'm going to
ask it beccause maybe it can --

MS. GIULIANELLI: Clarify?

THE COURT: Right.

Next question: "What is higher cost technology versus
lower cost technology used when booking Southwest or US
Airways?" Maybce they just mean: 1s higher cost tcchnology
versus lowor co3d: tcchnology vged when booking Scuthwest or US
Airways?

MS. GIULIANELLI: That's a fair cuestion.

THE COURT: “"Plcase explain more how the participating
carrier agreement works."

¥R. FRACKMAN: That could be a long answer.

THE COURT: 1In 2010 -- I'm going to ask him Lo do this
briefly. Briefly cxplain.

MS. GIULIANELLI: Have you scer Mr. Hebb?

THE COURT: Yes, for a long time.

*In 2010, why did Expedia aplit its use of GCSs

between Sabre and another GDS? what caused that split?®

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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A. That's what it says.
Q. And the rext day Sabre terminated, sent notice of
termination, right?
A. Yes, that the contract did not roll over autoswtically,
that is correct.

MR. FRACKMAN: lo further questions.

THE COURT: Okay.
REJDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. GIULIANELLI:
Q. Okay. Two questions.

Looking at the October term sheet that you were jusst
asked about -- I think we're turnirng on the system here.

Looking at Plaintiff's Exhibit 117, what arc the
content terms?
A. They're in Section 3.
Q. And then what does the proposal with respect to the bookirng
fees say with respect to the content?
A. Yeah, it's a full -~ obviously it's a full content
agreement. These are the full content regicnal booking fees
that US Airways proposed.

MS. GIULIANELLI: Thank you.

THE COURT: All right. Jury questions. Mr. Street,
do you want to gather them.

THE WITNESS: Looks like I was here too long.

{Coritinued on next page)
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MR. DIAMOND: Could be a foundation issuve.

MS. GIULIANELLI: I think he testified that he was the
one that actually negotiated that deal with Expedia. He was
the lead.

MR. FRACKMAN: But what they would -- what Expedia
might havc told him as the rcasons would be hearsay, so I think |
there is a -- :

THE COURT: But I renember there were all sorts of
hearsay objections during that and he did testify about what he
did, what he thought, so I'll ask for a nonhearsay answer,
whatever that mears.

“To be clear, would an airline be permitted to enter
into a nonfull content agrecement with Sabre in exchange for
ttigher booking fces? In 2006? 2011? And in the future?"

*What is Sabre's share of Nor:h American airline GDS
bookings today?® Irrelevant, right?

MS. GIULIANELLI: I guess we can -- I mcan, I guess we
can ask.

MR. LINC: 1If he «xnows.

MS. GIULIANELLI: Wc actually showed an oxhibit that
kad this.

MR. DIAMOND: That was 2011.

MS. GIULIANELLI: Through 2011.

MR, DIAMOND: As of today, it's a different question.

THE COURT: How i{s it relevan:t what it is today? I'm

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
{212) 805-0300
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going to skip this one.

®Plaintiff’'s 772, which addresses the lack of success
of AmEx, CWT, and BCG with their efforts to develop a
muitisource solution, who was the intended aud:icnce of this
presentation?”

Okay. ®Why ls Sabre's fcc structurc based on booking
fees rather than subscription?®

MR. LIND: Fine.

THE COURT: "You testified that Southwcst doesn't get
a lot of the premium services that Sabre offers, which US
Alrways gets, and you know that the assets or cost of services
are lower for Southwest. 1Is the coat o Sabre to provide these
services actually lower? In other words, what is it about
these other features that cost Sabre more to provide them or is
it just that you charge more for those?® That's very similar
to another question,

MR, FRACKMAN: 1It's a good question.

MS. GIULIANELLI: I was going to say, ask that onc
instead. More the second one.

MS. ROBSON: Yeah, thc gecond onc.

THE COURT: Okay. ®You testified that travel agents
are buyers of your services in a two-sided market. 1In that
case, why do they not pay you and instead you pay them?®

"Seems as though everyone agrees that the consumer

wants access to all available conzent. Sounds like Sabre wants

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
{212) 805-0300
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answer.

THE COURT: I agree. It just reeds c.arification.

®*Under zke content backup agreement, -f Amadeus had
content that Sabre did not, which GDSs would get paid for
booking on the airline that was in Amadeus but not Sabre if the
booking was made by a Sabrc travel agent?®

®*In your view what would happen to the industry --
airlines, GDSs, travel agents -- if full content provisions
were not allowed?® Interesting.

*Mr. Webb, if Sabre had marke: power, why did they
want full content on the new agreement with US Airways?"

MS. GIULIANELLI: Good question.

THE COURT: I['m going to skip that, [ think.

MR. LIND: It assumes --

THE COURT: Too many -- I'm just going to skip that.
It's like if Sabre had market power -- he would say they
didn't -- why did they want full content on the new agrecment
with US Airways? I'm going to skip this.

All right. "We heard many different testironies
surrounding the $3.41 booking fcc that US Airways paid. Durirg
regotiations, were there any counter3 to Sabrc from US Alrways
to pay loss of a fee -- for example, 3.10, 3.202° Okay.
Interesting questions.

MR. DIAMOND: We just saw onc. so it may have been

written before that last exhibit went up.
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to ensure that happens using provisions of its contract,
whereas others profer an external aggregator to ensure all
content is captured. Can you rcpeat why all content must go
through Sabre versus being captured via another aggregator
strategy if that's what customers prefer.”

"Is there any point in Sabre's history that it did not
pay agency incentives or have they been part of the business
aodel from the start?®

I'1]l nave to follow up.

“Plaintiff's 1339 shows the services avaflable for
corporatc travelers that value thexm. Wouldn't it make sense
for the traveler to have the ability to pay for these scrvices
if it values them by booking through a travel agency or Sabre
and not pay for them if they don’t need them by booking through
the website minus the Sabre fee?*®

"Under what circumstances would Sabre have settled for
less than full content in its negotiations with US Airways?
what would the terms of scenario have needed to be?®

®I still don't understand why an airline that doesn‘t
belicve it nceds all of Sabre's scrvices can’t offcer fares
outside of Sabre. You've talked about the valuc of Sabre's
services, but if an airline doean’t percecive that value, why
force them?®

You'll get a complicated answer.

MS. GIULIANELLI: Sounds like something he should

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300
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MS. GIULIANELLI: That's going to go through the whole

term.

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. LIND: And they want to know if they were back and
forth.

THE COURT: Yes. I mcan, I think that's a lecgitimaze
question.

(Continued on next page}
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(In open court; jury prsesent)

THE COURT: All right. So wc have a .ot of good
questions here. A couple of them I can't ask and a couple of
them seem to be the same question in different words, so I'll
just ask one of thosc. But most of these I will ask.

Okay. You testifled that Southwest decsn’'t get a lot
of the premitm services that Sabre offers which US Alrways
gets, and you noted that as such, the cost of services are
lower for Southwest. 1s the cost to Sabre to provide thesec
services actually lower? In other words, what is it about
these other features that cost Sabre more to provide, or is it
that you just charge more for those?

THE WITNESS: That's a good question. Now the most
expenaive portion of the GDS functionality is low fare search,
so when you do a search on a website, whether it's Ixpedia or
American Express or BCD, the system works really hard to go
through all of the fare classes and scrvices and rules that are
assoclated with providing that low fare search back. The level
of connectivity zhat Southwest is -- part:cipates at, they're
not included in low fare scaz¢h, so we don't search Southwest
at all, so if you go out and do a low fare search on the Sabre
GDS, you won't get any cesponses that include Southwest
flights. So there's no cost associated with search.

Soparately, we don‘t provide availability, so when you

get the -- when you get the connection back after you've done a

SOUTHERN OISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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single contract for all airlires, and that was called the
participating carrier agrecement. And it was standard for
everybody, and it's been around for a long, long time, since
the '90s. And so that agreement is still in place with every
airline becauvse all of the agreemcnts that you‘ve heard us talk
about, whother it was the DCA3 agreement in 2003 or the TMA
agreement in 2006, or the new TMA agreement in 2011, those were
amendoents <o the participatirg carrier agreement, because the
participating carrier agreement is like that thick, because it
has all the provisions around how we interoperate and -- it's a
lengthy document, and so all the others are just amendnents on
top of that underlying agreement.

THE COURT: And 8o onc of the things yov're saying is
that at the time of the participatiny carrier agreem:nt, thacz
agreedent was starndard amongst all the airlines, that as the
various partics have cntered into successive amcndments, now
the same agroement <doo3 not exist with every airline.

THE WITNESS: That's correct. Wnen we weze airline
owned, everybody had the same participating carrier agreement,
80 now that we negotiate cvery agreement, those additional
amendments are all different.

THE COURT: But with the excoption of Scuthwest and
sone other airlines, thoy all have full content?

THE WITHESS: There -- no. Thare are a handful of
airlines that chose not to sign the TMAs that stlll operate on
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scheduled lcad search or those thirgs, we don't actually check
availability for Southwest so there's no avallability call,
there's no nothing to do with that, and w¢ don't show their
inventory, so there's no inventory shown on the screen either.
So none of those things are included in the cost that it would
take to manage Southwost.

Separately, they have a separate, different ticketing
xechanism, so we have a different way to ticket Southwest, so
there are a number of functions that Southwest just doesn’t use
in the systom.

THE COURT: So in other words, it actually costs Sabre
less --

THE WITNESS: It does.

THE COURT: -~ to service the Southwest agreexment.

THE WITNESS: Abgolutely.

THE COURT: Next, who or what does Sabrc¢ charge when a
consumer uses the consumer self-service website?

THE WITNESS: So if they're using TripCasc or any of
those things through the mobile device or if they're using an
agency self-scrvice webaite or any of those thinga, we wouldn't
charge anybody anything for that.

THE COURT: Okay. Short answer, okay? Ploasc expla:in
more how the parziiclpating carrier agreement works.

THE WITNESS: Okay. The short answer is, for many,

many, many years, when we¢ were airline owned, there was a

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORIERS, P.C.
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the participating carrier -- the urnderlying participating
carrier agreement.

THE COURT: Okay. And could you just remind us who
those are.

THE WITNESS: JLufthansa, Spirit, Gol, TAM --

THE COURT: Okay.

THE WITNESS: -- Southwest.

THE COURT: So next question: I'll remind ycu of what
we talked about when you were asked questions about Expedia
before, that you shouldn't testify about what Expedia or any
third party told you.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

THE COURT: It's recally a questicn of what you did, or
what you :zhought.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

THE COURT: Okay? So what caused the split when
Expedia split its use of GDSs between Sabre and another GDS?

IHE WITNESS: What happened was that Expedia began to
oparate in & two-GDS market, so they moved a portion of their
bookings from Sabrec to another GDS, 30 on any given day, about
70-13h percesnt of the bookings go through Sabre and about
30 percent of their book -- I'm sorry. US point of sale
bookings go through another GDS, so they utilize both at the

same tirme.

THE COURT: Okay. Ard in terms of why they did thaz,

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
{212) 805-0300
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you would only knaw that Zrom something somebody told you, is
that fair?

THE WITNESS: I know why they did it, but --

THE COURT: First think of how do you know why they
did it.

THE WITNESS: Wc had lengthy discussions about it and
we had to contract around it because the previous contract
had -- was specific to offectively a single GDS negotiated sct
of terms and so we had to negotiatc for a dual-use model in
which =-- which came with a different sot of terms, and so
through that, I came to rcalize how they thcught about the
process.

THE COURT: Okay. And tho different set of terms, can
you briefly suemarize that.

THE WITNESS: Yeah, just -- there again, they'se -«-
we've triced to set up our contracts so that again, because our
cost model and our rovonue model are not always in synch, so
before, whaere they used Sabre .00 percent, there wasn't a time
when they would be utilizing the system but not making bookings
in tho system, and so we had to set up a structurc that made
sure that if they uscd the Sabre system, they would make
bookings in the Sabrc system, but if they weren't using Sabre,
they could make bookings wherever they wanted, and so it was to
make sure that for use of the system, if they were using tho
system, they'd be making bookings in the systen is the

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300
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MS. GIULIANELLI: I belicve I have it.

THE WITNESS: It's not in this one. Sorry.

THE COURT: Okay.

Okay. We have 772.

THE WITNESS: Can you go to the next page?

THE COURT: Next page?

Can we see the next page?

THE WITNESS: Also not helpful.

THE COURT: Okay. And the next page.

MS. GIULIANELLI: Let's go to the -- I can call this
out and scc if that helps and then I can go to the page he was
asked about, if you'd like.

THE WITNESS: Yecah, that doesn't give the --

THE COURT: MultiGDS JOA.

MS. GIULIANELLI: Let ze go to that. This is the page
he was testifying about.

THE WITNESS: Yeah, obviously it's an internal
docurent. It looks like, again, another kind of scenario
planning or strateqQy document talking about what -- what we
might do, improving sales process. It looks like it's a
discussion around improving sales to deliver, you know, value
to agencies.

THE COURT: So can you tell who the intended audienco
was?

THE WITNESS: It was internal, so I'm not sure what

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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1 effective way, so that we had this other insurance policy that
2 they wouldn't utilize us and then zake bookings in the backup.
3 THE COURT: All right. Got {t.
4 So to be clear, would an airlinc be permitted to enter
S into a nonfull content agrcement with Sabre in exchange for

6 higher booking fces? Ir 2006?

7 Y THE WITNESS: They would havo been able to stay on the

8 participating carrier agreement and participate with a nonfull

10 with the -- the TMAs.

11 THE COURT: And is the answer the same for 20112
12 THE ®WITNESS: Yes.

13 THE COURT: And how about today?

14 THE WITNESS: Today, that would be true too. If

15 they -- {f they cperated on -- under the underlying PCA, they'd

16 have nonfull content but they'd have a righer booking fee.

17 THE COURT: Okay. So Plaintiff's 772, which we'll

18 give you -- wa'll see if you can figuroc out which one it is ~~
19 which addresses the lack of success AmEx, CWI, and 3CG had with
20 their cfforts to develop a multisourcoe solution, who was the

21 intended audience of this presentation?

22 And if it helps to look at it, it's Plaintiff's 772.
23 THE WITNESS: Let me see if I have it in my book.

29 THE COURT: 1If there's any chance we can put it on tho
25 screen --

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS,
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1 the grcup was.

2 THE COURT: Okay. 1Is there any indication on the

3 document?

q MS. GIULIANELLI: The only thirg that we have in this
S exhibit that -- in the plaint:ff's exhibit is the cover page.

6 THE COURT: Ah, and that page.

7 MS. GIULIANELLI: Which is why I showed it, because --
8 TIHE COURT: Okay. All right.

9 THE WITNESS: Yecah, I1'm sorry.

10 MS. GIULIANELLI: It went to Mr. Webb.

11 THE WITNESS: Yeah. I dust don't Xxnow.
12 THE COURT: All right. Next question: Why is Sabre's
13 fece structurc based on booking feces razher than subscription?
14 THE WITNESS: Well, that's a great queation. A couple

15 of things. One is that wec have tried cver a psriod of time to
16 nake adjustments to pricing, the way thst we price. We¢'ve done
17 value-basad pricing, we've done fee-structured pricing, we've
18 done -- we tried a lot of thirngs. Tho sirplest answer is that
19 it's the structure that's beern in place for probably 25 yeara
20 that was there from the time the airlines created the GDSs and

21 30 people are just familiar with it 20 it's -- {t'g simple

22 for -- for cverybody to kind of understand.

23 THE COURT: Okay.

24 THE WITNESS: But I wouldn't be opposed to &

25 subscription fee if scaobody wanted to talk about a

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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subscription.

THE COURT: Okay. Juror's next question: You
testified that travel agents are buyers of your services in a
two-sided market. In that case, why do they not pay you and
instead you pay zhem?

THE WITNESS: Ycah, Again, that was structurally what
happened back when we were airline owned, which is that the
airlines utilized an incentive to incent agencics to utiiize
the GDS that they owned and so that model was in place since
since we were created, and it's become one of the ways in which
we colpete for agency business. There are somw things that
agencies pay for, so if they buy separate products that we
create that arce outside the standard GDS booking fee structure,
then agencies pay for those products.

THE COURT: Okay. It seeas as though cveryone agrecs
that the consumer wants access to all available content. It
sounds like Sabre wants to ensure that happens using provisions
of its contracts, whereas cthers prefer an external aggregator
to ensure all content is captured. Can you repeat why all
content must go through Sabre vergus being captured via another
aggregator strategy, if that's what customers prefer.

THE WITNESS: Well, they could capture it using
another aggregatcr. The only issues, the only provisions in

our contrac:t jus:c say that if you're going to utilize the

system, meaning if you're goirg to shop it, if you're going :o

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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available for corporate travelers that value them. You
rereéxrber that line.

THE WITNESS: Yes, I believe so.

THE COURT: Wouldn't it make sense for the traveler to
have the ability to pay for these services if it values them,
by booking through a travel agency or Sabre, and not pay for
them if they don't nced them, by booking through the website

minus the Sabre fee?

THE WITNESS: Yeah. 1It's -- again, it's a -- because
of the -- the structure of the way that the industry works
today, some of those services are things that are -- despiteo

the fact they benefit the corporate traveler, there are things
that also bencfit the agency and things that also bencefit the
airline, and so we've made it a practice of not charging
separately or not charging additioral fees for new products
that we create, new things, new capabilities that we put in the
systen. We just havo them stay inside the -- the underlying
booking fee structure. And so we've never thought it made
sense to add additional charges, and that's the reason we don't
charge for ancillarics to the airlinc. ¥e don't charge for
additional things. 1It's a burdled fce.

THE COURT: Okay. Under what circumstances would
Sabre have scttled for less than full content in its
regotiations with US Airways?

THE WITNESS: 1 think if wo'd gotten to loggerheads

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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put bookings in zhe system, if you're going to utilize ttre
underlying Sabre technology, that you actually make the
bookings in the systez as well, so if somebody wanted to -- and
as you saw, AmZx, BCD, Carlson all had aggregator strategies,
third-party or internally built aggregator strategies. They
still have those today. And so the only difference being that
when they utilize those aggregation capabilities, they don't
use the Sabre system, they don't shop the Sabre system, they
don't book in the Sabre system, they don't save data in the
Sapre system. They do that elsewhere. And so you could do
that and agoencies could do that today if they wanted to.

THE COURT: Okay. Maybe I'm confused, but I thought
you said carlier that they abandoned their aggregator cfforts.

THE WITNESS: They abandored thcse specific ones that
are cut there. They've created differcnt things over a veriod
of time, some to do with rcgional content gaps. But almost all
of the large guys still have an ability to capture what I would
cail nonGDS bookirgs, so maybe for car service or other
other forms of ccrtent.

THE COURT: Okay. Was there any point in Sabre's
history that it did not pay agency incentives, and have they
been part of the business model from the start?

THE WITNESS: They've for the most part been part of
the business model since the beginring.

THE COURT: Plaintiff's 1333 shows the sorvices

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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where, at the end, there was no option for a non -~ for a full
content agrecemen:, it would have eventually been better for us
to look to have a nonfull content agrgexent with US Alirways and
rave them participate, 3till participaze in the systeez so that
we could still have some portion of US Airways content in the
system. However, that would have caused us a significant issue
with -- with travel agents and eventually it would have causcd
us to lose a significant amount of busiress.

THE COURT: And what would the terms hava been?

THE WITNESS: It would have just been the underlying
participating carrier agreemernt, so we would have reverted to
the PCA document.

THE COURT: Okay. I still don't understand why an
airline that doesr't belicve it nceds all of Sabre's services
can't offer fares outside of Sabre. You have talked about the
value of Sabre's services, but if an airline doesa’'t perceive
that value, why force then?

THE WITNESS: Yeah. HWe didn't force them to
participate. They would have a choice to not participate in
the Sabre system, but the problem is the discrimination issue,
which is, we didn‘'t want an airline to sign up to utilize the
Sabre system, be a full-term participant, so sign a long-term
contract, and then spend time trying to -- the entire time
they‘re in an agreement with us going around the system by
really disadvantaging the consumers that choose to buy through

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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Sabre. So by putting lower fares on their own website or other
places, we felt like they would be discriminating against the
people that chose to use Sabre.

THE COURT: Under the content backup agreenent, if
Amadceus had content that Sabre did not, which GDS would get
paid for a booking on the airlinec that was in Amadeus but not
Sabre if the booking was made by a Sabre travel agent?

THE WITNESS: Yes. Amadeus wculd have gotten paid in
that scenario, and that scenario was only in the case of an
airline totally pulling out of one or the other, So the
carrier that -- I'm sorry -- the GDS, so in that scenario,
Amadeus would get paid.

THE COURT: In your view what would happen to the
industry -- airlines, GDSs, travel agents -- {f full content
provisions were not allowed?

THE WITNESS: Yes. I think it would bocome a very
confusing, very cost-intcnsive environment because you'd have
scenario where consumers were no longer able to coaparison shop
so you wouldn’t have a place to go to look at all of the fares,
all of the scats in a single place, 90 it would cause consumcr9
to bounce around between websites, carrier direct websites, the
online booking engines, it would cause travel agencies to have
to begin to search multiple places for content, it would cause
them to have to begin to fulfill those things in multiple

places. It would be very costly for the entire industry.
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RECROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. FRACKMAN:

Q. Mr. Webb, you referred to Spirit in one of your answers to
the jury's questions. Spirit has a full content agreerent with
Sabre, right?

A. Oh, you're right. 1 misspoke.

Q. The only thing about the Spirit agreement, which is full
content, is that it permits Spiriz to charge bacx the GDS
booking fee, right

A. They have

Q. =~~ to the traveler?

A. They have a limited surcharge amount on their website.

Q. Now you also diacusscd, in conncction with one of the
questions, the PCA agreerent, and in fact, Mr. Gustoafson -- you
testified that US Airways ncver suggested reverting to the PCA.
Is that your testimony?

A, I don't think I said that.

Q. Okay. Because you know in fact Mr. Gustafson did raise
going back to the PCA, right?

A. I think he raised the PCA as an extcnosion, if we didn't
complete the contract by January 28.

Q. And you guys rejected that as an option.

A. Well, we had three more months before January 29D and so
we felt like we would get to a new deal.

Q. Right. You told him, or Mr. Wilding told him that therc
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THE COURT: We've heard testirony from many witnesses
surrounding the $3.41 booking fee that US Airways paid. During
negotiations were there counters to Sabre from US Airways to
pay less of a fee?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: So how did the price negotiations go?
THE WITNESS: About what you would expect, which is
our initial proposal proposed raising the fee and US Aic-ways'
proposal proposed lowering it dramatically, and then wec worked
our way back to -- to where we ended up.

THE COURT: Okay. Ard how did this fee compare to the
prior booking fce?

THE WITNESS: T“he 3.41 -- 30 we're talking in 2006.

It went down dramatically, so we reduced our fee in 2006, to US
Airways.

THE COURT: And then how did the 2011 fce cospare to
the 2006 fee?

THE WITNESS: It stayed flat, for the first year, and
then it had what I would call cos: of living adjustments on top
of that. So inflationary adjustments for the outer years.

THE COURT: Okay. That is it. I'm going to mark
these as Court Exhibit 12.

Mr. Frackmen, did you want to follow up?

MR. FRACKMAN: Could I?
THE COURT: Yes, you may.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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was -- if & dcal was going to be done, it would have to be dore

before the 28N or that there was time to get it done before

the 28%N 5o that you didn't need to agree to the PCA

alternative that M-. Gustafson raised.

A. Right. We were still negotiating a full content agreement,

and we thought we had plenty of time to get that done.

Q. But there's no question that Mr. Gustafson raised the PCA,

right?

A. As part of an extension, if we didn't have an agreement.

Q. There was another question about whether Sabr¢ would ever

kave agreed to a ronfull ccntent offer, and I want to be clear

on this. You never made any nonfull content proposal to US

Airways, riqght?

A. No. Mr. Nocella in our first lunch asked for a full

content deal.

Q. And in fact, as we've sccn I think a couple times,

Mr. Gross made it clear that there was no deal wit hout full

content, right?

A. T think if you go tack through the tireline, we were never

having a ncgotiation atout anything that wasn't full content.

Q- You do recall Mr. Gross's email to Mr. Nocella that said
THE COURT: Well, whether or na>t he does, soxebedy

clse may, so you can ccntinue.

So now -—-

Q. Okay.

MR. FRACKMAN: I didn't want to show it again, your

SOUTHAERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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Honor -

0. So you also gave an answer -0 a question about consumers in
the absence -- what would happen to consumers in the absence of
full conten:t on Sabre, right?

A. I did.

Q. And in fact, consumers could get that information thgough
ITA Google Flights, right?

A. They ge: some of it, yes.

Q. They ge:z almost all of it tarough ITA Goog.e Flights, all
the aizfares?

A. Dependa on who's participating with IZA.

Q. which airlines don't?

A. I'm not sure.

Q. Can you name one?

A. I'm not sure. Southwest.

Q0. S5 they could get it through Kayak, right? That doesn't go
through the GDS, right?

A. Kayak again is US point of sale and doesn't irclude every
airline,

Q. They could get it through Ccncur if their travel agent uses
Concur because Corcur gets flight information outaside of the
GDS, right?

A. Concur primarily uses the GO3S.

Q. Well, iz gets Southwest outside of the GDS, right?

A. That's ore.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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30-day extension on the current price, so we extendcd the deal
on all the same terms for the 30 days that we did not yet have
a new signed agrcerxent.

Q. In other words, during this 30-day extension, US Airways
continued to pay the lower price and not the higher PCA price.
A. That's correct.

Q. Okay. Arnd you were asked about Xayak and what could be
searched through Kayaxk.

A. Yes.

Q. How, if at all, docs a user make a booking through Kayak?
A. They don't make a booking through Kayak, so even if the
consumner was able to shop and have an understanding of the
providers, the supplicers that parzicipate in Kayak, they would
atill have o go to the airline direct wcbsite to make a
booking, so really not an cffective model for busincss
travelers.

Q. One more question. You were asked about a subscription fee
structurqe ag opposed to a booking fee atcucturce.

A. Yes.

Q. And I would just likXe to ask a little bit about what docs
the booking fee structure paynent model do with respect to when
an airlinec pays Sabre?

A. Yeah, I think that's why we've never rcally becn asked for
a subscription fee from an airline becausc much like I've
talked about the fact that our ccsts and our Tevenue aren't
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Q. And then tae last point, which I think you answered -- I
just want to be clear on it -- that at the end of all of this
so-called negotiation in 2010, you ended up with a fee
structure, a price to US Airways that was oxactly the same as
the one you had crharged in 2006, $3.41, right?
A. That's correct. We traded -- we got to the cxact same
point, which is where Mr. Nocella and I started, which is wo
traded price and they traded full content and woe cnded up with
the same number.
Q. NMr. Nocella didn’t start at 3.41, he started way below
3.41, and you go: the sane price at the end of the day, right?
A. We ended up moving on the same price, that's correct.

THE COURT: Ms. Giulianelli?

MS. GIULIANELLLI: I have a couple of follow-up.
questions.
REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS., GIULIANZLLI:
Q. You were asked about Mr. Gustafson's request for an
extension, temporary extension to go back to the PCA.
A. 1 was.
Q. And wha: happened with respect to whether there was an
extension while the deal was being negotiated after that?
A. Yeah, eventually we -- we ended up doing a 30-day
extcension, but we actually didn't do the 30-day extension on

the PCA, which would have been at a higher price. We did a
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aligned, moving to a subscription foce for an airline would mean
that they had a set fee, so whethor they nade more bockings or
whether they made less bookings, they paid the same amount,
whereaa today they only pay when they sel. something, and so
their costs and their rcvenues arce in direct alignment, so I
think it's a modcl that makes much more s¢nse for them.
Q. You said the airlines had not asked you for such a
structure. Did US Airways ever ask for a subscription fce
structure as opposcd to the beoking fee model?
A. Thoy never asked re.

MS. GIULIANELLI1: Thank you.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you very much.
THE WITNESS: Thank you.
(Witncas cxcused)
THE COURT: Next witness.
HR. LIND: Your Henor, the next witness we have is
M=, Doug Parker, who is the CEO, the chief executive officer,
of US Airways, who will be testifying via videotape. It las:s
about 30 minutes. And then we’ll have Mr. Klein after that --

THE COURT: Okay.

HR. LIND: -~ live.
(Videotaped deposition of Doug Parker played)

(Corntinued on next page)
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1 MR. LIND: That's it for row. Should we take our 1 (Recess)
2 breax? 2 (Jury present)
3 THE COURT: Llet's take our break, 3 MR. LIND: Your Honor, Sabre calls Ton Klein.
4 (Jury exits courtroom) 4 TOM KLEIN
THE COURT: ¥Mr. Lind, what is after the break? ) caliced as a witness by the defendant,
6 MR. LIND: We arc going to have Mr. Klein, the 6 having been duly sworn, testified as follows:
7 president and CEO of Sabre. 7 THE DEPUTY CLERK: State your name and spell it for
8 THE COURT: How long do you think his direct will be? 8 the record.
9 MR. LIND: He will go into tomorrow, I believe, 9 THE WITNESS: My name is Tom Klein, T-O-M, K-L-Z-I-N.
10 considering we have an hour arnd a half left today. 10 DIXECT EXAMINATICN
11 THE COURT: How lcng do you think his direct will be? 11 BY MR. LIND:
12 MR. LIND: Probably closer to three, a little over, 5 12 Q. WMr. Kloin, we have hcard your name. Nice to have you here
13 hours. 13 in person. Can ysu just introduce yoursclf! briefly to the
14 THE COURT: And then Mr. Wildirg, 14 jury?
15 MR. LIND: I thinx wc¢ may have a couple of shorter 15 A. Thank you. 1It's good to be here.
16 depositions in between, but thon Mr. Wilding. 16 My name is Tom Klein. I am the president and CEC of
17 THE COURT: Wilding on Wednesday? 17 Sabre.
168 MR. LIND: Correct. Iif he doesn't start Tomorrow, 16 Q. W¥where do you live?
19 depending on what happens. 19 A. 1 live in Dallas, Texas, with my wife Deanna and my two
20 THE COURT: Then after that? 20 tecenage daughters.
21 MR. LIND: Then we have depositions potentially agair. 21 Q. How long have you been with Sabre?
22 And then I belicve we are scheduled right now to have Mr. Gross 22 A. I started at American Airlines, which owned Sabre at the
23 and Stratford. Wc are figuring that out, what order. Y%ec will 23 time. 28 ycars ago, and I have been with the Sabre side of the
24 let then know tonight. 29 business for ahout 23 years now. Later this year I will be
25 THE COURT: Thank you. TRat's helpful. 25 leaving the cozpany as I get close to my 30th year.
SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C. SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORIERS, P.C.
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1 Q. What I want 9 do today is start with scme background and i) emplcyment history at Sabre.
2 your work and life before Sabre real quick, and then we will 2 This is Sabre Demonstrative Exhibit 144. We are not
3 come back and walk through your time at Sabro in more dotail. 3 going to walk through everything on here, but let's touch on a
4 Where did you grow up? 9 few highlights.
5 I A. I was born fin Newark, New Jersey. I grew up about six S You list herc that you were a manager of passaenger
6 miles from the courthouse, in a little town called North 6 sales in Amcrican, your gccond job at Anerican. Just bricfly
7 Arlington, New Jorsey. 7 tell us what that was.
8 Q. Did you go to college? 8 A. I was out in the Bay area. I was responsible for a toam
9 || A. I did. I went to Villanova University just outside of 9 that would deal with cur travel agency sustcrers at Am@rican
10 Philadelphia. 10 Airlines. We would provide them various services. We would
11 Q. W+what did you do after college? 11 negotiate the comnission contracts with the travel agents, and
12 A. I came back home. I worked in the air cargo industry. 12 we would also negotiate with corporations on discounts if they
13 When I was growing up, I had worked in the freight industry; I 13 put a lot of their travelers on American. And we also worked
14 loaded trucks, had driven trucks, knew that busineas a little 14 hand-in-hand with our Sabre collcaguco to promote the Sabre
15 bit, and I got a job with a company called CF Air Freight and 15 system and travel agents across the Bay area as well. Sabre
16 sold air cargo services in the Newark, New Jerscy and then 16 was part of the airline. They also paid commissions to the
17 later New York City area. 17 sane custoxers that we did business witzh at the airline.
18 Q. How did you end up in at Sabre? 18 Q. You mentioned marketing to Sabre to travel agents at that
19 A. I followed one of my collecagues to American Airlines in the 19 time and thce commiaaior structure. wWo have heard a lot about
20 ganc capacity. 1 was in the cargo busiress at Amcrican for o 20 this sort of payment flow where the airline would pay Sabre arnd
21 || short timc, went over to the pagsserger sales business, met a 21 Sabre passed on commissions to the travel agents. Who put that
22 gontleman there who was my boss, and he later ran a big 22 systen in place?
23 division at Sabrc and asked mo to come work at Sabre for him 23 A. When I worked for the airline back in the late B80s, that
24 after a short time. 24 was in place already. So American Airlines had put it in place
25 Q. I want zo put on a screen a demonstrative with some of your 25 carlier.
!
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Q. Llet's walk through some of your time now when you moved
over to Sabre. What was your first job at the Sabre part of
American?

A. AMR, the parent of Anerican, ard Aeronexico ard Mexicana
formed a joint vernturce to distribute the Sabrc system in
Mexico, and 1 went down there and I was dircctor of Sabre de
Mexico.

Q. Next, it looks lixke you went to become vicc president of
Sabre product marketing in the late 90s therc. Tell us what
you did in that role.

A. Thero 1 was responsible for all of our travecl agency
products. So our technology products for our travel agencies,
including the travel agency desktops where they did all their
work every day, and also onlinc products. It was the early
stages of the Internet and a lot of the travel agencies wecre
developing online sitos at the time. I was responsible for
that.

Q. Did you develop any specific sites for travel agency use?
A. Yeah. The agency desktop that 1 was responsible for back
then was called Planct Sabre. It was the first graphical user

interface for travel agents. It was Internet e¢nabled. it was

really a first gereration Internct product. And that was
really the core of my responsibilities. We also developed what
were the first Web sites, first OTA wWeb sites for some of the

travel agents, like Cheap Tickets, which was later bought by

SOUTHERR DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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are a lot of just visual clues across the interface to make it
easier for a travel agency to learn how to use the systen.

Q. I think we learned that Sabre had already launched
Travelocity, the online travel size, previously. was this just
sort of Travelocity in another form?

A. No. We tock some of the lessons we lcarned on the design
side from Travelocity, but this was specific to the travel
agency workflow ard how they used the system cvery day.

Q. Who would use this system, ?Planot Sabre?

A. Travel agents would.

Q. What happened to Planet Sabre?

A. The good news was, as I said, it got great reviews on the
design side. The bad news was our cugtomers didn't use it very
much.

Q. The customers being the travel agents?

A. Yes.

Q. Why didn’'t the travel agernts use i:z?

A. Travel agents, they have a protty specific workflow, and
they think about travel in a different way and what they are
booking in a diffcrent way. Much likxe if [ tried to take the
sourt reporter’'s tool and change it into a graphical user
interface, I am sure that it might slow her down. Or if we
tried to create a graphical irnterface ¢f a piano, a virtuoso
piano player wouldn't use a computer graphical interface. Tt

would just slow him down. That's what we found with travel
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rbitz, and Travel Zscape, which was later purchased by
Expedia.

Q. Wec have heard somc testimony earlier in this trial from
Mr. Cavidson, who was at Amadeus back at the time, that in the
late 90s Amadeus had decided not to develop a graphical user
interface, he said to make it harder for travel agents to
switch. What was Sabre doing in regard to that graphical user
interface back in the late 903?
A. That was -- woll, it was by far the biggest project that I
worked on at that time, and we werc deploying a graphical user
interface again, it was called Planet Sabre -- at the time.
And we did roll out that product to travel agencies across the
world.
Q. Was Plcnet Sabre this grecn scrcen thing we have hecard
about?

A. No, it wasn‘'t. It was a graphical user interface.
Q. I have put up Defendants' Demornstrative 113. Just briefly,
tell us what we see here.
A. So maybe not as rich and exciting as some of the user
interfacces you sce today, but in 1999, this was statec of the
art. It won design awards. It was in design textbooks
regarding software design. Down the left-hand side there's
marketing spaces for suppliers to put marketing offers. Then
the interface itself, it gives time demonstrations and bars.

Connections is a broken line. Nonstops is a solid iine. There

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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agents. We had the workflow right. The graphical user
interface worked great, it reprecscnted the product great, but
the travel agents didn't £ind it efficient for the business
that they did using the green screen.

Q. As president and CEO now, have you continued to invest and
decvelop new technology over the last decade?

A. We have had a few that worked a little better than Planet
Sabre, but I have a passion about design user experience for
custoncrs. We have tripled that investment while I have been
CEO. And where we see opportunities to invest in innovation,
we do, and zhat's how you win in the techriology business.

Q. Has Sabre continued to develop a graphical user interface
for those travel agencies that prefer it, right up through
today?
A. Yes. Today it's called the Sabre Red Workspace and every

travel agency in the wdorid that uses Sabze has access to that

Q. Let's go back to your work history for onc sccond, back to
fenonstrative 144.

®¥hy don't you briecfly walk us through gzort of the next
couple of roles that you had here. Again, we don‘t have to
walk through all of them, but just briefly, from *'98 right up
vntil 2004, what were you doing at Sabre?
A. Tha Sabre Travel Network jobs in Latin America and North
America was rcally responsible for the travel agency cuatomers.

SOUTHEAN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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In Latin America, it was from Puerto Rico down to the tip of
South America, so all of the Latin American countries. ZThen :

moved over to North America, which is our biggest market, to
service our travel agency custoxers.

1 did a short stint in somethirng called emerging
businesscs, which was a bunch of start-up idcas that we had
inside the company during the dot-com boom. Some of those
became products, sthers failed, socm we sold.

Ther I became president of Sabre Airline Solutions,
which is our broad portfolio of technology services that we
scll to airlines, everything from passcenger rescrvaticn systens
that about 90 airlines around the world use to, a couple of
cxamples, a United Airlines pilot uses our flight planning
system to gce his flight plan cn his iPad every day, or the
jetBlue flight attendants that are able to do their cruise
schedule on their telephone.

So that's the story or thosc three jobs.

Q. Prior to beccming CEO, you have run both the airline
systems or airline solution side of the business as well as tre
GDS side?

A. That's correct.

Q. Llet's skip ahead now to the time period that most of the
issues in the case revolve around, which is this 2005 into 2011
time period. What werce your responsibilities at Sabre then?

A. I was responsible for the operation and all of our customer

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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really rewarding, and I have a great team of colleagues that do
that around the world.

Q. I assume you don't spend all of your time at Sabre. So I
want to pull up a couplea of other things that you do.

This is Demonstrative Exhibit 145. Wwhat else do you
opend your time on when you're not working at Sabre?

A. The first two things are things I spent tinme on in
Washington. They are derivatives of being in the travel
industry, but they don't have any direct ties to Sabre.

The first is I was recently appointed to President
Obamad ‘s advisory council on doing business in Africa. 1It's
been a big initiative of this administration to try to do more
cconomic activity between the continent of Africa and the
United Statcs and get a chance to go to the White House once in
a while and talk about the issues in Africa and tho i{ssues for
US companies doing business there.

Drand USA is a public private partnership. Most
countrics have a vehicle to promote tourism to their country
that {s a government function. In the United States., that's
not a tax payer funded fnitiative. It's a public private
partnership. The board (s appointed by the secretory of
cormerce, and I an chairman of that board. We prosote the
United States as a destination to people in 16 nations that
make up about 80 percent of our visitors here in the US. For

every 33 people that come to the United States, that creates
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activities for both the Sabre Travel Netwvorx and Airline
Solutions that carries through all of thesc three jobs. And
then the prosident role and eventually the CEO and director
role just broadened my responsibilities to be some of the more
corporate functions, like strategy and advance group and all of
the other things that roll up into the CEO.

Q. So you worked your way up from selling freight in the belly
of the airplanes to CEO. Tell us about some of the major
milestones that you're sort of most proud of?

A. One, this is a business where it's a global business. We
have customers around the world. We get to work with airlines
and hoteliers and travel agents to help nake their business

I have enjoycd doing that.

better cvery day. We had great

growth in Latin America. We were relatively small back then in
Latin Anerica and the growth there was exciting. We are now
the largest provider of services. Ve provide both i{n Airline
Solutions and in Travel Network in the Latin American market.
I think we have navigated through a lot of technology
change over the years, and that's been exciting for me and our
About 50

tcam. We arc a much morc global business today.

percent of our business is outside of the United States. That
wasn't true when I joined tho coopany. We were more of a
US-centered compary back then.

And just getting a chance to work with everything from

fanily businesses to the biggest airlines in the world has been

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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one job. 1It's a really iloportant stimulator in the economy ard

it's an important function.

So those two things are appointments. They are unpaid
appointments that I participate in.

The third one is the Executive Committce of World
Travel and Tourism Council. 7This {8 just an organization that
promotes the value of tourism to governments around the world
and helps them understand thc impact of travel and tourism on
their economies.

Q. Let's go back to your work at Sabre now.

Today, ard potentially into the morning tomorrcw, I
would like to focus on your work on sort of the GDS side of the
business and talk about three topics.

First, I want to ask you some basic questions about
the way this industry works, the compet:tion Sabre faces, and
generally how your corpany makes a livirg, so to spoak. Are
you prepared to talk about that?

A. I an,
Q. Second, I want to ask you about the relationships and the
contracts that you have with airlines in connection with your
GDS business. Are you prepared to talk about that?

A. Yes.

Q. And finally, I want to talk more spacifically about your
involvement in the actual contract negotfations with US Airways

in 200¢ and 2011. Are you prepared to talk about that? |
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Q. The GDS business, is it a challenging business to run?
A. It is. 1It's an incredibly -- it's a global business, as I

wentioned. 1It's incredibly compezitive. It's a two-sided
marketplace so you're always balancing the needs of both sets
of customers and supplicrs that want to sell more products
through the retwork and the travel agents who scll products to
consuzers.

Q. What is the impact of that competition on your business?
A. We have to compete on technology, we have to compete with
great services for our custoners, and we have to conpete on
price on both sides of the marketplace.

Q. You mentioned the airline side and the travel agent side.
tiow does Sabre coapete for the airline's business?

A. You have to start with techrology that weets al: the needs
of airlines that want to distribute what is an increasingly
complex set of products to our travel agency customers to allow
then to comparison shop and find the best alternatives for
their customers. So it starts with the technology. Airlinos
do require a bunch of scrvices of vs. And then we have to
conmpetce on price to moke sure we have a total proposition for
an airline that works for them.

Q. 1It's been argued at this trial that every airline has to be
in every GDS, and therefore there is really no competition for

the airiine’s business. How does that compare with your

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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you will have a difficult time koceping their business.

Q. Wwhat would happen if Sabre couldn't or didn't offer travel
agencies comnissions?

A. I don't think we would have any business in the travel
agency side of the business over time, and then there wouldn't
be a network.

Q. Based on your 30 years in this business, or 28 I guess, and
working with the travel agents and being in charge of Sabre's
relationships with those travel agents, what choices do trave.
agents have in picking a distribution chkannel?

A. They both on a daily basis can go look for ccntent
anywhere.

They do do that. They look for content wherever it

might be to be able to scrve their customers. Whenever we have
a contract come up for bid at a travel agency, generally, we
are in a competition to keep their business. They night
evaluate what is riew in our technology. <hey might evaluate
our services package. And they cortainly talk to us about the
conmission that we pay them, and if somebody is paying them a
higher commission, we have to negotiate through then.

Q. Tecll us moze about that procgas where you're in a bid or in
a competition for a travel agent's business. What do you do to
retain a travel agent?

A. I mean, it's a negotiation procoss. Sometimes they put us
through a formal bid process, if {t's a bigger business. If
it's a smaller family-owned business, sometimes they are Jjust
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experiance?
A. Yeah. 1It's not rcally how it works. With every airline,

we have to negotiate to have that airline participate in the
system. It's often part of their distribution strategy, but
that doesn’t mean they have to do it. #wWe have to put a
conpetitivo package together, and we negotiate hard to get as
much content as we can from the airline to provide to our
travel agency customers.
Q. Let's talk about the travel agents for a minute. Do you
compete on the travel agency side for the travel agent's
business?

MR. FRACKMAN: Maybe a little less leading.

THE COURT: Sustained.
Q. How does competition work for the travel agent®s business?
A. On travel agercy side of the business, they use our systen
to run a big chunk of their business and to scrvice and sell to
their custogers. So, again, it starts with a technology
package thaz works for them. We have to have a set of gervices
that they can use when they need support and consulting around
how to usc our system best. And we have to have competitive
commnissions or else they won’t use our product.
Q. Wwhot role do those comxissions that Sabre pays the travel
agents play in your competition for the travel agency business?
A. It plays an important role. 1It's part of the package, and
if you're not corpetitive on cosmissions, then at some point

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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talking to us about the offers that they have, or at lcast
teiling us what they want to tell us about the offers that they
have, and see if we will do somothing different foxr them to be
able to keep their business. And if we don't, then we will
create a bid process and a cospetitive process and they will
move business away from us.
Q. Wwhen a travel agent decides to stay with Sabre, if they
have alrcady been using Sabre, what does that say about the
conpetitive process?
A. Look, I think if we have the business, we ought to be able
to kecp the business over time if we are doing a good job for
the customer, but {t means that wo have competed fairly to keep
the business.
Q. I am going to talk about full content now. We have talked
in this trial a lot about the full conzent provisions in the
contracts with the airlines, including US Airways.

¥hy do you negotiate for these full content
provisions?
A. Weli, iz starts with what theo travel agency needs to serve
their customers. Travel agencics demand of us that we bring
them as comprehensive u set of content as wo can. They want to
find the best trip for their customer, and they have to
comparison shop across our system to do that, and if they don't
tave comprehensive content, it's difficult for them to do their
job. So our desirc to have full content is because it's what
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we need to provide to our travel agencies so that they can
serve consumers and corporations the way they need to.

Q. We have heard that before the first round of the full
content agreements that several airlines had withheld certain
fares for their Web sites. 1 think we have heard them called
Web farco. Whal was the reaction frem your tzavel agency
custoners when that happened.

A. It was outrage.

MR. FRACKMAN: Objection. Hearsay.

THE COURT: Overruled. Just don't say what they said.
A. The way that travel agents reacted was they talked to us
about the services we provided and made it clear to us that if
we didn't have ccaprchengive content, that their businessces
were becoming less efficient and that their corporate customers
were putting pressure on them. And we talked to corporations
as well and corporations made it clear that they wanted to be
able --

THE COURT: Let's just stop there. You're supposed to
cot say what they said. You can say what happened and what you
did, but don't say what anyone said to you.

MR. FRACKMAN: I move to strike the hearsay.
THE COURT: 1It's stricken.

A. Let me talk about how corporate travel works.

Any big corporation that's purchasing travel requires

that their employees follow sope policy, often that says take
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segmont -- consumers actually do shop differently. They look
for the lowest fare first. and we have lots of data that says
that. If a corporate travel agency is shopping, they will look
for the best route first. For a consumer, typ:.cally, we look
for tho lowest fare, and then we decide if that's a good trip
for us or not, and we might buy a higher farce .f wec choosec to,
but we shop by the lowest fare.

when an online travel agercy -- and we owned one,
ravolocity -- whon Travelocity wasn't able to display the
lowest fare, consumers just didn't trust the system. And you
just have less customers coming through because they couldn't
comparison shop effectively.
Q. How docs Sabre's ability to offer full content from all the
major airlines affect the travel agents and their customers,
the consumers or the travelers?
A. It helps them find the boat trip at the lowcst fare, at
least in a source of content that's as comprehensivc as
anything out there. And again, that‘'s what corporations and
consumars wart. It doesn’'t mean -- as ! said, it doesn’'t mean
they buy the lowest fare all the time, but they certainly want
to see what all their options are, and they want to do it with
sone confidence.
Q. You mentioned Travelocity. If Sabre didn't have full
content provisions and wasn't able to get access to full

content from all of the major airlines, how would that affec: a

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300

Sabr-Transcript-000006368

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

w

DS T - S ¥ L B -Y

v o

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

3588

GBS8SABS Klein - Direc:

the lowest avajilable fare that accomplishes your mission to
take your trip. They don't always buy the lowest fare, beccause
the lowest fare isn't sometimes flexible enough or it's not on
a flight that's at the right time, but they always want to know
what it is. And whon you're a big buyer of travel, you
certainly don't want your supplicrs to be playing shell games
of, where's the lowest fare, I don't know wherc to find -.t.
They expect the travel agency to be able to tell them that this
was the lowest fare, your traveler took this other fare, and
youa're able to evaluate whether your travel prsegram is working.
So on the corporate side of the market, that's what was going
on.

on the consurer side of the market, travel agen:s were
cexperiencing what you might expect. Consumers would cell then
and say, well, I'm looking over at this other source and I'm
seeing a different farce. You're the expert, why don't ysu have
that fare? And that deterioration in the travel agency's
ability to be an expert makes our system less valuable to thenm
and makes it harder for consumers to get what they need.
Q. You rcferenced the travel agency side or what I will call
the brick-and-mortar travel agency side. Putting aside the
raditional travel agents for a minute, how uirportant is
p-oviding full content to your custoxers that service more the

leisure travelers or the OTAs?

A. That's absolutely critical bocause in the leisure travel
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consumner, for instance, planning a trip on Travelocity for
instance?
A. Even a small gap in airlire content creates lack of trust,
if a consumer has a faaling that they have to look at multiple
places to see if they can xind of chase down the lowcat fare.
So the online travel agents rcally started as a way to crcate
pticing -- the reason they were successful is consumers liked
the idea that they can see all the prices, they can see a
ransparent view of this very complex airline pricing that's
out there, and be able to have confidence that they are seeing
all the options arnd buy something.
Q. You mentioned price transparency. What is price
trangsparency?
A. I just mcan being able to gee what is available at the time
that you're looking to buy in an induszry that's pretty
complex. Because the airfares change pretty frequently and
being able to see all the prices compared and all your options
conpared in one place, back ir the early 390s, when the online
travel agency started, was unique.
Q. How ia offcring or having the ability to offer price
trangsparency thrcugh Sabre affect the Frice of airline tickets?
A. I think it allows consumers to find the lowest fares and be
able to compare, and again, decide whether thoy wamnt to pick
Tt creates price corpetition that wouldn't

that trip or not.

be therc if you didn't have that level of transparency.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.

(212) 805-0300

Sabr-Transcript-000006369



3591 3592

GBSBSABS Klein - Direc: GBSBSABS Kleir - Direct
1 Q. Price competition among whom? 1 Q. What would happen to Sabre if a msjor airlinc like VS
2 || A. Axnong the airlines. 2 Airways pulled its content or pulled its fares out of Sabre?
3 Q. Wwhat would Sabre GDS be like if you had all 3 A. If we didn't have any onc major airline for some period of
4 ron-full-content agreex»ents? 4 time, we would locse a significant amount of our business.
5 *I A. The products -- I'm not surc that we would have a business 5 Q. If you lost content {rom a major airline, would you just
6 over time. If you didn't have full content agreements, and 6 lose thosc US Airway bookings or what would the cffcct be?
7 robody knew whece they needed to go to get the best deals or 7 A. No. 1If we lcst centent -- let's just use a couple of
8 |’ dién't know whizh airlines -- wha:z airline had what content ir 8 examples. US Airways was very oig in Phoenix. They were very
9 your system, it would be not very useZul for travel agencies 9 big in Pittsburgh. They were very big here operating the
10 and it wouldn't allow for comparison shopping. 10 shuttle market between New York and Bostcn and Washington.
11 Q. How does Sabre's ability to provide full content help the 11 Travel agents that sold in those markets wouldn't find our
12 airlines? 12 system useful at all if we didn't have US Airways content, and
13 A. The buyers of travel, when they arce using a travel agency, 13 they would usc scmebody c¢lse’s system for cverything, not just
14 rave confidernce that they arc going to be able to -- they are 14 tse somebody else‘'s system to get to US Airways.
15 talking to an expert and they are going to have the best shot 15 Q. What about for travel agents even outside of those markets?
16 at finding zhe best deal that mgets their needs. Wwhen they 16 A. These are big companies and big airlines. This was the
17 rave that confiderce, they actually buy in a frictionless way. 17 fourth largest airline in the United States at the time, one of
18 There is no: a barrier to them buying because they trust the 18 the biggest in the world, and we would lose business in other
19 travel agent they are dealing with. They trust themselves if 19 places as well, but I usc that as an example because in some
20 they are looking at an online travel agency and see all the 20 markets it would be a significant part of what necceded to be
21 | options. So it allows airlines to dis:zribute in a seamless way 21 soid. But cven if you had just a couple of amarkets, if you
22 to some of their most valuable customers, and it also provides 22 only had a couple of flights out of a market, it still is a big
23 a bunch of services that those customers that buy through the 23 content cap for the agents that have to sell in that market,
24 travel agencies nced. And our technolegy allows the services 24 and it would make our product much less valuable and I think we
25 to be delivered. 25 would lose business.
il
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1 Q. I want to look at an exhibit that we have seen up on the 1 that business.
2 screen a couple of times. This is a demonstrative exhibit from 2 Q. I want to switch topics to airline booking fees.
3 US Airways. It's their demonstrative exhibit 1096. And they 3 How does an airline's willingness to provide Sabre
4 rhave shown the revenues frcm Sabre in thke red, and then the 4 with full conten:t affect the booking fees that Sabre is willirg
S " booking fces on US Airways flights in the blue slice on the 5 to negotiate?
6 right. 6 A. One of the trades that we make in a negotiation with an
7 Based on your experience, what would the likely impact 7 airline is if they prcvide us with full content that drives
8 be on Sabre of losing US Airways content, Zust those light blue 8 value for our customers on the travel agercy side of the
9 bookings fee from US Airways? 9 marketplace, tha: we generally arc morc flexible with price,
10 A. No. I zhink we would be at significant risk of losing, 10 and they will get a lower price for provicing us with fuil
11 first, the biggest travel managesert ccilpanies that do business 11 content.
12 across the United States. There's four or five agencies that 12 Q. Why?
13 nake up a huge chunk of our business, almost half. We would be 13 A. We only have one place to get their content, it's from
14 at oignificant risk of losing them. They all usc other GDSs 14 them. So I can's get US Alrways' contornt from Delta. I have
15 already. It would shift busine3s. Thosc are the four or five 15 to go to US Airways. If they are offering -- if they will give
16 up there. I think we would losc a significant amount of 16 full content as a trade for a lower price, that's generally a
17 business in a relatively short pericd of time, and we would 17 decent trade, and it's good for our travel agency customers
18 lose other business as well. So this would be devastating. 18 that necd that content.
19 Q. Lot me ask about Sabre Demonstrative Exhibit 28 that I put 19 Q. How does the volume of bookings that an airline sends
20 up. Tell us what this shows. 20 through Sabre affect the booking fee?
21 A. That 3shows the five travel agenta. So Expedia, American 21 A. Like most businesses, it plays into it, and usually the
22 Express, Carlson Wagonlit, BCD, and Hogg Robinson make up about 22 higher volume producers get a lower price.
23 48 percent of our business. Again, all those five agencles use 23 Q. How does the basket of services that an airline chooses to
24 at least one other GDS. I think they probably all use ail ’ 24 purchase through Sabre affect the bookirg fee?
25 three GDSs., and I think we would lose a significant portion of 25 A. It at timos does. Different airlines do use different sets
SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C. SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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1 of services. Sometimes they are buying up and paying us a 1 advantage over i:ts competitors?

2 " littlo bit more because they want more sorvices, and other 2 ll A. No, not necessarily. Most airlines, they can put their

3 tipes they are using a snaller set of services and don't pay us 3 full content anywhcre they warnt, and gererally they do.

4 quite as much. 4 Q. If there is no competitive advantage, how do the

5 Q. We will talk about some specific booking fees as we move 5 competitors compete in this industry?

6 down the road here, but, generally, in your tenure in the last 6 A. Wec compotc on the technology product that we provide, we

7 || decade or more of being the president arnd the CEO, what has 7 corpete on the services side, and we coxpete with comrissicns

8 generally happened to the booking fee Sabre is charging? 8 or price.

9 A. In North America, it has ccme down significantly. In the 9 Q. We have heard that US Air paid Sabre a booking fee of 3.41
10 United States markot, it has come down around 30, 35 percent. 10 per booking or per sogment, and it's been suggested herc tha:t
11 Q. What has caused that decline? 11 it may cost less for booking for US Air that comes through, for
12 A. Tho airlines in the US have quite a bit of leverage. The 12 instance, its Web site. Assuning that's truc for a minu:te, why
13 airlines aro bigger than they used to be. There has been new 13 should US Airways pay 3.41 for booking through Sabre?

14 competitors that have at times tried to come into the market 14 A. A little bit is you get what you pay for. There's a

15 and given the airlines leverage to push price down, and they 15 broader set of services in the GDS system than you might see at
16 are good negotiators. We had an industry that was regulated 16 the airline Web sito. The airline Web site captures a 1ot of
17 back in the 2000s. Most of tho time it was requlated was when 17 low-fare travelers that are gonorally ir markets where the

18 airlines owned thegse systems. The market i3 ncw deregulated 18 I airline is big and the airline spends a little bit of marketing

19 and what you would expect in a deregulated market happened. 19 money or {38 known. The Sabre GDS displays an airline's
20 Prices came down. There was negotiations, like this 20 product, and US Airways in this case all ovar the world, many,
21 negotiation, for content for price, ond it's resulted as you 21 many times a day. It puts the product on display, essentially
22 would expect in a decregulated market. 22 markets it for the airline, and they only pay us when the
23 Q. Let's spend a couple of minutes on the full content 23 product is actually purchased, when they actually sell a
24 provisions themsolves. 24 ticket.

25 Do the full content provisions give Sabro any 25 II The other thing that happens is the service load for
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1 the airline for these higher value customers who demand 1 a particular big market.

2 services is off-loaded to the travel agencies who use our 2 Q. Wwhat additional marketing costs or costs for that phone

3 system to service the traveler. Ovr estimates are one phone 3 call dces US Airways incur for a booking through Sabre?

4 call to an airlinec or a hotelier costs about $25 for an airline 4 l‘ A. None.

) or a hotel <o take the call. 1t's just onc call. So that 5 Q. Lot's talk specifically now about tte negotiations. I want

6 || service burden moves over to the travel agency. And there's a 6 || to start with the 2006 negotiations and then we will move to

7 broad sct of things that airlines do that are complex. 7 the 2011 necgotiations.

8 Airlines share passengers across different airlines. So they 8 | When Sabre and US Airways began the negotiations for

9 do codeshare where one airline markets another airline. They 9 the 2006 contrac:, what was your position at Sabre?

10 do interline where a passenger gets to transfer from one flight 10 A. I believe I was group president of Sabre Airline Solutions
11 to another flight on a different airline and the bag gets 11 and Sabre Travel lNetwork.
12 transferred seamlessly and ali of thosc things. Selling that 12 Q. So Sabre Travel Network is the GDS side?
13 type of product is difficult on an airlinc wWeb site. It works 13 A. Yes, it 1is.
14 seamlessly in Sabre in the travel agency market. 14 Q. Let's focus on that for a minute. Describe your
15 || Q. You mentioned the cost to an airline of processing a phone 15 respcnsibilities over the GDS busiress at that time?
16 call, for instance, on a booking made through its Heb site. 16 A. I was roally rosponsible for the operation of the business
17 Are there additional costs for the airline on, for instance, a 17 and tho performance of the business and our relationships with
18 Weo site booking compared to a booking that conmes thrcugh 18 our airiine customers and travel agency customers.
19 Sabre? 19 Q. In that 2005-20C6 time frame, what was the status,
20 A. Yeah. [ think they have to -- as 1 said, they do all the 20 u gencrally, of Sabre‘s contracts with the airlines, tho GDS
21 servicing. They have to keep the Web site current, which isa 21 contracta?
22 getting more and sore exvensive, ard they have to spend 22 A. Our con:tracts were -- we had contracts that had a
23 marketing money to market their product. 1It's increasingly 23 three-ycar term that we had negotiated a couple of years
24 expensive to do that, especially airlines that wan: to get 24 bafore. They were coming up for renewal. So most of the big
28 businoess everywhere, even if they don’: have a big presence in 25 airlines in the US had a contract that was going to expire
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sometime in that 2005 or '06 tine frame.
Q. Did that include US Airways?
A. It included US Airways' contract, yes.

(Continued on next page)
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from us. As an example, seats were one of theo things that
airlines talked about as not being part of the full content
agreement. We thought they were. Airlines said they weren't,
and so we had a debate about that. WwWe thought we had to expand
our definition a bit and make sure w¢ got as much content as we
could.

Q. We'll get into the seats issue. The seats {ssue is
primarily during which contract negotiation?

A. The 2011 contracts.

Q. Starting with 2006, what was your involvement specifically
with the negotiations with US Airways?

A. I, you know, I was aware of the ncgotiation. T had a fow
conversations with with Mr. Xirby, who was prcsident of the
airline at that time.

Q. And at that time what was your relationship like with

Mr. Kirby?

A. You know, my -— Mc. RKirby, he had started his carcer at
Sabre, he -- he had -- he had run America West. We had sold
products to America Woat, on the airline solution side of the
business so had a, you know, a good rclationship with

Mr. Kirby. fclt like we could pick up the phone and talk to
each other whenever we needed to.

Q. And what was M. Kirby like as a negotiator?

A. Tough negotiator. e, you know -- he's a hard-nosed

executive. He's been very succcasful in the airline business,
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BY MR. LIND:

Q. Wwhat was your involvement in setting Sabre's negotiation
strategy for those negotiations for the 2006 round of
contracts?

A. 1 mean, ! was jinvolved from the stardpoint of, you know, as
best wec could, trying -- I was involved in the strategy so
trying to understand what our airline customers werzre asking for
and how we migat ravigate to a -- to agreements that got them
what they needed and got us what we needed for our customers,
on the travel industry s.de of the market. So at a high level
I was involved in the strategy and I was also, you kncw =-- I
had relazionships across the industry, I was involved with some
executive conversations at some of the airlincs where -- where
I knew -- knew some of the executive teams.

Q. And at a high level -- again, we'll get in more detail, but
what was Sabre's strategy for the 2006 contract negotiations?
A. Wwell, we had -- we had a couple things that we were trying
to get done. One, we hac airlines telling us that they wanted
and needed a lower pricae. They'd gotten a price reduction in
our DCA3 contrac:s which we had done three years prior. Wec saw
the price come down. They made iz clcar to us that they
expected the price to core down again. We wanted to have full
content, as I talked about, because that's what our travel
agency customers rieeded, and there were some new types of

content that -- that airlines were talking about withholding
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and I think it's a tough business. You know, he's been
involved with a couple different smaller airlines that took
over big airlines. America West ook over US Airways, US
Airways took over American. He's a tough negotiator.

MR. LIND: Your Honor, could 1 stretch for a minute?

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. LINC: Thank you.

THE COURT: Everybody up.

Okay.

MR. LINC: Thank you.
BY MR. LIND:
Q. And we‘re going to get into somo detail on this, but what
generally did your discussions with Mr. Kirby rcgarding the
contract rcnewals back in the 2005 time frame for the 2006
contract involve?
A. You know, again, wc'd talk about what we thought we needed
for travel agents. Mr. Kirby gencrally was pretty focused on
price,
Q. And what was the general gist of -- and we'll go again i{nto
sone dectail, but
A. Right,
Q. ~-- but that approach at the negotiation?
A. Look, again, we had our teams regotiating, and ny
discussions with Mr. Kirby were, again, generally around a full

content deal, and at the time Awerica -- whon we first started
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1 these discussions, America West didn't have a full content deal 1 A. Yeah, I -~ once the merger was announced, the t=one of the
2 with Sabre. We wanted one. And Mr. Kirby was talking to me 2 conversations charged in ono sense; they didn't change in the
3 about one. He wanted lower distribution costs, and secondly, 3 other. Mr. Kirby was consistont that he wanted lower
9 that maybe chere was a path towards -- towards full content, 4 || distribution costs. He did -- he didn't ever bring up this
S and that was when, again, America West had a less than full S idea of nonfull content. America -- sorry -- US Airways was a
6 content dcal. 6 full content agreement. The airlire was a different type of
7 Q. And there came a time when America west and US Airways 7 airline than America West. Ard -- and he scemed to be
8 merged or at least announced their merger originally in -- 8 I confortable with full content agreement and was primarily
9 A. That's right. 9 focused on -- on distribution costs, or the booking fce.
10 Q. =-- middle of 2005, I beliecve? 10 Q. During your negotiations, what., if anything, did you say to
11 A. That's correct. | 11 || M:z. Rirby about whether Sabre intended to remove US Airways’
12 Q. And at that time did Mr. Kirby become ycur centact for the 12 content?
13 sort of merged airlines, America West and US Air? 13 A. ¥c never had that conversation. It would have been counter
14 A. He did. He did. 14 to what our objectives were. You know, we had a few things
15 Q. During your cantract ncgotilations with Mr. Kirby for the 15 going on. Orne, as I said, America West didn't have a full
16 merged airline agreement, did he ever ask ycu for an ag-eement 16 content agrecement. We wero oxcited about the combined airline
17 that did not need full content? 17 having a full content agreement, and we knew it would be tough
18 MR. FRACKMAN: Objection. Leading. 18 to negotiate, bu: we were excited about that prospect. US
19 THE COURT: Sustained. 19 Airways used the Sabre -eservation sys:tem internally. From an
20 Q. Wwhat, if anything, did Mr. Xirby say in your ncgotiations 20 airline solutions tcam, airlinc solutiors businesa, we were
21 about content and whether they wanted a nonfull content 21 hoping that the combined air -- airline would use the Sabre
22 agreemnent? 22 reservation system. So we had -- we had -- we had no intent of
23 THE COURT: How about content? 23 doing anything but try to geot the full content to US Airways or |
24 MR. LIND: Fine. 24 this new bigger airline into the Sabre system.
25 THE COURT: Okay. Go ahead. 25 Q. There has been testimony that you told Mr. Kirby that you
SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C. SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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1 would bias US Airways flights if he didn't agree to certain 1 they dicn't agrec to cectain terms. What, if anything, did you
2 || terms. What, ££ anything, did you say to Mr. Kirby on that 2 say about that with your conversation with Mr. Kirby?
3 issue? K| A. Never had a conversation like that with Mr. Kirby. 1In
1 A. I didn't say anything like that to Mr. Kirby. Again, it 4q fact, it was quite the opposite. FEe talked about taking US
S | would have been counter to what we were trying to do, which is S Alrways completely out of the Sabre systcen.
6 get US Airways centent into the system. 6 | Q. Now what did Sabre want to see in tczms of whether US
7 Q. How about zeroing out inventory? 7 Alrways succeeded as an airline?
8 MR. FRACKMAN: Your Honor, it's all leading. 8 || A. We wanted them to be successful. I mean, we wanted, you
9 THE COURT: Woll, the last question, the one just 9 know -- this was a time when the airline industry in the Uniced
10 asked was, so sustained, but the prior one was not. 10 States was -- was consolidating, so this wasn't the first
1 MR. LIND: Your Honor, they came and nade these 11 airline merger, it wouldn't be the last, over this past decade,
12 accusations, and Mr. Klein has the right to rebut the:m. 12 and, you xnow, more corpetition in our view was better, better
13 THE COURT: I understand. W&c had this discuasion. 13 for consumers, it was better for our airline travel agency,
14 And the form of your prior question was just fine, but if you 14 Travelocity, and it's bettor for Sabre, so wec wanted a atrong
15 could just reask that last one. 15 fourth competitor, and this was a, you know, an airline that
16 MR. LINC: Thank you. 16 was coning zogother with a now strategy and we thought, you
17 8Y MR. LIND: 17 know, we could help them be successful and we were excited
18 Q. There's been testimony that you threatened Mr. Kirby that 18 sbout that.
19 Sabre would zero out inventory of US Airways flights and fares 19 Q. How would taxing ary action that would threatem US Airways’
20 if he didn': agrce to certdoin terma. What, if anything, did 20 cxiatence as an airline have it with your atrategy?
21 you say to Mr. Kirby on that issuc? 21 A. It wouldn't have. It would have becen counter to our
22 A. I never would say that to Mr. Kirby, and again, it was 22 strategy.
23 counter to the objectives we hLad. 23 Q. what did Mr. Kirby say to you during the negotiations
24 Q. Well, and there's been testimory that ycu threatened to 29 regarding whether or nst US Airways intended to continue
25 kick Mr. Kirby or to kick US Airways out of the Sabrc system if 25 providing flights and fares to Sabre?
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1 A. Vr. Kirby mdde it clear that he had a price objective that 1 regotiations?

2 he wanted to get from us, he wanted a booking fee at a certain 2 A. They had just gotten quite a bit bigger, so that's more

3 rice, and zhat if he couldn't ge: the econcmics that he 3 leverage.

4 wanted, tha: he would be compelled to take US Airways out of 4 Q. 1If you didn’:z have US Airways content, presumably you could
S the Sabre systen. 5 still sell Delta or United, so why does it matter whother you

6 Q. How did you take his statemcnts? 6 have US Airways too?

7 A. 1! toox them very seriously, and he‘'s not a -- he's not a -~ 7 A. As I said, you know, I mean, travel agencies pxoposition to
8 somebody that you wouldn't tako seriously. 8 their customers or what they -- promise that travel agencies

9 Q. What effect would that have had on Sabre? 9 made to their customors, that they're experta, that they're

10 A. A3 -- as we talked about, it would rave been devastating 10 going to coxparison shop, and they're going to find the best

11 for our business, had -- it would have boen devastating for 11 trip, the lowest fare, or the best itinerary for the traveler,
12 Travelocity, our online travel agency, and it would have been 12 and if you don't have cortent of the fourth largest airline in
13 devastating for our GCS business. 13 the United States, you can't deliver on that promise to

14 Q. All right. We're going to come back and walk through those 14 customers, and so if our travel agencles can't use our

15 regotiations in some detail, but as you went into the 2006 15 technology %o deliver to their customers, to consumers, then we
16 contract negotiations, how did you view your negotiating 16 don't have a busiress over time.
17 position or strength compared to the airlines? 17 Q. And how did the risk that you might not get content from US
18 A. Thesc are big entities. There's only one vlace for us to 18 Airways affect the negotiation?

19 get content, and that's from the airline. Again, we can only 19 A. It gave them a fair amount of leverage and it certainly

20 get US Airways content from US Airways. US Airways could put 20 informed our, you know, our offer that, 3as we went to the

21 their content in a lot of different places. Tha: crecates an 21 regotiating process and, you know, resulted in a much lower

22 irdalance in the negotiation, and we always feel like we have 22 price for US Airways.
23 to do our best to get as much content for our customers as we 23 Q. Let's go through those ncgotiations, starting with 2006.

24 can at a price that'’s fair. 24 when did you first meet with Mr. Kirby to sort of kick off the
25 Q. How did the size of US Airways at the time affect the 25 regotiations for the 2006 agreement?
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A. I think we met -- we met in early 2005. I believe that was
before the -- the merger was announced. 3ut that was the first
tint wo met.

Q. Co you remember where that mecting took place?

A. 1 do. 1t was in Callas at a restaurant cailed Pappasito’'s,
which i3 a taco joint in Dallaas.

Q. Why do you remember it was there?

A. It was -- it's one of Mr. Kirby's favorite places. He uscd
to live in Dallas.

Q. All right. Let's look at Exhibit 1452 in evidence. This
is a calendar invite for February 16, 2005. Just tell us what
this is.

A. It's just a notc from my agssistant to -- to two pcoplec at
Travelocity. Michelle Pelugso is the CEO there; Traccey Weber
was the COJ, the chief operating officer there; and Toni Beeny
#as somebody on our Travel Network team. That was the primary
contact for US Airways.

Q. Wwhy do you havo Travelocity people at this kickoff meeting?
A. Well, we —— both companies, you know -- we're both -- we're
all onc company. Traveclocity and Sabrc were onc company at the
tinc. We both had relationships with -- with -- with US
Airways or at this point America West. Travelocity was

was -- the way that travel agencies work, they're given a
ticketing agreement by the airline, so America West provided
iravelocity with a ticketing agreement and they were a ticke:
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agent for America Yest. aAnd they received commissions from
America Wes:z, and we had the booking arrangement with America
West for the GDS.

Q. Did both Sabre GDS and Travelocity need separate agreements
with Angrica flest and US Airways?

A. Ycah, they had ascparate agrecmonts, yeca.

Q. And what was the just gencral purpose of this meeting?

A. This was really a kickoff session to just talk about what
our mutual objectives were, what America wWest needed fron us,
how we thought about the business and where it was going and
what wc needed from them; really just a cordial kickoff.

Q. In this initial mceting what did Mr. Kirby say about his
goals in the next round of contract ncgotiations?

A. We talked about the fact that Amcrica West might be willing
to do something diffecrent thar they had boen doing, which was,
you know, they were, as I said, not a full content carrier at
this time, but we talked about the idea of full content, and
Mr, Kirby made i: clear that Lhe wanted a — to have lower costs
and in the form of a lower booking fee.

Q. At some point this is in February. 1In the months I
think pretty soon after this did US Airways and America West
announce they were merging?

A. Yes, they did.

Q. How did that merger announcemert affect the timing or the
approach to this next round of contract negotiations?

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300

Sabr-Transcaript-000008389



3611 3612

Gbslsabé Klein - Direct Gbs1lzabé Klein - Direct
1 A. Well, it was important, you know, again, scaller airline, 1 a point in time. 1It°'s allowed. GO ahead.
2 America West, Mr. Kirby and Mr. Parker, were backed by 2 A. Yes, I did.
3 investors to take over US Airways, so it was going to be a 3J Q. And what was Mr. Kirby's role in the negotiation at that
q bigger airline. The bigger airline in the merger had a full 9 point?
) content agraement, and we hoped to have a negotiation that S A. Ha was the executive responsible fcr =-- cventually
6 would allow us to get full content from the new airline. 6 responsible for the agreement between the Sabre GDS and the
7 Q. In terms of when these airline agreements were expiring, 7 combined -- the new combined airlire.
;] sort of the last version, how did US Airways and America Hest 8 Q. Let's look at Defcendant's Exhibit 1334. This is in
9 fit in and how did that affect the timirg? 9 evidence. I'm showing you an email from you to Mr. Kirby dated
10 A. Yeah, I think -- I believe that US Airways was -- was one 10 July 18P of 2005. Are you familiar with this?
11 of the earlier agreements expiring so we -- it was one of the 11 A. I an.
12 ones that we would havo to get done soorest. 12 Q. The subject line here says, US Airways. Tell us at a high
13 MR. LIND: And your Honor, depending on your timing 13 level what this cemail relates to.
14 today, I know we'rc three minttes away from our 4:45 at least 14 A. Yeah. Mr. Kirby was going to be the responsible executive
15 ending. 15 for the combined airline. As I mentioned, we were still havirng
16 THE COURT: 5:02. 16 conversations with both airlines because the merger hadn't
17 MR. LIND: Okay. Good. 17 happened yet, and I was making -- I wanted to make it clear o
18 Q. So at some point -- this is February now. The nerger 1 18 Mr. Kirby, based on something tha: our team had picked up in
19 believe was announced in May. At some point in the summer of 19 discussions with -- with Arerica West, that we had been talking
20 2005, after the merger, did you talk to Mr. Kirby about a new 20 to US Airways, their contract was coming up soon, that we had
21 agreement for both the airlines? 21 ro intention of doing ony -- anything irrationol or counter %o
22 || A. I did. 22 our objectives or their objectives, like kicking US out of
23 MR. FRACKMAN: Well, your Honor, objection, leading. 23 Sabre, which somebody on the team had mentioned as one of our
24 MR. LIND: This is just background. 24 options. One of the airline folks at Aserica West had
25 THE COURT: This is just foundation, directing him o 25 sentioned that we might be thinking that. We were -- wanted to
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1 be clear that we weren’'t thinking that. And I also wanted to 1 agreem™ent, low price; take a nonfull content agreement for US
2 convey to Mr. Kirby that there werc a couple options with the 2 Alrways to higher price.
3 existing US Airways contract. 3 Q- And let's walk through -- first I want to ask you about =--
1 Q. All right. So let's walk through those. 4 just jump back here. When you said there's absolutely no
5 First you say, "Let me clear the air on this one == S discussion about kicking US Airways out of Sabre, how did that
6 there has beer absolutely no discusasion about kicking US € cma3il that you sent to Mr. Kirby compare with your oral
7 Airways out of Sabre.®" What did you mean by that? 7 discussions with him?
8 A. Just —- just what I said. I -- as I mentioned, our tcam 8 A. It was consistent.
9 cane to me and -- and told me that one of the folks at Amorica 9 Q. I want zo break this down on two options that you taiked
10 West had suggested that that was what we were thinking. I 10 about .
11 wanted to make it clear to Mr. Kirby we weren't thinking that 11 '* First, you talked about it can renew for 12 montha.
12 at all. 12 That was a DCA3 agreccrent?
13 | Q. You also wrotc that, "We have a contract that cxpires -- it 13 " A. That was a DCA3 agrcement, yes.
14 can renew for 12 months or snap back to preDCA3 price points.® 14 Q. And what was that in terms of full content versus nonfull
15 Explain what you wore saying to Mr. Kirby there. 15 content; what kind of agreement was that?
16 Ll A. Yeah. There's -~ there werc two options. Onc was, wo had 16 A. Full content agreexent.
17 a8 contract in place with US Airways, it had full content in {it, 17 Q. And then you say, or US Airways could snap back to the
18 that was their obligation, and -- and a lower price point for 16 preDCA3 price points. And the preDCA3 agreexment, is that a
19 that full content. If neither one of us canccled that 19 full content or nonfull contert?
20 contract, it would go forward for another ycar. And that was 20 A. It was a nonfull content agreenent.
21 one option. We wercn't going to cancel it. 21 Q. But how does the price --
22 And the second optior was that they could choose to go 22 A. Higher booking fee.
23 to a nonfull content agreement at -- it says preDCA price 23 Q. Next, let's focus on the rext line for a minute. You say,
24 point. That's a higher price. 24 "We also are suggesting that any deal cut with HP =--* first of
25 So the first option is stay in your full content 25 all, who's HP?
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A. That's the airline code for America West. Fakes no sense,

but that's what it is.

Q. So you're saying that, "He're also suggesting that any deal
cut with America West would have a roll-in provision for US

Airwaygs."™ What did you mean by that or what are you re¢faerring

to?

A. Wwell, sirnce -- since Mr. Kirby's team at Anerica West had
already started negotiating with us and since he was going to

be responsible, we were saying that, look, if that negotiation
continues, then wo'll certainly create a provision so that

the -~ the new nerger airline wculd roll into the new contract.

Q. In torms of the two options, the merged airline together

would have cither way?

A. Yes.

Q. And how did your offer to My. Kirby regarding going to the
reDCA3 agreement compare to the type cf agreement that America

West had at the time?

A. It was very similar.

Q. Let me look bricfly at a demonstrative Exhibit 156, which

we went through with Mr. Webb, but this just lays out the

diffcrent contracta and the full content versus nonfull content

contracts. How does the preDCA3 agreement that you offered

Mr. Kirby for the combined airlinc fit in here?

A. It would just extend that bottom red line all the way

across, 80 it's a -- it's a leas than full -- noafull content

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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different.

I think the second reason was, Mr. Kirby exprossed and
said publicly that they needed to take a lot of cost out of the
merged airlire. That was what they committed to investors and
this was a way to -- full content came with a load of costs, so
it wag a revenue bencfit on the customer side and a cost
benefit on the booking fee side.

Q. Go back to your emdil real quick, Defendant's 1334. So
after this email exchange in July of 2005 with Mr. Kirby, what
happened to the US Airways contract?

A. It actually did roll over. Necither party canceled it, so
it extended for a onc-year period.

Q. And did you continuc havirg conversations with Mr. Kirby
that gurwner abou:i ncqotiating a new agreement £0r the nouw
merged airline?
A. Yes, we did. And I did.

Q. Let's move to Exhibit 1333, which is in evidence.
Defendant's 1333. This is an omail froa Mr. Kirby to you dated
August 8 of 2005. Can you tell mo -- and we'll go through this
in gon¢ detail, Lut can you toll me at a high level gencrally
vhat thiz cmail related to, or this discugsion.

A. Yes. 1t relates to the -- that -- the rollover of the
contract that we just talked abou:z, so -- and it relatecs to
Mr. Kirby's expressing a desire for a lower price point on the
booking feec.
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agreement. It's a higher price point. It was essontially the
osame kind of dcal that Ancrica West had.

Q. And that would be for both airlines, or the combined, I
quess, nerged airline?

A. Yes.

Q. What wags Mc. Kirby's response to you:r offer to put the now
marged alirlire under a nonfull content agreexent?

A. He never talked to me about that option.

Q. Did he express any interest in that option to you?

A. No.

Q. —rid HMr. Kirby say anything to yous about wanting to convert
this new mergoed airline to the America West nonfull content
nodel?

A. No.

Q. And based on your conversations with Mr. Kirby, what was
your understanding of why the new »erged airlin¢ negotiated for
a full content agreement after at lcast the America West arm of
it had had a nonfull content agreement?

A. A couple reasons. One, US Airways was a different kind of
airline than Amecrica West, and the combined airline would be
more interested and was sct up more to handle business
travelers. I mentioned cxampliing the shuttle markets hired on
the East Coast, heavy business markets, and those business
travelers typically buy their services through travel agencies.
So the distribution strategy for the new airline would be

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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Q. It references a press release relating to the rollover.
Why did you put out a press release announcing thae rollover?
A. There was, you know -- the market knew, our travel agency
custorers knew, ard I think irnvestors knew too that the US
Alrways contract was coming up for rcnewal. That's big newa.
dc couldn't be silent about it. HWe had executed a one-year
extension. And we just put out a shor: release that let -- let
our customers know and let our investors know that we had done
that.

Q. ¥Mr. Kirby also says here, he referesnces, because US Airways
had been in bankruptcy, we can therefore¢ simply reject the
Sabre contract. What did you understand that to mean?

A. It mcant that he was scrious =-- I ook it to mecan that he
waa geciously considering re¢jecting our contract. <That's -- he
had that right. And pulling the airline out of Sabre.

Q. And how did Mr. Kirby's message that US Air could simply
reject this contract with Sabre affect your position or your
approach to the ncgotiations?

A. It created additional leverage for US Airways, and I think
it resulted in us cesponding in the next round with a -~ with a
lowur price.

Q. How did you take the threat?

A. I --1T took it scriously.

Q. Wwhat would it have mcant to your ccmpany if US Airways had
sinply rejectod the contract?
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A. Again, an airline of this size, this i{s a -- this is a -- a
newly formed fourth largest airlinoe in the United States. 1If
they pulled out of -- out of the Sabre systemn, it would have
been devastating for our busircas, and I think we would have,
again, lost a lot of business precty imxediately.

Q. Lot's move to tho next paragraph. He says to you, "While
we are anxious to discuss new terms with you and would like <o
develop a better long-term partnership with Sabre, ve
unequivocally will not affirm the existing contract.®” W%hat did
you understand that to mean?

A. I understood it to mean that, again, that he was very
willing to exercise his right to -- to not accept the contract
through the court, as he said in the £irst paragraph, on the
new terns and would like to develop a long-tern partnership.
Again, I -- we hoped to get full content for the conbined
airline, and that's -- that's what he and I had been talking
about, and I assume that's what he meant there.

Q. And at the end he says, °We would very much like to
cornplete a new deal with Sabre but certainly aren’t interested
in the old economics.” What did you understand that to mean in
terms of how the negotiation would go forward?

A. That, well, he wanted a lower price, and we would need to
be responsive to it if we wanted to keep his airline in our
system.

Q. And wha: did you understand the old econom:cs to mecan?

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300

3521

Gbslsabé Klein -~ Direct

rotection. The right to, that is, reject tho Sabre contract
in its entirety if it chooses and drop out cf the Sabrec systen.
What are you referring to there?
A. That's -- it’s the right that he expressed to me that he
had. I wag just telling him that I understood that that was
very auch within his lcgal rights and ihat, you xnow, that
those two things wera tied, that they could stop, you know
they could roject the contract and they could pull their
content out of the systen.
Q. And what would it have meant %o Sabre if they drogped out
of the system at this point?
A. Again, it would -- it would have been devastating to us

and -- and we would have lost busincss pretty nuch ioerediately.
Q. All right. The last line of your email, you say, "Thanks,
and let's talk soon.” This is in August 2005. Did you talk to
Mr. Kirby shortly thoreafter?
A. I believe I did, yes.
Q. And tcll us generally what you discussod in your phone call
with him following this email exchange.
A. WwWc talked about a variety of thinga, which 1 wound up
documenting because they were I thought they were important
to the nogotiaticn. Wwe¢ talked about his -- his he made it
clear to me that not only was -- was he serious ir his threats

tere but that he now had investor support to pull US Alrways

out of Sabre. These are the rew investors who invested in the
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A. The existing US Airways contract or the existfng America
nest contract.

Q. And what did Mr. Kirby say about content in his email or
your discussions with him at this time?

A. He didn't mention it at all,

Q. And at the time what kind of contract did US Airways have?
A. A full content agreemant.

Q. Was this email consistent with your conversations with

Mz. Kirby?

A. It was.

Q. °rid you end up responding to him in this email?

A. 1 did.

Q. Lot's look at Dcfendant's bExhibit 1463, This is in
evidence. This is an emoil dated August 8, 2005, from you to
Mr. Kirby. I thirk that's the same day, a couple hours later.
And we'll walk through this in a little bit of detail, but
generally, what did this erail relate <0?

A. 1 -- it was, you know -- I responded to his cozments on the
press release, just said that we thought it was factual, and
affirmed that we understood his right, US Airways® right to not
assume the contract or to be able to cancel the contract, and
wanted to make sure that we had a chance to talk soon.

Q. And let's focus on -- and I tried to make that bigger but
it didn't get any bigger. You also write, we are certainly

aware that US Airways has that right under the bankruptcy
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merged airline. Ho made it clear that he wanted to continue
conversations but that -- that a lower price point was the only
way that we were going to be able to get to -- get US Airways
content in our systam.
Q- Did he make any explicit suggestions about pulling out of
Sabra?
A. He yeah, he made it clecar that he had the suppor: of his
investors to pull out of Sabro, and for somc -- even, for some
of his i{nvestors, that it was the preferred option.
Q. How did you take that threat?
A. I took it extremely seriously.
Q. In your call with hin following up on these emails, what,
if any:hing, did Mr. Kirby say about providing content or
wanting nonfull content, or his desire to withhold content?
A. Yeah, we -- we didn't have a discussion about anything
otaer than fvll content. He nentioned that -- I believe he
mentioncd that -- that the airline would look at kind of
industry standard torms, which mcant what the other big
airlines were doirqg, which were full content agreements. He
mentioncd a most favored nations clause, which is something he
desircd, which mweans that if we negotiated with some other
airlines a lower price, that he would like access to that lower
rice. So that was the gist of the conversation. I dccumented
it and sent it around o our team because I it was really

important to the discussions wo wore having at the tima.
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Q. ¥Why did you document ycur call with him?

A. 1It's pretty much whenever I -- I mean, that type of call
where we were talking about very specific things and the type
of threat that he made, I thought it was important to document
that and send it around to our team. It's kind of normal
course of business.

MR. LIUD: And your Honor, I'm going to walk through
that. It might take more than a couple minutes, so I'd rather
do that all at once. if wo can break tcday.

THE COURT: That's ffne.

Okay, ladies and gentlemen. We will come back
tomorrow», game timo, same place. Please don't talk about the
case.

(Continued on noext page)
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{Jury not present)

THE COURT: I have only a telephone conference this
evening, go if you want to lcave materials on the tables,
you‘re free to do that.

ALL COUMSEL: Thank you, your HKonor.,

{Adjourncd to November 29, 2016, at 9:15 a.m.)
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